Board of Trustees
Meeting

August 15, 2016



August 12,2016

NOTICE OF MEETING
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto College Community District will meet at 5:00 p.m.,
Monday, August 15, 2016, in Room 201 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas.

BOARD WORKSHOP
AGENDA

I. Call the Meeting to Order
II. Roll Call of Board Members

III. Adjournment to closed or executive session pursuant to Texas Government Code
Section 551.074 of the Texas Open Meetings Act, for the following purposes:

a. For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation,
reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to
hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.

e Validation of evaluation ratings for members of the Strategic Leadership
Team
e Re-assignments related to retirements, Pathways, and SACSCOC
IV.  Reconvene in Open Meeting
V. Review 2016 — 2017 Budget
VI. Review 2016 — 2018 Strategic Plan and 2016 — 2017 Annual Priorities
VII. Update on Fall 2016 Enrollment
VIII. Review Bond Refinancing Activity
IX. Review Proposed Electioneering Procedures
X. Discuss Proposed Process for Concealed Carry Procedures
XI.  General Discussion of Meeting Items
XII.  Review Calendar
XIII. Adjournment
Additional Closed Session Authority
If, during the course of the meeting covered by this Notice, the Board should
determine that a closed or executive meeting or session of the Board should be held

or is required in relation to any items included in this Notice, then such closed or 2
executive meeting or session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas



Government Code (the Open Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date,
hour and place given in this Notice or as soon after the commencement of the
meeting covered by the Notice as the Board may conveniently meet in such closed
or executive meeting or session concerning any and all subjects and for any and all
purposes permitted by Sections 551.071, inclusive, of the Open Meetings Act,
including, but not limited to:

Section 551.071 — For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board’s
attorney on any or all subjects or matters authorized by law.

Section 551.072 — For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or
value of real property.

Section 551.073 — For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a
prospective gift or donation.

Section 551.074 — For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment,
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or
employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.

Section 551.076 — To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for
implementation, of security personnel or devices.

Section 551.084 — For the purpose of excluding a witness or witnesses from a
hearing during examination of another witness.

Section 551.087— To discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial
information that the Board has received from a business prospect that the Board
seeks or may seek to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the
College and with which the Board is conducting economic development
negotiations or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to such
business prospect.

Should any final action, final decision, or final vote be required in the opinion of the
Board with regard to any matter considered in such closed or executive meeting or

session, then such final action, final decision, or final vote shall be at either:

A. The open meeting covered by this Notice upon the reconvening of the public
meeting, or

B. At a subsequent public meeting of the Board upon notice thereof, as the Board
shall determine.

Certification as to Posting or Giving of Notice

On this day, August 12, 2016, this notice was posted on a bulletin board located at a place
convenient to the public in the central administrative office of the San Jacinto
Community College District, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, the College’s
website, and is readily accessible to the public upon request.

Brenda Hellyer, Ed.D.



August 12,2016

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto College Community District will meet at 7:00 p.m.,
Monday, August 15, 2016, in Room 104 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas.

PUBLIC BUDGET HEARING
I. Call the Meeting to Order
II. 2016 — 2017 Budget Presentation
III. Public Comment on 2016 — 2017 Budget
IV. Adjourn to Regular Board Meeting

Certification as to Posting or Giving of Notice

On this day, August 12, 2016, this notice was posted on a bulletin board located at a place
convenient to the public in the central administrative office of the San Jacinto Community
College District, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, the College’s website, and is readily
accessible to the public upon request.

Brenda Hellyer, Ed.D.



August 12,2016

NOTICE OF MEETING
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto College Community District will meet immediately
following the Public Budget Hearing, Monday, August 15, 2016, in Room 104 of the Thomas
S. Sewell District Administration Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas.

BOARD MEETING
AGENDA
I.  Call the Meeting to Order
II.  Roll Call of Board Members
III. Invocation and Pledge to the Flags
IV.  Special Announcements, Recognitions, Introductions, and Presentations
Recognition of Chris Duke for Being Elected to the Laurel Williamson
Liberal Education and America’s Promise Board of Directors
Recognition of the Marketing Department for Receiving the  Teri Crawford
Public Relations Society of America Houston Gold Excalibur
Award for 2015 Bond Public Relations Campaign
V. Student Success Presentations
Update on Pathways Laurel Williamson
VI. Communications to the Board of Trustees
VII. Hearing of Such Citizens or Groups of Citizens Desiring to be Heard Before the
Board
VIII. Informative Reports to the Board
A. San Jacinto College Financial Statement
B. San Jacinto College Foundation Financial Statement
C. Capital Improvement Program
D. San Jacinto College Building Committee Minutes
E. San Jacinto College Finance Committee Minutes
ACTION ITEMS
IX. Consideration of Approval of Amendment to the 2015-2016 Budget for
Restricted Revenue and Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants
X.  Consideration of Approval of Revisions to the Strategic Plan and Approval of

the 2016 — 2017 Annual Priorities for San Jacinto College



XI.

XII.

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVIIL

XVIII.

XIX.

Consideration of Approval of the Renewal of the Articulation
Agreement Between San Jacinto Community College District and
Lamar University Department of Industrial Engineering

Consideration of Approval of Memorandum of Understanding Between Galena
Park Independent School District and San Jacinto College District for Use of
Facilities

Consideration of Approval of Clear Horizons Early College High School
Memorandum of Understanding

Consideration of Approval of Memorandum of Understanding Between Harris
County Department of Education and San Jacinto College District

Consideration of Approval of Pasadena Early College High Schools
Memorandum of Understanding

Consideration of Approval of Proposed Budget for 2016 — 2017
Consideration of Approval of the 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting Dates

Consideration of Approval of Reauthorization of the Full-time Salary Schedules,
Part-time Hourly Pay Rates, and Stipends and Market Premiums for 2016-2017

Consideration of Approval of the Annual Review of the Investment Policy and
Strategy of the College

PURCHASING REQUESTS

XX.

Consideration of Purchasing Requests

CONSENT AGENDA

XXI.

XXII.

XXIII.

Consent Agenda

(Any item placed on the consent agenda shall be removed and taken up as a separate
matter, if so requested by any member of the Board, otherwise all items will be voted
on with one (1) motion.)

A. Approval of the Minutes for the July 11, 2016 Board Workshop and Regular
Board Meeting

Approval of the Minutes for the July 14, 2016 Special Board Meeting
Approval of the Budget Transfers

Approval of Personnel and Contract Recommendations

Approval of the Affiliation Agreements

Approval of the Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting

TETAW

Items for Discussion/Possible Action
(Items removed from the Consent Agenda, will be considered at this time)

Adjournment

Closed Session Authority

If, during the course of the meeting covered by this Notice, the Board should
determine that a closed or executive meeting or session of the Board should be held
or is required in relation to any items included in this Notice, then such closed or 6



executive meeting or session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas
Government Code (the Open Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date,
hour and place given in this Notice or as soon after the commencement of the
meeting covered by the Notice as the Board may conveniently meet in such closed
or executive meeting or session concerning any and all subjects and for any and all
purposes permitted by Sections 551.071, inclusive, of the Open Meetings Act,
including, but not limited to:

Section 551.071 — For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board’s
attorney on any or all subjects or matters authorized by law.

Section 551.072 — For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or
value of real property.

Section 551.073 — For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a
prospective gift or donation.

Section 551.074 — For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment,
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or
employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.

Section 551.076 — To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for
implementation, of security personnel or devices.

Section 551.084 — For the purpose of excluding a witness or witnesses from a
hearing during examination of another witness.

Section 551.087— To discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial
information that the Board has received from a business prospect that the Board
seeks or may seek to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the
College and with which the Board is conducting economic development
negotiations or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to such
business prospect.

Should any final action, final decision, or final vote be required in the opinion of the
Board with regard to any matter considered in such closed or executive meeting or
session, then such final action, final decision, or final vote shall be at either:

A. The open meeting covered by this Notice upon the reconvening of the public
meeting, or

B. At a subsequent public meeting of the Board upon notice thereof, as the Board
shall determine.

Certification as to Posting or Giving of Notice

On this day, August 12, 2016, this notice was posted on a bulletin board located at a place
convenient to the public in the central administrative office of the San Jacinto Community
College District, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, the College’s website, and is
readily accessible to the public upon request.

Brenda Hellyer, Ed.D.



SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable - taxes
Accounts receivable
Deferred charges
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments
Other long term investments
Capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred outflow related to pensions

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued compensable absences and deferred compensation
Deferred revenues
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability
Bonds and notes payable
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources -
Deferred inflow related to pensions

Net assets
Beginning of year

Current year addition
Total net position

June 30,

201 2015
80,035,454 70,232,985
- 81,337
4,246,788 4,022,723
15,148,922 17,831,595
1,675,016 1,618,267
462,236 522,096
101,568,416 94,309,003
216,744,043 48,338,639
- 1,013,307
- 9,847,910
412,051,502 388.807.807
628,795,545 448,007,663
730,363,961 542,316,666
4,542,533 -
11,084,305 13,283,199
5,118,482 4,603,782
2,592,077 2,747,035
13,348,209 12,062,407
32,143,073 32,696,423
24,842,147 -
478,325,001 287,538,895
503,167,238 287,538,895

535,310,311

320,235,318

7,599,287

176,203,176
15,793,720

208,536,020
13,545,328

191,996,896

222,081,348




Consolidated -All Funds
(Not Including Capital Improvement Program)

REVENUES:

State Appropriations

Local Taxes - Maintenance & Operations
Local Taxes - Debt Service

Credit Tuition

Credit Fees

Credit Exemptions & Waivers

Bad Debt

Continuing Professional Development
Sales & Services

Investment Income

Auxiliary Services

Grants

Local Grants

Total
EXPENDITURES:

Instruction

Public Service

Academic Support

Student Services

Institutional Support
Physical Plant

Scholarships and Fellowships
Auxiliary Enterprises
Depreciation

Capital Purchases

Total
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position

For the Ten Months Ended June 30, 2016

% Actual to % of
Actual Adjusted 8/31/15
Adjusted Budget (83.33%) Budget 6/30/15 Actual
$ 46,094,872 $ 36,952,763 80.17 $ 37,790,605 81.38
59,125,000 60,434,863 102.22 55,082,910 97.31
22,879,299 22,291,876 97.43 25,762,256 98.65
41,169,879 40,876,732 99.29 39,389,455 100.70
14,514,415 13,291,034 91.57 13,059,097 95.12
(2,843,954) (3.802,262) 133.70 (3,432,665) 99.02
(800,000) (676,670) 84.58 (1,244,666) 77.79
6,445,000 5,892,062 91.42 4,879,094 81.57
1,507,900 2,112,940 140.12 1,874,997 88.76
600,000 384,271 64.05 224,034 84.70
3,590,000 3,094,784 86.21 3,019,371 80.36
69,018,199 45,667,120 66.17 47,356,162 95.66
2,315,044 1,687,673 72.90 2,012,638 95.15
263,615,654 228,207,186 86.57 225,773,288 93.81
70,759,052 60,919,384 86.09 59,681,651 87.74
5,672,259 5,213,745 91.92 4,374,201 74.99
29,784,994 13,036,044 43,77 12,127,929 83.08
13,387,322 11,622,675 86.82 11,600,999 78.91
68,265,858 45,988,489 67.37 48,110,422 82.45
18,166,425 14,269,940 78.55 16,666,220 77.76
53,494,430 44,926,810 83.98 46,852,470 95.57
3,811,798 4,003,987 105.04 4,363,283 85.48
19,589,384 13,279,089 67.79 13,206,686 81.92
% (846.697) 5 (4,755901)  80.32
282,931,522 212,413,466 75.08 212,227,960 85.83
2,805,050 (3.072,738) - (561,859)
(2,805,050) 3,072,738 - 561,859
$ (19,315,868) $ 15,793,720 $ 13,545,328
2 9



11 Unrestricted Funds

REVENUES:

State Appropriations

Local Taxes - Maintenance & Operations
Credit Tuition

Credit Fees

Credit Exemptions & Waivers

Bad Debt

Continuing Professional Development
Sales & Services

Investment Income

Total

EXPENDITURES:

Instruction

Public Service
Academic Support
Student Services
Institutional Support
Physical Plant

Total
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:

Transters In
Transfers Qut

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Ten Months Ended June 30, 2016

% Actual to % of
Actual Adjusted 8/31/15
Adjusted Budget (83.33%) Budget 6/30/15 Actual
$ 30,486,413 $ 28,938,595 79.31 § 30,085,711 81.00
59,125,000 60,434,863 102.22 55,082,910 97.31
39,342,879 39,116,028 99.42 37,676,749 100.82
14,514,415 13,291,034 91.57 13,059,097 95.12
(2,843,954) (3,802,262) 133.70 (3,432,665) 99.02
(800,000) (676,670) 84.58 (1,244,666) 77.79
6,445,000 5,892,062 91.42 4,879,094 81.57
1,507,900 1,996,517 132.40 1,803,922 88.95
600,000 113,321 18.89 132,417 98.64
154,377,653 145,303,488 94.12 138,042,569 93.32
63.500,330 56,893,075 89.59 55,567,175 87.55
4,817,880 4,692,031 97.39 3,849,356 74.39
13,607,089 10,011,735 73.58 9,443,433 81.89
11,500,200 10,433,781 90.73 10,459,450 78.60
39,706,826 32,111,196 80.87 31,019,518 81.33
18,166,425 14,269,940 78.55 16,666,220 77.76
151,298,756 128,411,758 84.87 127,005,152 82.98
< (505.378) - (5,427) E
2,805,050 2,922,909 - 558,661 -
$ 273,847 $ 14,474,199 $ 10,484,183
3 10



San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Ten Months Ended June 30, 2016

Federal Restricted Funds
% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 8/31/15
Budget (83.33%) Budget 6/30/15 Actual
REVENUES:
Grants $ 65,076,282 $ 43,206,488 66.39 $ 44,387,202 93.63
Total 65,076,282 43,206,488 66.39 44,387,202 93.63
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 687,207 488,672 71.11 452,710 89.51
Public Service 255,218 157,338 61.65 149,544 77.48
Academic Support 14,531,099 1.860,864 12.81 1,242,269 82.19
Student Services 423,635 285,845 67.47 219,886 129.99
Institutional Support 1,878,898 864,024 45.99 741,182 74.49
Scholarships and Fellowships 47,300,225 39,549,745 83.61 41,581,611 94 .44
Total 65,076,282 43,206,488 66.39 44,387,202 93.63

TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:

Transfers In " - -
Transfers Out = = .

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position  § 2 $ 2

11



State Restricted Funds

San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position

For the Ten Months Ended June 30, 2016

% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 8/31/15
Budget (83.33%) Budget 6/30/15 Actual
REVENUES:
State Paid Benefits $ 9,608,459 $ 8.014,168 83.41 $ 7,704,894 82.92
Grants 3,941,917 2,460,632 62.42 2,968,960 141.42
Total 13,550,376 10,474,800 77.30 10,673,854 93.70
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 6,519,399 3,449,048 52.90 3,627,924 90.53
Public Service 379,331 229,707 60.56 239,727 79.46
Academic Support 1,284,446 992,136 77.24 885,592 101.80
Student Services 1,382,295 856,356 61.95 854,711 73.98
Institutional Support 1,159,666 2,876,123 248.01 2,741,212 89.29
Scholarships and Fellowships 2,825,239 2,071,430 73.32 2,324,688 116.98
Total 13,550,376 10,474,800 77.30 10,673,854 93.70
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In - - - - -
Transfers Out - - - - -
Total - - - - -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position $ . $ = $ :
5 12



Local Restricted Funds

San Jacinto Community College District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position

For the Ten Months Ended June 30, 2016

% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 8/31/15
Budget (83.33%) Budget 6/30/15 Actual
REVENUES:
Local Grants $ 2,315,044 $ 1,687,673 72.90 $ 2,012,638 05.15
Total 2,315,044 1,687,673 72.90 2,012,638 95.15
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 52,116 71,617 137.42 19,117 77.04
Public Service 219,824 134,669 61.26 135,574 82.83
Academic Support 362,360 171,309 47.28 556,635 81.35
Student Services 81,192 46,693 57.51 66,952 96.06
Institutional Support 57,917 23,145 39.96 44,650 49.33
Scholarships and Fellowships 1,541,966 1,386,182 89.90 1,317,099 106.60
Total 2,315,375 1,833,615 79.19 2,140,027 94.34
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In 331 (251,673) - (128,677) -
Transfers Out = 149,829 - 3,198 -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position  § - $  (44,098) $ (1,910)

13



Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position

27 Texas Public Education Grant

REVENUES:
Credit Tuition
Total
EXPENDITURES:
Scholarships and Fellowships
Total
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

San Jacinto Community College District

For the Ten Months Ended June 30, 2016

% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 8/31/15
Budget (83.33%) Budget 6/30/15 Actual
$ 1,827,000 $ 1,760,704 96.37 $ 1,712,706 07.99
1,827,000 1,760,704 96.37 1,712,706 97.99
1,827,000 1,919,453 105.06 1,629,072 92.07
1,827,000 1,919,453 105.06 1,629,072 92.07
S - $ (158,749) $ 83,634

14



San Jacinto Community College District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position

28 Private Gifts and Donations

REVENUES:

Sales & Service

Total
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction

Total

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

For the Ten Months Ended June 30, 2016

% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 8/31/15
Budget (83.33%) Budget 6/30/15 Actual
$ - $ 116,423 - $ 71,075 84.10
- 116,423 - 71,075 84.10
- 16,972 - 14,725 87.24
- 16,972 - 14,725 87.24
b - § 99,451 $ 56,350
8 15



Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position

Auxiliary Enterprises

REVENUES:

Sales & Services
Auxiliary Services

Total
EXPENDITURES:

Non-Instructional Labor
Benefits

Supplies

Travel

Contracted Services

Capital Outlay

Scholarships and Fellowships
Utilities

Total
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

San Jacinto Community College District

For the Ten Months Ended June 30, 2016

% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 8/31/15
Budget (83.33%) Budget 6/30/15 Actual
$ - $ 103,401 - $ 78,414 17.44
3,590,000 2,991,383 83.33 2,940,957 88.91
3,590,000 3,094,784 86.21 3,019,371 80.36
913,577 768,313 84.10 1,020,611 77.86
210,000 366,445 174.50 419,568 20.04
819,160 583,212 71.20 598,481 80.81
269,003 473,294 175.94 494,378 88.48
354,662 305,321 86.09 322,960 86.35
3,163 8,848 279.73 - -
1,183,663 1,480,298 125.06 1,497,591 94.57
58,570 18,256 31.17 9,694 75.59
3,811,798 4,003,987 105.04 4,363,283 85.48
(221,798) (909,203) - (2,113) -
b - $ - $ (1,341,799)
9 16



San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Ten Months Ended June 30, 2016

95 Retirement of Indebtedness

% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 8/31/15
Budget (83.33%) Budget 6/30/15 Actual
REVENUES
Transfers In $ 2,583,252 $ 1.406.484 54.45 $ 425,642 100.00
Investment Income - 270,950 - 91,617 70.33
Local Taxes - Debt Service 22,879,299 22,291,876 9743 25,762,256 98.65
Total 25,462,551 23,969,310 - 26,279,515 98.53
EXPENDITURES
Institutional Support 25,462,551 10,114,001 39.72 13,563,860 84.50
Total 25,462,551 10,114,001 39.72 13,563,860 84.50

TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position $ - $ 13,855,309 § 12,715,655

10 17



97 Investment in Plant

San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Ten Months Ended June 30, 2016

% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 8/31/15
Budget (83.33%) Budget 6/30/15 Actual
EXPENDITURES
Depreciation $ 19,589,384 $ 13,279,089 67.79 $ 13,206,686 81.92
Capital Purchases - (846,697) - (4,755,901)  80.32
Total 19,589,384 12,432,392 - 8,450,785 84.85
Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position ~ § (19,589,384)  $ (12,432,392) $  (8,450,785)

1"

18



Capital Improvement
Program

12

19



San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Ten Months Ended June 30, 2016

91 Capital Projects

REVENUES:
Investment Income
Total
EXPENDITURES:
Bond Programs
Total

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

Adjusted Actual
Budget (83.33%) 6/30/15
3 = $ - (982)
- - (982)
- 24,582,017 18,803,706
- 24,582,017 18,803,706
$ = $ (24,582,017) $ (18,804,688)

13

20



..‘E

SILVIDOSSY % NOSYHILLVL

9107 ‘0€ dunf
110daY JUdUI)SIAU] A[YIUOIA

"a82]]00) 4MOL *S|POL) ANOL

HOHITTOD @

OoINIDV[ NVS D




pnp [eunp

07 unp £ unp

<

TS

~1abul| suonsanb jixa.g
Se S8|118S usy] sloead Jejjop SN syl

'spodxa SN SMO|S YaIym asn Yl Jo YiSuauls aq ||im
1oedw) Asewad ay] ‘adoun3 uo juapuadap AjySiy Jou st Awouoda sn ayl
‘uolloenuod e 19331431 01 UN220 01 aAeY pihom 1Y 49881 Yonw v 'S Ayl Ul
UO0ISS3234 B 918342 10U [[IM 310A 11X34g 3yl eyl S15983ns siyl ||Iv (¥D) %t'T

pue (£D) %0°Z ‘(ZD) %6°€ s1914enb € 1se| Yl JoA0 BUIMO|S UIIQ SBY YIMOJT
3yl '1984e1 %z S,pa4 9Y3 031 J9SOJ2 SN e sdD1S ||ewWS UIAS Inq J31sNpPoe|
J3yed |13 s1Ieyl "Y3g 24l WoJj 21eWI1SS PUIY1 3Y) UO (%8°0 Wody

dn) %T°T Jo 93eu |enuue ue je JaySiy Aj3ySis pasiaai sem yimols 4go T

"3IUIPIJUOT JBWNSUOI

ut Y81y yuow-1y3is ue uo 1jing Suipuads J3WNSUOI U] 3sealiu| ue Ag
padjay sem siy} Jo ||y ‘suone}dadxa papasadxa os|e |AS| Jead ised ayl uoy
1says1y ay3 1e 31 3nd pue aced s} dn payad Ajianoe AJojoe4 "AWOU0IB §N
3y JoJ Smau aA1sod awos Bulig pip Yluow Y3 J11UB[1Y 34} JO 3PIS SIYI UQ

Isnipe s1axJew syl disy ||Im ystym mo|s

aq |iim 98uey) "uoIHNyy 01 SO 0] S1eDA JoU JI Syluow axe) sadueyd
yans 3nq Ajqeqoud 350w 1oe 0] 15114 Y1 3q ||IMm ‘M 3y} Ul Iduasaid

98.1e| Aue yum suonNUISUL [BDUBUL pUe suollelodio) syluow axel

[lim 23ueyd Juauewuad Auy "pazi|iqeis Ajmols sey ‘sajpualuna Suidiawa
pue padolaAsp woJdy Aeme pue sajed pue A)ljigels Joj SN 3yl ojul

aAOW spuny se Jjued [|eJdA0 Jo J0le31pUl Bwlid B aq pInom yd1ym ‘iejjop
SN 3yl uaA3 “papisgns sey djued ay} ‘uoos awijAue sajed asied 0} Juinow
woJj pa4 ay3 daay ||Im pue ucienyis pinjj AJaA e ulewad [|Im SIyl 3jIym

‘WY 01 +yy woly Suijes |eqo|8 N3 ay3 paanpal Jaje| uayy pue 3uijel

VYV S J0 3N 343 padduns 4gS s1evtew 3unainb ul diay a1y a1em
siapea| |eqo|8 [euoijpounisAp ayl "284eyd ui 8g 03 SJUBM SUO OU MOU pue
PIpJan sy Joy pasedaud auam sjod N3 3yl Jou s3lig Jayau AjSuiwaag
-a11aydoud anoad pinoa eyl Ajjeanijod paapul pue sasud Aloisiy Jem
-1s0d 35J0Mm 3y3 Jo auo 3q yhw X3 3y3 1ey} pajou pey uedsuaalo uejy

Joam

B UIy}Im pases 1qap uBiauanos asaueder pue §n 03 und ayl "AJoljuu)
33e4 mo| Auaa ul uiewas Aoyl ySnoyije Apjainb Ajaaizeas wies o3 pauels
s1ayJew Aunseal) SN 3yl uaaj “Aj|edIwouoda sea| 1e — suoidipald

UBY] SNOLIBS $53 J.) S| 1IXa Y3 1ey) 15938ns Aew Alljiqels ajqaay e 0}
uiniaJ s}addew [eueul 3yl sAep maj e uiyyim ‘ing “AjJus|oin pue Ajjims
pa12e3J S19)Jew |eqo|S ‘PaIUN0I SEM 310A B3} Uaym A|paldadxaun joN

“Apyainb asow

yanw pajoeal s3axdew ing "Asea 3| 9)ew 03 Juem },upip pue — uines)
auoAue pauolsiAua AjleaJ Jaaau yaiym Ayeal| uogsi] 3yl Jo 05 2PIHY
OAUL ISNW 1] 13 Y1 2AB3| UBD YN Y] 240429 'N3T Y3 Ul diysiaquisw
1e3A 0T S11 WoJ4 1X3 0} J9YIdYM U0 PIIOA UBY) patapuod uoiieu pazis
sesue)y J8y3 Se YIuow Siy3 ElUUBILIg UO PISNI0) SEM PLIOM 3J13UB 3y

ulejLig INOQY 11V Sem 3|

22

15



“AINf Ul Y@M 35414 Y1 S101BIIPU
JuawWAo|dWa U UOIIUIIIE BIOW UIAS MOIY] [|IM BUNT 4O |lowin] ay]

‘Al4apenb

ISOW|E SN 104 Ya1ym syd0ys Jolew o3 paziayisaeue Suipas ase siaew
[eqo|3 ay3 Aj9jeuniiojun "3NUIIUOI ||IM SUCIIES||qO pUB MB| JUB.LIN3 ‘NJ
3yl sanea| AjJawloy )N 2Y3 Jl puUe [13un Ing “sapeds ul Jey} uaas Apealje
9ABY AN *,le1IuBNbasU0D pue 3110ISIY, S10A 1IX34g Y] Pa||ed ueli3-|3
P3WEYOA JBSIARY JIWLIOU0IT J3IYD ZUBl||y "S|9ssnJg ul Adesoneaung Sulina
e Jou ujese |o1lu00 Juem Asy] -julod siyl Je s1o3sanul pue suonelsodiod
|eUoiBUNW 3Y] In0oge aJed Juop A3y ‘Sulaea| Jnoge salllom

Aue paydiamino Jey diysiaquiaw 3 4o 3502 3Y3 334 NN Y3 jo ajdoad

3y} asnedaq si 3 Ajdwis aynp iaaea| 01 3104 ajdoad ysiiig ayl pip Aym ‘og

‘SN 2Y1 Ul 343y 3|gnoJ] Ul $33e1S Aue J0) )

A3A0 ||e uslllum souanbasuod peq sey uoieajosd o3 dn wayy Suluadg "Hnod
ul WnlojeJIoWw spue(s 3yl padua||eyd 3S4n0J JO aAeY SIapjoypuog "(%SZ'8
1e) uol|jiw gpzs 03 Suinunowie Ajuoyiny aoueuld ainjanaiselju) sy Suided

94 10U [|Im } paounouue A|pjoq 021y oand ‘@saydsiway siy3 Ul 3jiymuea |y

‘aJ4ay} asudins o "1sn8ny 30UlS 3184 1S9MO|

S} 03 uen, ayl pauayeam A3y} asinod Jo 0s asauly)d ay3 pauayidualis osje
asn ay1 ur y1d8usuis 3yl "ymmoud Suimo|s Agaiayl SUes| [EUOIIBUIBIUI 1034E
|[!M AJule1493Un ‘UolIPPE Ul "94eS Se Pan|adsad SI yaiym s1axJew asaueder
01Ul UMOJ} OS|E SABY SPUNS "UMOP SN $534d 01 SaNUIIU0D YdIym sales Aue
10} 5321042 M3} Sey A3UOLU |BUOIIBUIIIUI PUB 0IN3 3Y3 SAUIWISPUN 310A Y

‘sajuedwod asoyy 4oy syjoud

paanpaJ 23s pjnod 310A 3y "uciun ueadoin3 ayl JO 1534 Y3 Y1IM SIOP(II0D
apeJ3-2a.) 3y} ssadde Ajpealt ued Aayy os Ajpied )y 'n ay3 Ul 1saAaul (euly) pue
‘s'n Suipnpaui) suonelod.od |euoieUIIUl AUBW JEY] SUIBLSL UISJUOD [BqO|3
V "0S 9]2IHY Jopun paje|dwaluod auljawi} YIUOW-F 3U3 UIYIIM [BMEBIPYIIM
s, N Y3 31e1108au 01 pasinbal S| LoYa a|qedipaldun pue aaissew e 1eyl
9z|uBo23J s1apea) ssaulsng pue |eanyjod se s3sIxa Ajutenasun jo 83.8ap ysiy v

‘sa1jddns Asuow aseasdul o3 Buisea aanieyiyuenb SuiAng puoq

3y} jJo |emaual e Suipndul 3|qnoL) 1UaAa.d 03 uoijoe 13Y10 dWos 3yel p|nod
Pa4 3Y3 ‘U3SIOM 0] SINUITUOD UOIIENYS SY3 §| "UOIIENLIS 33 [0JIU0D 0 dWI[}
sleludoudde ue e anp uiwod aie A)ipinbi| pasinbas Buiasiyae uoyj saulpeap
|oseg ayL ‘Ill [9seg Aq paulap se syueq jueldodw Ajjeaiwaisis Ajjeqo|8 asue|
3yl Ajje1dadss ‘syuedidilied jaysew ul Aupinbi| 3jenbape ainsua o} pajdadxa
9 p|NoY Syueq [eJIudl JaYlo pue pa4 ay)l "Aj@yiun os|e s| puey J3yio

3yl uoIna 3led y ‘£T0Z |1un saBueyd ale. Joadxa mou maj pue ‘sajel Suisied
10 p|oY 01 9AIDSDY |BJ9Pa4 9Y} JOJ UOSEDL JBYIOUR 3q P|N0I 2J0A }Xaig 3yl

Ajulelsaoun paldellodd ;IXaN SaWon e
<E juie} N P2oloelloid ;1XoN D Jeym

JLV¥IDOSSY ¥ NOSHILLIYG

23

16



1A0g 01 Spun4 pa-f — 8Ny PldIA [IN- - SIBY YIUOY JO puTF

1£0¢ 1401 I4S 1Az IAT owg owg

(SR - . - L S 9%00°'0

9%05°0
9T-IBJA _ %00°'T )

—adv

gr-1dy u
91-Ae|y %061 2
91-unp o]
1
i L 920078 5
d

L 0£05°T

= %00

"£T0OZ |I3un UOI}IE OU 10} UO BJE
Sppo syl Ing 'SAllE Y1y Jaqwad3q e o) sadoy Suidaay sisiwindo may awos yum paJeaddesip sey asealdu] pa4 B 104 SUOIIBIIPISUOD ||

"a1ued 11xa.g 3yl yum Ajsnondioasd paddolp aA0wW 0} WOOU 310W YIM pud 4123u0| 3y

‘paddoup
Jead auo syl 011n0 Julod AusAs Syueq pue SJUNOJJE 13)Jew ABuow 3yl 01Ul M3|4 SPUN) SE INQ SAOW 0] WOOJ 3111| PeY puUd Jaoys ay |

‘Ajjuediyiusis pue Ajgesnseaw sajel Suiddolp — aAINI 9y ssoJdde Juasedde sem 1ixaug Jo 1oedwi 3y

pajawuwing aJe sajey

24

17



AL s
L & /,V\F /z.%..u /Jv& & &
SRS O G N
4 0,\(
)
L &
WQ
S
‘e Q )
QS
$
I+ Q ()
@0
PSS
| &
%T65°SL
\zz
o\nwmm.ﬁu\
Jued %I18'L
sjood

"3|q1ssod
J1 eaJe JeaA om] ayj ojul pue 133uU0| 1IN0 Yd1341S
pue sajuejeq Ysed dnpas 03 W |ISSIY =

3w} ul urod siyi 1e sanuade syl wiopadino
ma4 "dn saup spuoq lunw mau jo Ajddns

91 Se aAI19eI11e 53] 9W0I3] Sey 1qap |edplunw
pue syisodap mau ul palsalaluiun ulewal syueg

‘dn deaud sajed se saAlleusalje alow Auew

ale 313y} JeaA auo ised Uaded [elpuawwod o}
$S333€ Y1m 3soy) 1oy Ajje13adsa — Uo11e31}ISIaAIp
Joj sanjunuioddo swos Suliayo Jauenb ise|

3yl ul dn paAow aABY S231BJ WIIY-HoYs Alan ay)

‘'SUOINPUOD }3yJew 3|11e|oA 0] Isnipe 13119q

ued olj0j140d paljISianlp e asnedaq Ajunlew

93e4aAe P3||0J1U0D B pUB UOIIEJO||E }3SSe [ewjdo
Joj o1joj1i0d InOA SM3IABI AJJUBISUOI ¥Rd =

9107 ‘0€ aunr jo sy

0110J110( elauan

25

18



%b9'Te
51004

%16°LL

\l_z_z

"9|qissod
J1 eaue JeaA om] ay] ojul pue J33uo| N0 Y231a4is
pue sadue|eq Yyseda adnpaJd 0} w135 sty

"‘awil ul Jutod siyi 3e sapuade ayl waopdino
M34 ‘dn saup spuoq iunu mau jo Ajddns ays
SEe DAI2BINIE $S3| aW0I3q sey 1g9p |edidiunw

pue s}isodap mau Ul paisalajuiun uiewas syueg

‘dn d33.2 s9jeJ Se SaAIBUIR} e 210w Auelwl

aJe aJay) J1eah auo 1sed ‘1aded |eja1awwiod o)
$$330€ YUMm 95031 40) Ajje1oadsad — uol1edalISIanlp
Joj saniunyoddo sawos Suliayo Jayenb se)

2yl ul dn paAow aAeY S23eJd WI3-140ys AJdA 3y L

'SUOI}IPUOD 13xJeW 3|13E|0A 0} ISn(pe 19)19q ued
oljoj1i0d paiisianip e asnedraq Ajanjew agelane
P3||0J3u0d B pue uoijedoje 13sse [ewildo

10} 01]104310d INOA SM3IABL AjjuelSU0D Yig4

910T ‘0€ aunr jo sy

011041104 puog

26

19



S'g'L oA Hodey
0¢ L (Lind 48d) Wd

dv
20rs olegiod

"Apoq Buiwisnob ay) 0) ainsojasip Iy spiacid 0 oljojuod sy Jo suonejuasaldal olydelb se |jam se ‘Jodal uopoesuel) e ‘pouad sy} Jo pus sy} Joj Hodal

vO:Z1 - 9102/20/80 BeQ uny
£0:Z1 9L02/20/80 :DOMS™ L3S :pajepdn ejeq
910Z/0£/90-9102/10/90 poliad Bunioday

E_mtd.\Rm_n_ }Jo lojj@2uByD aMA -

JUSAUI PBIBISP B 'MBIAIBAD AlBWIWNS

juswabeuew e apnjoul spodal 8y| “SlusWISaAUI JO oljojlod S,UCEPUNDS pUE §,263]1070) BY) UIYIM ANANSE puEe uofisod sy} Jo uonepuna4/abej0D AJUNWWGY OJUIDEr UBS 8y o Apoq BuiuienoB ayy wuou
Aliny 0} Japao Ul 1oy By} Aq paanbal 10u uonewiojul [BlUBWS|ddNS Jayo os|e sliodsl By (9522 @POD) J,A00) SEXS ] ) 10y JUSWISBAU| SPUN4 1GNd 8U) Y)iM 82UBPIOIJE Ul payiwqns aie suodas Buimolo) ay )

021958

IB3 A JusLND

ajeq o) Jea, |easid

Buipu3 yuow pg sunp

sBujuiey |ejo)

~
N

20

. . o . SJUBLWISAAU|
12€0 I I %00°001 ¢5°L6Y 644962 CS'L6Y'6.LL°962 25°L6¥'6.LL°962
LEE0 L L €566 L6781 861'€8E L6'¥8¥'86¥'€8C L6'¥8Y'861'€8E SI9YEW ABUOW/SI00d JuBWISBAU|
000°0 3 I 8F'y SGZLOLYTEL §6'zioLee'el S6'Zi0'Lee'el sjunoooy Buioayppjoogssed
‘AaInb3 gog Aumew uuay olojHod  anjep anjep anjep SjuUBWISaAU|
WLA 0} sheg 0% joog 1e0el led

9¥/8. X1 ‘uusny

S6L aUnsg
JB4O 'S |06

S9)BID0SSY B UosIaned

910z ‘0€ aune

Arewwing oljojod
juswabeuep oljopiod

abajjoo Ajunwwon ojuioer ueg

FALYIIODEEY § NOBUILLIVL



G'E'L 4B Hodey
0'2'4(1S dud) LS
dv

20rs oljopiod

01121 - 9102/20/80 ®jeq uny

L 1Z€0 007001 TS L6V'6LL'96T 25°L67'6.LL°962 14 abelaAy pue |ejoL

3 SZT0 16'9Z LEPSH'GE0°08 LEPSP'520°08 St lejoiang

1 0270 6v'22 92 LY PSL'99 9L brb'PSL 09 9 sjoyJel ASuop/sI00d JuBLLISaAU|

L 00070 8y §G°ZL0LEZ'EL SSZI0'LBTEL 6 $junody BuydayHpoogssed
oljojll0d pajepijosuoc) pung

I 1S€°0 £0'EL LZEPO'PYL9LZ LZ'EPOYrLOLE o lejolgng

L IS€°0 £0'EL LZEV0'bPL 0L LZEVO'PPL'OLT oL sjodiel ABUOIN/SI00d JUBWISBAU|

spund puog :pundg
Auanjep o) S9€ LA oljojHod anjep yoog anjea Sjuswlsanu| adA) Ajunaag
sAeq abesony abeiany 09, ied Jo raquinn

/8. X1 ‘unsny

S6l |Ung

2B4ON 'S LO6
$81el00SsY 9 Uosialled

pung Aq padnoig
910z ‘0¢ aunp
adA] Aq Asewwing
abajjon Alunwwosn ojuider ueg

SILVIINREY B NOSNALLVd

28

21



G'E°L I8 WHodey
L2 (4 dud) 14

L6111 - 9L02/20/80 81eQ uny

dv
D0rs oljojiod o
N
3 LS€°0 280 LZEvo'vrLale LTEPO'PYLLE LZEVO'YPL'9LE abeisAy pue sjusunsaiu] [2joL
N
13 LSE°0 eSE'0 LZEv0'rrLiale 1T EP0'PYL9LT LT EVOYYLILE abeiaay pue |ejojqng N
L 09e0 SSE0 09E°0 8¥'02.'928' 8¥'024'928'C 8¥'02.°'928'C 6002/0€/L0 92IMBG 180 - JOD dIST 90101 9166666666
L 09€0 SGE°0 09€°0 GZ'9£6'001'0S1 SZ'9€6'00L'051 §2'9€6'00L'051 910Z/0Z/+0 §p8ad0ld puog 9102 - 409 dIST S0l 8166666666
3 08€°0 SGE°0 0920 B6L'GSS'TLY L 64'G55'TLP'L 61'GSS'2LY'L S102/90/80 $p8ad0ld puog SLOZ - 409 dIST recol L1 66666666
3 09’0 SGE0 09E0 L8 PLS'ELL'Y L8FLS'ELL'Y L8 FLG'ELL'Y 8002/€0/0L $paadold puod 800¢ - 409 dIST 8001 666666666
3 0se’0 S¥E0 0S¢0 26°LL0°0S52 26'120'052 76'120'052 ¥ 102/60/60 B0IAIBS 1480 WIN 1SBM 1SET ceeol ¥r80002.-98
3 0S¢0 S¥e0 0S€°0 S¥'890'0L0°GE S¥'890°0L0°'GE S$'890°0L0°GE G10Z/90/80 Spasadid puog Gl WIN 1S8M 1SET €20l Zrer002L-98
I 0SE°0 SYE0 0S€°0 L6'1LL0°052 L6'LL0'0SZ 16'1L0'0S2 7 102/60/60 Sps8d0id puog g0 ININ IS8 ise3 LEEOI ¥6.000Z24-98
b 0Se°0 SYe'0 0se'0 20'259'9€0°zL 20'269'980°Z1 202599021 ¥ L02/60/60 aVIAIBS 199Qa SOl 1S9 1sed 6¢201 PREXXX
L 0SE°0 SvE'0 0SE0 08'v08'2SL'6 08'v08°25L'6 08'¢08'25L'6 ¥ 10Z/60/60 $Spadl0Id puog 80 SOI 188 1sed 8220l PELXXX
I 080°0 8400 080°0 84'99'0EE 81°9¥9'0€E 91°9¥9'0EE L00g/50/CL 0IneS 18 - NI #9001 L1E0rESDL
sjoyle ABUO/S|00d JUBW)SAAU|
Aunjew ejeq G9E 09g aey anjep 1ayJep anjep Jed anjeA yoog areq — 1anssj # EmEdwm__E_ . disna
o] sheq Munjeyy WLA WLA jaung aseyaind
[
9102 0¢ sunp
2 pung Aq sjuawisanuj
e ¥ spung puog - gNOg pung
9BHON 'S 106 absjjon Ajlunwwon ojuioer ueg

S9JBID0SSY B UoSIaNed

RALVIIOEEY © NOBUALIVd



§g'L e paday
L2 (147 3dd) 14

dv
O0rs olioplod

LS 1L - 91L02/20/80 ‘eleq uny

Z abed

9102 ‘0¢€ aunp
pung Aq sjuawiysanuj

oljojiod pajepliosuo) - N3O puny

I G220 220 LE'¥SY'SE0'08 LE'¥SP'SEQ'08 LE'YSY'SE0'08 abesany pue sjusunsaau] [ejo0L
L 0LZ'0 1920 9L L' vSL 99 9L L' vSL'99 9L Ly'PSL99 abesany pue [ejojqng
L £9€°0 85¢'0 £9E°0 GB8'648'GrC'9 S8'6.8'G¥2'9 58'6.8'Gv2'9 200Z/10/60 1004x8] 2001 L 66666666
L 0se0 SYE0 0S€°0 802562 81025 6EC 8¥'0Z5'6€¢ 200Z/92/60 Joep ABUoW - §OL 8€001 966666666
3 0800 8,00 0800 1S'2¥9'L00'02 1S'2¥9'L00'02 16'2¥9'100'02 200Z/10/60 1oe ABUO - W SE00L 02E€65LL0L
1 09€0 SGE0 09€°0 LL'OEF'9 LL'OEF'9 LL'OEY'9 200Z/10/60 BunesedQ - 409 dIST €001 £66666666
I 0S€0 SYe0 0S€°0 Z6'120°052 Z6'1L0'052 Z6'140'05¢2 ¥10Z/60/60 NN IS8 IS 0€20l 018002.-98
l 0S€°0 S¥e0 0S€°0 68'968'0L0°0F 68'968'0L0°0F 68°968°0L0'0F ¥10Z/60/60 SOl 1s8pn IsET 12201 0LBXXX
sjajely Aduo/S|00d Judw)sanu|
L 000°0 000°0 SGZL0'LBZ'EL SSZI0'I8Z'EL SS°ZI0'I8Z'EL abesany pue [ejoigng
I 8€'60€'Z- 8E£'60€'2- 8E€'60E'2- S10Z/10/60 dwoD sUSUBPOA - NI €001 19€6GL20L
l 000 000 000 S102/10/60 BUW0dU| paLIBeQ uspMs LgLoL E£GEBGLL0L
I 00'L29°02 001L£9'0Z 00°LL9'0Z S10Z/10/60 useD Anad 88001 £166666666
3 LE'1L9P'8E- 28719v'8¢E- LE°19V'8E- S1L0Z/10/60 pund ||oifed 58001 9Pe65LL0L
L 9 6ET'V86'EL ¥9'6£2'¥86'EL ¥9'6£Z'¥86'EL SL0Z/10/60 BunesadQ - Wdr 29001 9EE65LL0L
3 000 000 000 S10Z/10/60 sweibold |eiepad - Wdr 69001 96265LL0L
L 08118269 08'L18'269- 08'118'269- S10Z/10/60 sjuawsesingsig 98001 2900¥£80L
I 6L'vib'8 6LviP'e 6Lvi¥'S SL0Z/L0/60 Hsuely uj - spegd jipaid 68001 ¥ 166666666
I ZoieL VA EA 220124 S1L0Z/L0/60 Bunesadg - eouswy Jo yueg #9101 VS6LZL006EL
sjunoosay Bupsayogpjoogssed
Aumep s1eq S9¢ 09¢ |ajey anjep jayiepn anjep Jed anjep yoog sleq ._mlm‘m_ - \% juawisaaul disnd
o) sfeq Auneyw  WLA WLA juaun) aseyoing

30

23



S'E'L Jap Hodey

0L 4ud) 3 20:Z1 - 9102/20/80 ‘e)eg uny
dv
20rs oljoplod
0719582 000 0L'195'8L 1280 16'v8Y'86¥'€82 £2'86.L°L9¥'Z6Z L6'P8Y'86¥ 'S8T 1ejoL
95°S6¥‘pL 000 95°S6¥'vL £¥2°0 9L’ Lpy'psL99 08'S05°€L5°ZL 9L IpP'YSL99 1ejolqng
z6'1L 000 [4: 9% 0S€°0 05€°0 Z6'140'052 LE'¥L0'052 T6°L20'052 dyy N3O 0€Z0oL 0180024-98
G9'905 L L 000 S9'90G° L1 0S€'0 0s€'0 69'968°0L0°0F £9'v11'886°6€ 68'968'01L0'0F dyd N3O LZZ0L 0L8XXX
68°L 000 681 r0¥'0 09€°0 LL0EY'9 TL'869'G LL0EP'9 dyd NID ¥E0OL £66666666
1529’1l 000 LGer9'L 1900 0800 1SZk9'100°02 19°69€'200'0E LGZr9'1L00'02 dyd N3D GEOOL 0ZE6SLL0L
£LLE 000 ELLE LO¥'0 0SE0 81"0Z5'6£2 GLZ8P' VL 8¥ 025°6EC dyd NID EOOL 966666666
98'vET’L 000 98'vET’ L 6490 £9€°0 S8'6.8'GvZ’9 gL'seL'TIE'e S8'648'S¥2'9 dyy NID ZE00L L66666666
0ljoj)i0d pajepljosuo) pung
7199079 00’0 ¥1'990'%9 ¥SE'0 IZEVQvrL'ole £¥'262°888°612 Lz Ero'vriole |ejoqng
S9°Z00'vy 000 S9'Z00'ty 15€°0 09€°0 GZ'9E6'00L°05L 09'€€6'950°05 L S2'9€6'00L'0SL duy aNog S€eol 8166666666
SLOLL'L 000 SLOLL'L 6vE0 09E°0 6L°GSS'TLY L 98'€22'080'v BLGGS'CLY L duy aNod ¥ez0l 2166666666
S¥'890°01 000 S¥'890'01L 0S€°0 0SE’0 S#'890'01L0'GE 0E'LLL'LIO'GE S¥'890'010'GE dyd aNod £E20} Zrer00cL-98
Z6LL 000 261 0SE0 0SE°0 26°LL0'052 LE'v.20'052 26'1L20'05Z dyy aNod ZE20l F¥#80002L-98
6L 000 L6 0SE0 0S€°0 L6'LL0'0SE ZevL0'05¢ L6'1LL0'0S2 dyy aNog LEZ0L ¥6.0002.-98
09°L9F'E 000 09°Lov'E 0SE0 0SE°0 20'259'9e0'Z1 GE'ESE'6Z0TL 20'259'9e0'2L duy aNogd 62201 Pr8XXX
08'v08'Z 000 08'+08'2 0s€0 0SE0 08'¥08°25L'6 P¥'889'€SL'6 08'708'26.'6 dyy aNog 82201 POLXXX
99'8Z8 000 99'828 LSE°0 090 8¥'024'928' 8E'€S0'G28'T 8¥'02.'928'C dyd anNog 90101 9166666666
SP'S9S°L 000 SP'GoS'L GGE0 09€°0 L8 PLS'ELL Y 8IS LOE'S L8 PLS'ELL'Y dyy aNog 8001 666666666
S6°02 000 §6°02 £60°0 0800 8L°9¥9'0EE 50'892'0L2 82'9¥9'0LE dyd aNog #9001 LLEOrEBOL
spund puog pung
sBuiwiey uonaiady pauiey PIDIA a)ey ajeq anjep yoog anjep joog anjep, 1ed adA) pung # Juswisaau| disno
ysaigju| pasnipy  juoneziowy 1sa49)u) pazilenuuyjuauny fumew  Buipug Bujuuibag Buipug Aunaag

31

24

sBuluseg jsaiaju| paysnipy

anjeA yoog Buiuuibag uo plaiA
910z ‘0g aunp - gL0g ‘L aunp
- ‘ pung - pung Aq pajiog
FPEEL XL AHRDY sBujuiey jsalayu)

S61 SUNS
2840 'S 106 abs|jj0o Ajlunwwon ojuider ueg

SO)E00SSY 9 UoSIaNed

PILVIIOEEY § NODPUIALAV:



San Jacinto College Foundation
Statement of Financial Position
As of June 30, 2016

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
General Fund
Other Funds
Total Checking/5avings

Accounts Receivable
Interest Income Receivable
Other Receivable
Pledges Receivable
Special Events Receivables
Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets

Short Term Investments
Goldman Sachs
CDARS Texas Citizen Bank
The Dreyfus Family of Funds
Franklin Templeton Investments
Santander Bank Accrued Earning
Santander Bank, NA
Crocket National Bank
Capital Bank €D
Prosperity Bank

Total SIC Short Term Investments

Total Current Assets

Other Assets
Bank of America Bonds
Total Cther Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
Event Payable
Grants Payahle
Programs Payable
Endowments Payable
Scholarship Payables
Student Success Payables

Total Accounts Payable

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity

Net Assets

Net Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

1,352,781

1,352,781

254,100
32,095
286,195

1,286,846
686,657
992,150

2,654,041

577
138,045
248,199
201,834
201,179

6,405,527

8,048,503

3,005,383

3,005,383

~ 11,053,886

635
151,464
33,164
77,081
106,380
17,695

336,419

386,419

386,418

9,490,833
1,176,634

10,667,467

11,053,886

32



San Jacinto College Foundation

Statement of Activities

For the Period Ending June 30, 2016

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Contributions
Grant Confributions
Permanently Restricted
Program Sponsorship
Unrestricted
Temporarily Restricted

Total Contributions

Other Income
Special Events
Investment Income
Realized Gain / (Loss)
Unrealized Gain / (Loss)
Total Other Income

Total income

Expense
Programs
Scholarships Awarded
Grants Awarded
Programs Sponsored
Student Success Initiatives
Total Programs

Supporting Services
Management and General
Fundraising
Sponsorship Expense

Total Supporting Services

Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Other Income / Expenses

Net Other Income

2016 2015 Change
136,500 241,523 {105,023)
225,078 226,236 {1,158)
742,259 74,849 667,411

6,975 454,693 {447,718)
104,232 868,378 {764,145)

1,215,045 1,865,678 (650,634)
434,523 177,606 256,917
307,076 310,482 (3,407)
159,994 0 159,994
173,632 (370,706) 544,338

1,075,224 117,382 957,842

2,290,269 1,983,061 307,209
311,280 303,902 (7.378)
169,302 171,108 1,806
389,882 15,305 (374,578)

35,277 122,832 87,555
905,741 613,146 (292,505)
11,244 486,559 475,314
191,328 129,510 {61,818)
5,322 8,957 3,635
207,894 625,026 417,131

1,113,635 1,238,171 124,536

1,176,634 744,889 431,745

1,176,634 744 889

431,745

33



Contributions
Donors
Corporations
Foundations

Individuals
Total Donation

Employee Contributions

Various

Total Employee Contributions

Total Contributions

SAN JACINTO

COLLEGE

FounbpaTtioN

June 1, 2016 - June 30, 2016

Amount

35,181

73,000
21,700

129,881

10,940

10,940

140,821

Fund

Children's Center North, Energy Venture, Gala
Kroger, Stream LyondellBasell Scholarship
Albert & Ethel Herzstein Foundation, John S.
Dunn Foundation, Simmons Foundation, Golf
Gala, Golf, Jennifer Puryear Scholarship

Barbara Trncak Memorial Scholarship, Gala
Robert and Johana Thomas Scholarship

34



Construction Projects

As of June 30, 2016

Project

Capital Projects

Base
Budget

Budget
Adjustments

Current
Budget

Executed
Change
Orders

Encumbered

Funds

FY13-15
Expenditures |Expenditures | Expenditures

FY16

Total

Moved to
Construction in
Process

Remaining
Balance

Percent of
Budget
Encumbered/
Expensed

F15088 - NC Baseball BP Facility (cash donations) 39,600 229,586 269,186 - 2,626 420 262,719 263,139 263,139 3,421 98.73%
Sub-total 39,600 229,586 269,186 = 2,626 420 262,719 263,139 263,139 3,421 98.73%!
Repair and Renovation
F16079 - CC C42 Dorm HVAC 8,024 - 8,024 - 7,375 - - - - 650 91.90%
F16072 - NC Door Jamb Column Refinish 10,400 - 10,400 - 10,400 - - - - - 100.00%
F16060 - NC N10.230 New Offices 24,144 - 24,144 - 24,144 - - - - - 100.00%
F16084 - NC N6.133 Office Reconfiguration 2,989 - 2,989 - 2,989 - - - - - 100.00%
F16048 - SC Occup Therapy Prog S$1.231 4,176 - 4,176 - 1,676 - - - - 2,500 40.13%
F16049 - SC Occup Therapy Prog S$1.212 3,130 - 3,130 - 630 - - - - 2,500 20.13%
F16058 - SC Copy Room Renovation $S10.215 4,663 - 4,663 - 4,663 - - - - - 100.00%
F16077 - SC S6.121 Student Development 3,697 - 3,697 - 3,697 - - - - - 100.00%
F16080 - SC Chill Water Line Abatement S8 8,860 - 8,860 - 8,860 - - - - - 100.00%
F16040 - Dist Campus Roof Survey 13,095 - 13,095 - 13,095 - - - - - 100.00%
F16059 - Dist SBDC RR Remodel 1,650 - 1,650 - 150 - 1,500 1,500 - - 100.00%
F16062 - Dist Sound Masking A1.212 2,308 - 2,308 - 2,308 - - - - - 100.00%
F16073 - Dist A1 &A2 Window Film and Tinting 12,705 - 12,705 - 12,705 - - - - - 100.00%
F16075 - Dist Board Room Tables and Chairs 16,000 - 16,000 - 15,006 - - - 994 93.79%
F16076 - Dist Purchasing Suite Sound Mask 3,154 - 3,154 - 3,154 - - - - - 100.00%
F16078 - Dist A1.200c Furniture 1,816 - 1,816 - 1,816 - - - - - 100.00%
F16081 - Dist A1.114 Renovation for OGM 195,709 - 195,709 - 195,411 - - - - 298 99.85%
721101 - CC Misc 3,122 - 3,122 - 2,897 225 - 225 - - 100.00%
F16001 - CC - Other Projects 5,000 1,272 6,272 - 452 - 4,827 4,827 - 993 84.17%
F16002 - NC - Other Projects 5,000 5,000 10,000 - 2,266 - 4,971 4,971 - 2,763 72.37%
F16003 - SC - Other Projects 5,000 2,500 7,500 - - - 6,441 6,446 - 1,054 85.95%
F16004- 6 Dist - Other Projects 20,000 12,140 32,140 - 6,836 - 17,21 17,218 - 8,086 74.84%
Sub-total 354,643 20,912 375,555 - 320,530 225 34,96 35,187 - 19,837 94.72%
[Projects Substantially Complete
F16039 - NC Baseball Field Bldg Roof 2,725 41,454 44,179 - 2,725 - 40,184 40,184 - 1,270 97.13%
F16057 - NC Life Cycle Furniture VI 48,607 - 48,607 - 5,308 - 43,299 43,299 - - 100.00%
F16025 - SC Renovate $8.2002 23,82 - 23,82 - 1,755 - 22,073 22,073 - - 100.00%
F16044 - SC FFE S8.2008 56! - 3,56 - 369 - 3,194 3,194 - - 100.00%
F16046 - SC Tier 1 S8.2022 11,17 - 11,17 - 8,948 - 2,225 2,225 - - 100.00%
F15098 - Dist Admin West Bldg Parking Lot P2 6,000 106,025 112,025 - 13,866 3,000 95,159 98,159 - - 100.00%
F16030 - Dist Marketing A1.210 109,444 1,705 111,149 - 1,705 - 108,171 108,171 - 1,273 98.86%
Sub-total 205,340 149,184 354,524 - 34,676 3,000 314,305 317,305 - 2,543 99.28%
Proje osed
F15003 - CC Misc 10,000 (4,678) 5,322 - - 2,947 2,375 5,322 - - 100.00%
F16055 - CC C31 Electrical Outlets 5,955 - 5,955 - - - 5,955 5,955 - - 100.00%
F16056 - CC Evergreen VI Central Campus 97,936 4,27 102,209 - - - 102,209 102,209 - - 100.00%
F15072 - CC Frels Dividing Wall 355-361 9,700 31,49 41,193 - - 34,748 6,445 41,193 - - 100.00%
F15073 - CC Hallway Lamp Replacement 9,762 20,06 29,824 - - 29,824 - 29,824 - - 100.00%
F15083 - CC Bldg 30 Electrical Upgrades 34,847 - 34,847 - - - 34,847 34,847 - - 100.00%
F16013 - CC Ballroom Fans C14.264 43,013 (23,426) 19,587 - - - 19,587 19,587 - - 100.00%
F16016 - CC Business Center C14.204 35,427 1,608 37,035 - - - 37,035 37,035 - - 100.00%
F16022 - CC Student Center Shades 7,569 (3,628) 3,941 - - - 3,941 3,941 - - 100.00%
F16024 - CC Domrmitory Fire Alarm Devices 4,911 - 4,911 - - - 4,911 4,911 - - 100.00%
F16034 - CC Central Ballroom Storage 3,481 - 3,481 - - - 3,481 3,481 - - 100.00%
F16037 - CC C3.150/152 Renovation 350 - 350 - - - 350 350 - - 100.00%
F16050 - CC IT Relocation C1.116-117 12,596 - 12,596 - - - 12,596 12,596 - - 100.00%
F15058 - NC N8.122/126 Wall Removal 9,593 (9,293) 300 - - - 300 300 - - 100.00%
F15076 - NC Admin Suite N-7.228 55,839 (1,431) 54,408 - - 28,937 25,471 54,408 - - 100.00%
F15079 - NC Utilities Tunnel Condition 25,270 - 25,270 - - 6,680 18,590 25,270 - - 100.00%
F15097 - NC Energy Savings Project 43,226 (841) 42,385 - - 42,289 96 42,385 - - 100.00%
F16007 - NC N-1 Lamp Replacement 56,040 - 56,040 - - - 56,040 56,040 - - 100.00%
F16014 - NC N10.161 & 137 Reno 16,166 - 16,166 - - - 16,166 16,166 - - 100.00%
F15068 - SC Multi Purpose Gallery 7,910 73,921 81,831 - - 3,955 77,876 81,831 - - 100.00%
F16018 - SC S Press Box 4,500 (1,515) 2,985 - - - 2,985 2,985 - - 100.00%
F16026 - SC Renovate S8.1097 19,265 - 19,265 - - - 19,265 19,265 - - 100.00%
F16027 - SC Renovate §7.222 6,820 - 6,820 - - - 6,820 6,820 - - 100.00%
F16028 - SC Renovate S$8.2122 5,260 - 5,260 - - - 5,260 5,260 - - 100.00%
F16036 - SCW Study 6,000 (19) 5,981 - - - 5,981 5,981 - - 100.00%
F16043 - SC FFE $8.2006 3,747 - 3,747 - - - 3,747 3,747 - - 100.00%
F16045 - SC FFE $8.2010 11,618 - 11,618 - - - 11,618 11,618 - - 100.00%
F13042 - Dist Admin Campus Master Plan 1,730,000 2,629,585 4,359,585 - - 4,357,350 2,235 4,359,585 4,359,585 - 100.00%
F15071 - Dist Generation Park Analysis Update 9,170 7,870 17,040 - - 7,115 9,925 17,040 - - 100.00%
F15074 - Dist Building Envelop Standard 9,800 - 9,800 - - 4,900 4,900 9,800 - - 100.00%
F15086 - Dist Admin West Lights 104,716 3,940 108,656 - - 27,164 81,492 108,656 - - 100.00%
F15092 - Dist A1- 211 Workstation 9,600 (171) 9,429 - - 2,807 6,622 9,429 - - 100.00%
F15093 - Dist SBCD Office Renovation 6,265 54 6,419 - - 5,858 561 6,419 - - 00.00%
F15096 - Dist Office-CIO 42,410 (5,266) 37,144 - - - 37,144 37,144 - - 00.00%
F16023 - Dist Audit Sound Attenuation 7,679 11,291 18,970 - - - 18,970 18,970 - - 00.00%
F16032 - Dist ITS RFS 8,074 - 8,074 - - - 8,074 8,074 - - 00.00%
F16038 - Dist A1.200B Renovation 7,032 - 7,032 - - - 7,032 7,032 - - 00.00%
F16047 - Dist Marketing Furniture 9,345 - 9,345 - - - 9,345 9,345 - - 00.00%
F16061 - Dist Demo Bldg Simulator Classrooms 20,549 - 20,549 - - - 20,549 20,549 - - 00.00%
F16063 - Dist - Conference Table for A2.110 2,500 - 2,500 - - - 2,500 2,500 - - 00.00%
Sub-total 2,513,941 2,733,930 5,247,871 - - 4,554,574 693,297 5,247,871 4,359,585 - 00.00%
TOTALS 3,113,524 3,133,612 6,247,136 - 357,832 4,558,219 1,305,284 5,863,503 4,622,724 25,801 99.59%!




2008 Capital Improvement Program
As of June 30, 2016

Percent of
. Budget Current |Executed | Encumbered YTD Remaining Budget
Project Base Budget ) )
Adjustments Budget Change Funds Expenditures | Balance |Encumbered/
Orders Expensed
1203 - CC Anders Gym 10,398,474 (9,210,501) 1,187,973 - - 109,723 1,078,250 9.24%
1102 - CC In-Fill 47,572 1,197,962 1,245,534 - 5,181 1,196,079 44,275 96.45%
1909- CC Petrochem/Vo Tech Building - 2,169,015 2,169,015 - 1,495,593 439,922 233,500 89.23%
Sub-total 10,446,046 (5,843,523) 4,602,523 - 1,500,774 1,745,724 1,356,025 70.54%
2202 - NC Nichols Gym 4,949,996 (4,381,454) 568,542 - - 18,617 549,925 3.27%
2102 - NC In-Fill 23,086 903,178 926,264 - 1,534 858,896 65,834 92.89%
2612 - NC Plant Chiller 14,225 - 14,225 - 5,540 6,185 2,500 82.43%
2601 - NC Baseball Batting and Pitching 475,965 76,566 552,531 - 328,336 148,454 75,740 86.29%
Sub-total 5,463,272 (3,401,710) 2,061,562 - 335,410 1,032,153 693,999 66.34%
3202 - SC Smallwood Gym 6,919,331 (6,350,774) 568,557 - - 18,557 550,000 3.26%
3102 - SC In-Fill 23,086 1,324,393 1,347,479 - 5,362 970,387 371,730 72.41%
3601 - SC Softball Press Box 26,500 18,500 45,000 - 9,479 15,569 19,952 55.66%
Sub-total 6,968,917 (5,007,880) 1,961,037 - 14,841 1,004,512 941,683 51.98%
1828/2814/3817 - D DDC Network 2,190,750 494,572 2,685,322 - 26,405 2,506,789 152,128 94.33%
6601 - Generation Park 200,000 - 200,000 - - 198,344 1,656 99.17%
Program Management- 720100 - 1,202,954 1,202,954 - 38,805 570,004 594,145 50.61%
Contingency -726800 18,771,212 (10,517,844) 8,253,368 - - - 8,253,368 -
Sub-total 21,161,962 (8,820,318) 12,341,644 = 65,210 3,275,137 9,001,296 27.07%
Projects Substantially Complete
2201 - NC Lehr Library 2,022,600 12,026,576 14,049,176 - 122,120 13,313,509 613,547 95.63%
6803 - Maritime Training Facility | 18,000,000 | 8,433,236 | 26,433,236 | B 214,224 | 25,549,758 | 669,255 | 97.47%
Sub-total 20,022,600 20,459,812 40,482,412 = 336,343 38,863,267 1,282,802 96.83%
1001 - CC Primary Service Retrofit 2,774,950 1,695,228 4,470,178 - - 4,470,178 - 100.00%
1109 - CC Maintenance & Police Bldg 3,560,360 2,702,048 6,262,408 - - 6,262,408 - 100.00%
1202 - CC Davis Library 8,418,096 (155,756) 8,262,340 - - 8,262,340 - 100.00%
1217 - CC Transportation Center Buildout - 1,039,383 1,039,383 - - 1,039,383 - 100.00%
1301 - CC Building 31 Renovation - 497,887 497,887 - - 497,887 - 100.00%
1817 - CC Transportation Center 17,333,267 2,998,752 20,332,019 (137,768) - 20,332,019 - 100.00%
1818 - CC Industrial Tech Buildings 7,758,416 (3,727,679) 4,030,737 - - 4,030,737 - 100.00%
1820 - CC Paving & Drainage 10,490,274 (913,895) 9,576,379 (207,575) - 9,576,379 - 100.00%
1821 - CC Allied Health Addition 10,568,880 1,189,925 11,758,805 296,549 - 11,758,805 - 100.00%
1908 - CC Science Building 35,752,627 (148,641) 35,603,986 - - 35,603,986 - 100.00%
2401 - NC Outdoor Lighting 13,472 785 14,257 - - 14,257 - 100.00%
2402 - NC MET Infrastructure N Library 851,510 (792,067) 59,443 - - 59,443 - 100.00%
2901 - NC Paving & Drainage 3,142,449 (435,395) 2,707,054 (15,714) - 2,707,054 - 100.00%
2903 - NC Student Success Center 11,093,580 801,084 11,894,664 (499,063) - 11,894,664 - 100.00%
2906 - NC Science & Allied Health 42,240,000 (6,014,982) 36,225,018 - - 36,225,018 - 100.00%
3201 - SC Parker Williams Library 2,449,600 369,372 2,818,972 - - 2,818,972 - 100.00%
3401 - SC Traffic Signal Relocation 75,988 (25,773) 50,215 - - 50,215 - 100.00%
3402 - SC Water and Electrical Upgrade 29,305 (5,044) 24,261 - - 24,261 - 100.00%
3903 - SC Student Success Center 8,220,000 2,074,228 10,294,228 109,650 - 10,294,228 - 100.00%
3905/3911 - SC Paving & Drainage 2,747,068 7,891,993 10,639,061 - - 10,639,061 - 100.00%
3906 - SC Mechanical Upgrades 1,252,855 (558,604) 694,251 (19,524) - 694,251 - 100.00%
3907 - SC MEP |Infrastructure 4,381,500 283,388 4,664,888 - - 4,664,888 - 100.00%
*3908 - SC Primary Service at New Site 809,625 (809,625) - - - - - -|
3909 - SC Science & Allied Health 53,868,525 (6,251,379) 47,617,145 - - 47,617,145 - 100.00%
6003 - D Graphics 900,000 724,824 1,624,824 - - 1,624,824 - 100.00%
6902 - D Campus Mechanical Upgrades 1,869,857 518,564 2,388,421 (3,767) - 2,388,421 - 100.00%
6007 - D Furniture Consultant 335,000 (335,000) - - - - - -
Sub-total 230,937,204 2,613,620 233,550,823 (477,212) - 233,550,823 = 100.00%
TOTALS 295,000,000 - 295,000,000 (477,212) 2,252,579 279,471,617 13,275,804 95.50%
*Funds reallocated to other projects.
Fiscal Year 2008 CIP Expenditure 136,403
Fiscal Year 2009 CIP Expenditure 3,442,083
Fiscal Year 2010 CIP Expenditure 24,831,811
Fiscal Year 2011 CIP Expenditure 64,513,921
Fiscal Year 2012 CIP Expenditure 89,492,069
Fiscal Year 2013 CIP Expenditure 41,378,480
Fiscal Year 2014 CIP Expenditure 17,693,910
Fiscal Year 2015 CIP Expenditure 26,723,926
Fiscal Year 2016 CIP Expenditure 11,259,014

Total CIP Expenditure 279,471,617




2015 Bond - San Jac Tomorrow Capital Improvement Program

June 30, 2016

Percent of
. Budget Current Executed | Encumbered YTD Remaining Budget
Project Base Budget . .
Adjustments Budget Change Funds Expenditures Balance Encumbered/
Orders Expensed

1601 - CC Petro-Chemical Center 52,450,000 - 52,450,000 - 17,068 36,932 52,396,000 0.10%
1602 - CC Welcome Center 16,600,000 - 16,600,000 - - - 16,600,000 -
1603 - CC Class Room Building 47,155,000 - 47,155,000 - - - 47,155,000 -
1604 - CC Central Data Closets 2,444,000 - 2,444,000 - - - 2,444,000 -
1605 - CC Central Access Security 1,852,000 - 1,852,000 - - - 1,852,000 -
1606 - CC Frels Demo 1,153,000 - 1,153,000 - - - 1,153,000 -
1607 - CC Davison Building Reno 14,970,000 - 14,970,000 - - - 14,970,000 -
1608 - CC McCollum Center Reno 24,685,000 - 24,685,000 - - - 24,685,000 -
1609 - CC McCollum North Reno 2,535,000 - 2,535,000 - - - 2,535,000 -
1610 - CC Ball Demo 1,725,000 - 1,725,000 - - - 1,725,000 -
1611 - CC Anderson Demo 2,654,000 - 2,654,000 - - - 2,654,000 -
1612 - CC Stadium and Track Demo 174,000 - 174,000 - - - 174,000 -
1613 - CC Central DDC Network 1,160,000 - 1,160,000 - - - 1,160,000 -
1614 - CC Central Plant Upgrades 1,160,000 - 1,160,000 - - - 1,160,000 -
Sub-total 170,717,000 - 170,717,000 - 17,068 36,932 170,663,000 0.03%

)
2601 - NC Cosmetology/Culinary Center 22,845,000 - 22,845,000 - - - 22,845,000 -
2602 - NC North Data Closets 915,000 - 915,000 - - - 915,000 -
2603 - NC Chiller Plant Replacement 1,450,000 - 1,450,000 - - - 1,450,000 -
2604 - NC Lehr Library Demo 650,000 - 650,000 - - - 650,000 -
2605 - NC North Access/Security 877,000 - 877,000 - - - 877,000 -
2606 - NC Wheeler Reno 14,300,000 - 14,300,000 - - - 14,300,000 -
2607 - NC Brightwell Reno 6,628,000 - 6,628,000 - - - 6,628,000 -
2608 - NC Spencer Reno 13,000,000 - 13,000,000 - - - 13,000,000 -
2609 - NC North DDC Network 580,000 - 580,000 - - - 580,000 -
2610 - NC Underground Utility Tunnel 11,600,000 - 11,600,000 - - - 11,600,000 -
2611 - NC 24 Acres Wetlands Mitigation 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 -
2612 - NC Uvalde Expansion 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 -
Sub-total 79,845,000 - 79,845,000 - - - 79,845,000 -

0]
3601 - SC Engineering/Technology Center 28,400,000 - 28,400,000 - 110,000 - 28,290,000 0.39%
3602 - SC Cosmetology Center 16,213,000 - 16,213,000 - - - 16,213,000 -
3603 - SC Longenecker Reno 22,555,000 - 22,555,000 - - - 22,555,000 -
3604 - SC South Data Closets 765,000 - 765,000 - - - 765,000 -
3605 - SC South Primary electrical Upgrade 5,800,000 - 5,800,000 - - - 5,800,000 -
3606 - SC South Access/ Security 599,000 - 599,000 - - - 599,000 -
3607 - SC South HW/CW Relocation 10,266,000 - 10,266,000 - - - 10,266,000 -
3608 - SC South Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 1,160,000 - 1,160,000 - - - 1,160,000 -
3609 - SC Fire House Expansion 5,585,000 - 5,585,000 - - - 5,585,000 -
3610 - SC Jones Reno 13,803,000 - 13,803,000 - - - 13,803,000 -
3611 - SC Bruce Student Center Reno 10,400,000 - 10,400,000 - - - 10,400,000 -
3612 - SC Auto Body Demo 312,000 - 312,000 - - - 312,000 -
3613 - SC South DDC Network 580,000 - 580,000 - - - 580,000 -
Sub-total 116,438,000 - 116,438,000 - 110,000 - 116,328,000 0.09%

6603 - MC Maritime Expansion 28,000,000 - 28,000,000 - - - 28,000,000

Sub-total 28,000,000 - 28,000,000 - - - 28,000,000 -

Ad

6602 - College Development 30,000,000 - 30,000,000 - - - 30,000,000
TOTALS] 425,000,000 | - 425,000,000 | - 127,068 | 36,932 | 424,836,000 | 0.04%
Fiscal Year 2016 CIP Expenditure 36,932
Total CIP Expenditure 36,932




2015 Revenue Bond

As of June 30, 2016

. Budget Executed Change | Encumbered YTD Remaining Percent of Budget
Project Base Budget . Current Budget .
Adjustments Orders Funds Expenditures | Balance | Encumbered/Expensed
North - CIT
North CIT - 904605-722909 47,591,645 - 47,591,645 - 25,116,323 14,129,507 8,345,815 82.46%
Contingency (726900) 2,408,355 - 2,408,355 - - - 2,408,355 -
Sub-total 50,000,000 - 50,000,000 - 25,116,323 14,129,507 10,754,170 78.49%

38




2008 Bond Program
Master Schedule

ID |Task Name Start 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 20
atr2|atr3latr4|atr1/atr2|atr3|atr4 atr 1/atr2/Qtr 3| Qtr 4 |atr 1]Qtr 2/ Qtr 3/ Qtr 4 | Qtr 1/Qtr 2| Qtr 3| Qtr 4 Qtr 1| Qtr 2/ Qtr 3| Qtr 4 |Qtr 1] Qtr 2/ Qtr 3/ Qtr 4| Qtr 1/Qtr 2| Qtr 3| Qtr 4/ Qtr 1] Qtr 2/ Qtr 3/ Qtr 4 |Qtr 1/Qtr 2| Qtr 3] Qtr 4 Qtr 1/ Qtr 2
1 Central Campus Wed 6/4/08
2 1820 - Paving & Drainage Mon 12/1/08 | {
8 1817 - Transportation Center Wed 6/4/08 | {
15 1818 - Industrial Technology I Mon 2/1/10 I {
25 1109 - Maintenance/Police Mon 6/6/11 I i
39 1301 - Building 31 Mon 6/6/11 I i
53 1821 - Allied Health Sun 3/1/09 I {
67 1908 - Science Building Wed 7/1/09 I {
84 1001 - Primary Service Retrofit Mon 10/18/10 I |
94 1202 - Davis Library Mon 1/9/12 I i
108 1203 - Anders Gym Mon 9/21/15 & ¢
121 |North Campus Sun 6/1/08) @ v
122 2901 - Pavement & Drainage Sun 6/1/08 I |
128 2903 - Student Success Center Mon 2/2/09 |
142 2906 - Science & Allied Health Wed 7/1/09 I |
156 2201 - Lehl’ Library Mon 6/3/13 —
170 2202 - Nichols Gym Mon 9/21/15 & 4
184 South Campus Thu 1/1/09 —
185 3903 - Student Success Center Mon 2/2/09 I i
199 3905 - Paving & Drainage Sun 3/1/09 I i
212 3906 - Mechanical Upgrades Thu 1/1/09 i
218 3907 - MEP Infrastructure Mon 3/1/10 I i
224 3909 - Science & Allied Health Mon 6/29/09 I i
238 3201 - Parker Williams Library Mon 1/9/12 I {
252 3202 - Smallwood Gym Mon 9/21/15 L 4 ¢
266 |District Fri 8/1/08
267 Graphics Mon 11/30/09 I {
271 DDC Network Thu 1/1/09 {
274 6902 - Campus Mechanical Upgrades Fri 8/1/08 I {
280 6803 - Maritime Center Mon 10/12/09 I |

Tue 7/26/16

Page 1

39




SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT
Building Committee Meeting

August 2, 2016
Members Present: Marie Flickinger, Brad Hance, Dan Mims, Keith Sinor
Members Absent: None
Others Trustees Present: None
Others Present: James Braswell, Bill Dowell, Jessica Garcia, Allatia Harris, Mike Harris,

IL.

III.

Iv.

Joe Hebert, Brenda Hellyer, Bryan Jones, Ann Kokx-Templet, Chet
Lewis, Larry Logsdon, Janet Slocum

The meeting was called to order at 4:17 p.m. by committee chair, Marie Flickinger.

Roll Call of Committee Members by Marie Flickinger
a. Dan Mims, present.
b. Brad Hance, present.
c. Keith Sinor, present.
d. Other Trustees present: None.

Approval of Minutes from the June 21, 2016 Building Committee Meeting

a. Marie Flickinger presented the minutes of the June 21, 2016, Building Committee
meeting. The minutes were approved as presented. A motion was made by Brad Hance
to accept the minutes as presented, seconded by Keith Sinor.

Recommended Projects and Delivery Methods which will provide the best value to the College

a. Approval of Engineering Simulator for Maritime

i.  The Kongsberg K-Sim Engine Room Full Mission Trainer will be used to teach
courses and offer expanded assessments for the Coast Guard working mariners.
This simulator is required to meet training and assessment changes that will be
effective January 2017. Without the simulator, the College will not be able to meet
industry training needs in this area. San Jacinto College will be the first and only
maritime training center in the Gulf Coast to offer engine room simulation training.
The expenditure for this purchase is $697,000 and will be funded by the 2008 bond
program. Purchasing now will allow for delivery by January 2017. It was noted
that the space for the simulator was anticipated and reserved during construction,
and there is a lab space within the Maritime Center for the Simulator. Question
about the classes and cost were discussed. Chet Lewis indicated that revenues of
approximately $400,000 annually are projected. The maritime construction budget
in the 2008 Bond Program has approximately $400,000 remaining to cover a
portion of the cost, and the remainder of the purchase would be funded from the
2008 Bond Contingency.

b. Approval of Purchase Data Networking Equipment
i.  This purchase will replace aging data networking equipment on all the campuses,
which have an expected life span of seven years. Last update was in 2010.
The estimated expenditure for this request is $3,100,000. This expenditure will
be funded by 2008 Bond Contingency.

40



Building Committee Minutes
August 2, 2016
Page 2

V.  Project Updates
a. Construction Projects - Operating Funds
The construction report now shows what projects have been substantially
completed but have not closed. We have worked 129 R&R projects this year.

b. 2008 Bond Program — Financial Report
Mr. Lewis pointed out the Maritime Center still has the road and other change
order items factored into the budgeted amount shown on the report.

c. 2015 Bond Program — Financial Report
Reviewed.

d. 2015 Revenue Bond — Financial Report
North Campus Center for Industrial Technology

e. 2008 Bond Program - Master Schedule
Reviewed.

f.  Other Concerns —
J.E. Dunn and the related contractors are working to address the leakage that is
occurring at the South Campus Science building.

g. Project Updates

i. Project 1909 — Petrochemical, Energy, & Technology Center
Currently working through schematic design and validation of programing with
industry partners. Also, running parallel to this is the development of the campus
master site plan. Allatia Harris added that the curriculum and how instruction is
being delivered are being re-evaluated. Working with industry has proved to be
valuable and is helping to build the best building possible for this program.
Evaluations of engineering proposals for designing the process plant/lab will
begin soon.

ii. Project 2201- North Library
There are some warranty items and some sound issues identified by the
occupants. The construction team is addressing noise concerns. The proposed
solution is to install insulation on top of ceiling grids and walls.

iii. Project 2601 - North Baseball Field
We are making progress and will complete within the next four to five weeks.

iv. Project 2909 - North Campus Center for Industrial Technology
The dry in date is August 31, and we are moving forward. Project has been
impacted by rain.

v. Project 6803 - Maritime Technology and Training Center

The change order with the issues discussed in prior meetings are being addressed.
Once the purchase orders are issued we will begin work.

41



Building Committee Minutes
August 2, 2016
Page 3

vi. Bond Program Management Contract
Dr. Hellyer wanted the Board members to know that the contract with AECOM
was sent to them this morning and they will look it over and get back with us.

vii. Other Concerns — A question was asked about roofing concerns at the North
Center for Industrial Technology. Mr. Jones explained that the issue being
reviewed is how the roof terminates over the edge of the building. Our envelope
consultant and Architect recommend different methods. This is being evaluated
and a decision will be made as to the best course of action to assure the building
is not compromised.

VI.  Facilities Measures & Reports
a. Quality Assurance metrics are included in materials distributed.

VII.  Adjournment — The meeting was adjourned at 5:00 p.m.

42



San Jacinto College District
Finance Committee Meeting
Minutes
August 2, 2016

Members Present: Dan Mims, John Moon, Ruede Wheeler, and Larry Wilson

Members Absent: None

Other Trustees Present: Marie Flickinger and Keith Sinor

Others Present:

Lori Barbay, Brenda Hellyer, Mini Izaguirre, Chet Lewis, and Linda Torres

I.  The meeting was called to order at 5:09 p.m. by Ruede Wheeler.

a.

Roll call of the Committee Members
i. John Moon, present.
ii. Dan Mims, present.
iii. Larry Wilson, present.
iv. Acknowledged that Trustees Marie Flickinger and Keith Sinor were present.

II.  Approval of Minutes from the May 24, 2016, Finance Committee Meeting

a.

Dr. Wheeler presented the minutes from the May 24, 2016, Finance Committee Meeting.
A motion was made by Mr. Wilson, seconded by Mr. Moon to accept the minutes as
presented.

II.  Review and Discuss Internal Audit Grants Compliance Annual Report

a.

Ms. Torres discussed and reviewed the findings of the Audit Grants Compliance Report.
There was $40 million in active grants as of January 31, 2016, of which 74 percent was
reviewed in the audit. Grant agreements were reviewed to be sure the College was in
compliance.

There were only two issues noted: (1) It is recommended that a comprehensive grant sub-
recipient monitoring program be developed for each of the current agreements; and (2)
Two current grants are behind on spending their budgeted allotment of funds, placing the
College at risk of having to return unspent grants funds to the granting agency.

IV.  Review and Discuss Internal Audit Veterans Affairs Student Accounts Report

a.

Dr. Hellyer informed the committee that on February 25, 2016, the College received a
hotline complaint from the State Auditor’s Office (SAO). The overall concern noted in
this hotline compliant was that the College’s Aeronautical Technology department had
mismanaged Veteran’s Affairs (VA) funds. In order to investigate the points addressed
in the complaint, Internal Audit was involved in a review of the processes related to VA
aeronautical funds. While Internal Audit did not find any evidence to substantiate several
of the claims in the hotline compliant, the review identified internal process issues related
to how refunds are initiated and processed back to the VA, as well as the overall
reconciliation of student accounts. A reply was sent to SAO on May 23, 2016, and to-
date no response has been received from them. The reply stated that based on the review,
the College has identified internal process issues related to how refunds are initiated and
processed back to the VA. While these process issues do not appear to be deliberate, the
College is working diligently to clear up outstanding account refunds and to streamline
internal processes that have created these delays. The College will continue to work
through these accounts and processes until all the issues identified are addressed.
Ms. Torres shared the results of the audit:

i. There was lack of ownership for “out process” of flight students.

ii. There was lack of communication and follow-up between the departments
involved in “out process” flight students, as well as the reconciliation process of
all student accounts.

iii. The manual process of utilizing spreadsheets between the Business Office, 43
Veterans Student Success Center, and Accounts Receivables created a situation



Finance Committee Minutes
August 2, 2016

Page 2

in which some accounts remain unreconciled.

iv. The Accounts Receivable department has communicated that there continues to
be outstanding balances on students that need to be investigated. These accounts
are for all VA students not just those students in the flight program.

v. There are issues with a lack of completion related to flight program students.
These issues have evolved over the last several years due to the leadership in the
Aeronautical Department and the way this program has been operating.

vi. Currently the flight provider invoices do not contain enough detail for the
campus business office to accurately track the funds by course reference number.
This issue, along with how students have been allowed to progress through the
flight program, has led to situations in which students have been allowed to use
VA funds intended for the next set of courses in order to complete prior-term
courses.

vii. The Veterans Student Success Centers need to re-evaluate all processes and
procedures as it relates to certifying VA benefits.

viii. Some flight students have accounts receivable balances but have been allowed to
have these holds removed in order to register for class. This has created a
situation in which students are registering for courses while they still have
outstanding balances for prior semesters.

ix. Dr. Hellyer explained to the committee that based on VA changes, the College
intends to do a teach out of the students currently in the aviation program and
then reassess the viability of the program. The VA has made changes to the
private flight requirements, and it appears it may not be feasible to maintain the
programs. One of the requirements is to own or lease airplanes for training. Dr.
Hellyer asked Van Wigginton and his team to assess and determine employer’s
needs.

V.  Review and Discuss Internal Audit Child Care Centers Follow-Up Audit

a.

Ms. Torres discussed the final Child Care Centers Follow-Up Audit dated June 14, 2016.
The original report was dated February 21, 2012, at which time there were nine corrective
action plans (CAPs) noted. On March 27, 2015, a follow-up audit noted that of the nine
original CAPs, five were complete, two were partially completed and two were
incomplete.

The final follow-up audit performed on June 14, 2016, noted that all CAPs have been
addressed and resolved.

VI.  Review and Discuss the Investment Policy V-O

a.

b.

Mr. Lewis informed the committee that the Public Funds Investment Act requires that the
College’s Investment Policy be reviewed by the committee annually. There are no
changes at this time, and the College’s Investment Policy complies with State laws.

This will be an agenda action item on the August 15, 2016, Board of Trustees Meeting.

VII.  Review and Discuss Proposed Budget for 2016-2017

a.

b.

Dr. Hellyer informed the committee that they would receive a draft of the budget no later
than Monday, August 8, 2016.

Mr. Lewis reviewed the Proposed Budget 2016-2017 handout with the committee. There
is no change in State revenue for fiscal year 2017, as this is the second year of the
biennium.

The sources of revenue comparison breakdown indicated an increase in total revenue for
fiscal year 2017. Fiscal year 2017 total revenue is $264,066,509, and fiscal year 2016 is
$252,375,961; a difference of $11,690,548 or a 4.63 percent increase.

Other highlights of the proposed budget that were discussed included: 1) Revenue
assumptions (tuition and fees, property tax, and interest income), revenue sources,
expense comparison, major expense assumptions, expense assumptions, and breakdown



Finance Committee Minutes
August 2, 2016
Page 3

of budget by manager.
e. The approval of the budget will be an action item on the agenda for the Board of Trustees
Meeting on August 15, 2016.

VIII.  Review and Discuss Potential Bond Refinancing Update
a. Mr. Lewis informed the committee that current market conditions make it a good time to
consider refinancing bonds. He will be speaking with the rating agencies later in the
week to discuss options available to the College with pricing later in August around the
17" or 18", The College could achieve savings as much as $7 to $8 million.

IX.  Adjournment 6:16 p.m.

45



Action Item “IX”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016

Consideration of Approval of Amendment to the 2015-2016 Budget

for Restricted Revenue and Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve an amendment to the 2015-
2016 budget for restricted revenue and expenses related to grants.

BACKGROUND

Federal, state, and local grants may require amendments for receipt of newly awarded grants or
changes to existing grants. These amendments should be processed in a timely manner in order
to provide the access to funding to meet the objectives set forth within the grant requirements.
This budget amendment request includes the additions to restricted revenues and restricted
expenses as a result of new awards and changes to existing grants received during the month of
July 2016.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

Approval of the budget amendment will allow the College’s staff to implement the programs in
accordance with the requirements of funded award amounts.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

Restricted revenues and restricted expenses will each be increased by $250,592, so the net
impact on the College budget is zero.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The Office of Grants Management provides continuous monitoring of grant operations, which
are included in the annual financial report to the Board of Trustees.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1- Budget Amendments-08-15-16
Attachment 2- Grant Detail-08-15-16

RESOURCE PERSONNEL
Chet Lewis 281-998-6306 chet.lewis@sjcd.edu
Michael Lee Moore 281-998-6162 michael.moore@sjcd.edu

46


mailto:chet.lewis@sjcd.edu
mailto:michael.moore@sjcd.edu

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT
Federal, State, and Local Grant Amendments
August 15, 2016

Amount
Debit

Fund Org. Account Prog. (Credit)
U.S. Department of Education TRiO program - Talent Search IV (Year 1) (New Grant)
Federal Grant Revenue 538429 56700 554100 110000 (239,997)
Non-Instr Labor - Staff 538429 56700 612000 460913 140,344
Benefits 538429 56700 650000 460913 39,656
Supplies 538429 56700 711000 460913 5,600
Staff Travel 538429 56700 721210 460913 3,850
Student Travel 538429 56700 721310 460913 42,000
Contractual Svcs - Printing 538429 56700 731330 460913 2,000
Contractual Svcs - Mailing 538429 56700 731340 460913 1,000
Indirect Costs 538429 56700 731500 620909 3,547
Telecommunications - Cell Phones 538429 56700 761520 460913 2,000
U.S. Small Business Administration / University of Houston - Small Business Development

Center (SBDC) FY 2016 (Additional Funds)

Federal Grant Revenue 535908 56700 554100 110000 (10,595)
Construction - Contractor 535908 56700 797004 390963 10,595

Net Increase (Decrease)

Note: Credits to revenues are increases and credits to expenses are decreases.
Conversely, debits to revenue are decreases and debits to expenses are increases.

New Grant and Additional Funding Summary by Agency:

U.S. Department of Education $ 239,997
U.S. Small Business Administration 10,595
$ 250,592

Attachment 1- Budget Amendments-08-15-16

47



August 15, 2016 Board Book — Grant Amendments Detail List

U.S. Department of Education TRiO program - Talent Search IV (Year 1) (New Grant)

The Talent Search program identifies and assists individuals from disadvantaged backgrounds
who have the potential to succeed in higher education. The program provides academic, career,
and financial counseling to its participants and encourages them to graduate from high school,
and continue on to and complete their postsecondary education. The program publicizes the
availability of financial aid and assists participants with the postsecondary application process.
Talent Search also encourages persons who have not completed educational programs at the
secondary or postsecondary level to enter or reenter and complete postsecondary education. The
goal of the five-year Talent Search program is to increase the number of youths from
disadvantaged backgrounds to complete high school and enroll in and complete their
postsecondary education. The grant program requires participating institutions to reapply once
every five years. This is year one of a five-year cycle.

U.S. Small Business Administration / University of Houston - Small Business Development
Center (SBDC) FY 2016 (Additional Funds)

Small Business Development Centers provide a vast array of technical assistance to small
businesses and aspiring entrepreneurs. By supporting business growth, sustainability and
enhancing the creation of new businesses entities, SBDC’s foster local and regional economic
development through job creation and retention. As a result of the no cost, extensive, one-on-one
business advising and other specialized services SBDC clients receive, the program remains one
of the nation’s largest small business assistance programs in the federal government. The San
Jacinto College SBDC is supported by the SBA and state funds in a one-to-one match. Itis a
part of a 32-county network centered at the University of Houston. These additional funds are to
be spent renovating the SBDC office in the Clear Lake Area Chamber of Commerce.

Attachment 2- Grant Detail-08-15-16

48



Action Item “X”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016

Consideration of Approval of Revisions to the Strategic Plan and
Approval of the 2016 — 2017 Annual Priorities for San Jacinto College

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve revisions to the College’s
Strategic Plan and approve the 2016 — 2017 Annual Priorities for San Jacinto College.

BACKGROUND

The Board of Trustees approved the College’s Strategic Plan for 2010 through 2013 on
September 13, 2010. The Strategic Plan was extended through 2015 on August 5, 2013.
Revisions were made to the plan and it was updated to cover 2015 — 2018 on June 1, 2015.
This recommendation modifies the Strategic Plan based on the College’s focus on Pathways
and the continuous evolution of the College’s annual work. The initial Strategic Plan was
developed based on several planning retreats, an environmental scan, data reviews, and
significant feedback from the college community. Revisions have been made to the Strategic
Plan to better align with the changing educational and legislative landscape impacting the
work of the College. The Strategic Plan has guided the annual priorities and budget
allocation processes. The focus has been on advancing the strategies required to achieve the
College’s five Strategic Goals of: Student Success, P-16 Pipeline, Workforce and Economic
Development, Our People, and Continuous Improvement.

The Strategic Plan also includes five underlying assumptions that relate to continuing the
one-college alignment; optimizing resources; embracing institutional research; aligning
facilities, programming, and technologies; and active communication. These assumptions
should be considered as all decisions related to the strategic plan and annual priorities are
considered.

The Strategic Plan has been an evolving and working document. Over the past years,
strategies have been modified to reflect emphasis and alignment with critical areas such as
Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) and Workforce and
Economic Development. Strategies have been updated in the current version to better align
with the College’s Pathways work.

In prior years, the Board of Trustees approved detailed annual priorities and in some cases
operational goals. These priorities were largely developed by the Strategic Leadership Team
(SLT) and were quite detailed. For 2014-2015, five annual priorities were developed and
reviewed with the Board of Trustees on April 28, 2014. For 2016 — 2017, six annual
priorities are recommended. These six priorities have been reviewed with the Strategic
Leadership Communication Council (SLCC), which consists of approximately 150 leaders
throughout the College including department chairs, directors, deans, and various other
leadership levels across all instructional, support, and functional areas. The SLT members
have developed and will work with their respective members of the SLCC to determine the
action plans to implement these priorities.

49



Action Item “X”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016

Consideration of Approval of Revisions to the Strategic Plan and
Approval of the 2016 — 2017 Annual Priorities for San Jacinto College

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

This action will adopt revisions to the 2018 Strategic Plan including wording changes to the
descriptors of the strategic goals and strategy changes. Most significantly, the changes
reflected a focus on the next evolution of the College’s student success agenda focused on
pathways and eliminating barriers for students.

The Board’s formal approval of the 2016-2017 annual priorities will allow the SLT, SLCC,
and employees throughout the College to continue the implementation of the actions and
related work plans for fiscal year 2016-2017. The annual priorities will align the work of the
employees with the strategic plan and will guide the development of individual performance
plans for all full-time employees.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The 2016-2017 budget has been developed to allocate resources to advance the annual
priorities and strategic plan of the College. The SLT is critically aware that some areas will
require additional resources and is committed to repurposing the budget for the current and
future years to accomplish this.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

Regular monitoring will occur with the Strategic Leadership Team and periodic updates will
be presented to the Board of Trustees.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 — 2016-2018 Strategic Plan including Strategic Goals, One College Vision,
Underlying Assumptions, and Strategies

Attachment 2 — 2016-2017 Annual Priorities

Attachment 3 — Vision to Action to Results Diagram

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Brenda Hellyer 281-998-6100 brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu

50


mailto:kenneth.lynn@sjcd.edu

Attachment 1

C SAN JACINTO
"COLLEGE

2016 - 2018 Strategic Plan

Note: The Strategic Plan (goals, strategies, and underlying assumptions) for San Jacinto College is a living and guiding
tool. The strategic plan was developed for 2010-2013, and revised for 2013-2015. The Strategic Plan was updated for
2015-2018 and approved by the Board of Trustees on June 1, 2015. Additional modifications were approved by the Board
of Trustees on August 15, 2016.

The College Strategic Goals

1. Student Success

2. P-16 pipeline

3. Workforce and Economic Development
4. Our People

5. Continuous Improvement

Student Success - San Jacinto College intentionally provides high quality educational programs and support services to
ensure our students explore, define, and achieve their educational and career goals. We are dedicated to addressing the
challenges of all students, from those in college preparatory courses to those in.Honors courses and for those in credit and
non-credit pathways. We will connect our students to the appropriate college resources and support services, along with
providing a supportive learning environment based on the commitment of our dedicated and quality faculty and staff
members. We will provide innovative methods of course delivery, teaching practices, and delivery times. Our progress,
focused on creating equity and closing achievement gaps for our diverse student body, will be evidenced by data.

P-16 Pipeline - San Jacinto College will take an active role in supporting the P-16 (preschool through grade 16) pipeline
throughout our service area in an effort to create career and educational pathways, thus providing for a sustainable
community. We will create seamless transitions among levelsand institutions throughout the pipeline and will motivate
learners to expand their educational aspirations. We will look for innovative methods and partnerships to facilitate the
participation and achievement of the diverse populations of our communities.

Workforce and Economic Development - San Jacinto College will provide innovative and relevant solutions that
strengthen our region's economy and workforce competiveness. Our career and technical education programs will respond
to employer and employee training needs and will provide pathways for employment opportunities and advancement. We
will pursue new training opportunities in emerging growth areas through active business and industry partnerships.

Our People - San Jacinto College is committed to recruiting, developing, and retaining quality and diverse employees
who are passionate about our educational mission. To meet the needs of our communities, the College requires
exceptional levels of performance, achievement, and teamwork. Through a commitment to professional development and
learning, the College assists employees in expanding their knowledge, creativity, and capabilities. Each faculty member,
staff member, and administrator has a responsibility to be accountable for his or her behaviors and job performance,
which requires a system that clearly defines expectations, responsibilities, accomplishments, and recognitions. We are
intentional in the development of effective leaders throughout the College; we realize they are the foundation for the
college's innovative response to challenges and opportunities.

Continuous Improvement - San Jacinto College is committed to a continuous improvement process in all areas and
aspects of the College. We will utilize a plan, do, check, act quality model of execution and measurement to assess needed
changes. Continuous improvement is an ongoing and evolving effort to improve and align programs, services, resources,
and processes of the College.

51



Attachment 1

N - 1 Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11 pt, Bold \

'COLLEGE

2016 - 2018 Strategic Plan

Note: The Strategic Plan (goals, strategies, and underlying assumptions) for San Jacinto College is a living and guiding
tool. The strategic plan was developed for 2010-2013, and revised for 2013-2015. The Strategic Plan was updated for
2015-2018 and approved by the Board of Trustees on June 1, 2015. Additional modifications were approved by the Board
of Trustees on August 15, 2016.

The College Strategic Goals

1. Student Success

2. P-16 pipeline

3. Workforce and Economic Development
4. Our People

5. Continuous Improvement

Student Success - San Jacinto College will-prevideintentionally provides high quality educational programs and support
services to ensure our students that-will-inerease-the-oppertanity-forstudents-to-explore, define, and reachachieve their

educational and career goals. We are dedicated to addressing the challenges of all students, from those in college
preparatory courses to those in Honors courses: and for those in credit and non-credit pathways. We will connect our

students to the appropriate college resources and support services, along with providing a supportive learning environment
based on the commitment of our dedicated and quality faculty and staff members. We will provide innovative methods of

course delivery, teaching practices, and delivery times. Our progress, focused on creating equity and closing achievement

gaps for our diverse student body, will be evidenced by data.

P-16 Pipeline —- San Jacinto College will take an active role in supporting the P-16 (preschool through grade 16) pipeline
throughout our service area in an effort to create career and educational pathways; thus providing for a sustainable
community. We will-strive-te create seamless transitions among levels and institutions throughout the pipeline and will
motivate learners to expand their educational aspirations. We will look for innovative methods and partnerships to
facilitate the participation and achievement of the diverse populations of our communities.

Workforce and Economic Development - San Jacinto College will provide innovative and relevant solutions that
strengthen our region's economy and workforce competiveness. Our career and technical education programs will respond
to employer and employee training needs and will provide pathways for employment opportunities and advancement. We
will pursue new training opportunities in emerging growth areas through active business and industry partnerships.

Our People — San Jacinte College is committed to recruiting, developing, and retaining quality and diverse employees
who are passionate about our educational mission. To meet the needs of our communities, the College requires
exceptional levels of performance, achievement, and teamwork. Through a commitment to professional development and
learning, the College assists employees in expanding their knowledge, creativity, and capabilities. Each faculty member,
staff member, and administrator has a responsibility to be accountable for his or her behaviors and job performance,
which requires a system that clearly defines expectations, responsibilities, accomplishments, and recognitions. We are
intentional in the development of effective leaders throughout the College; we realize they are the foundation for the
college's innovative response to challenges and opportunities.

Continuous Improvement— - San Jacinto College is committed to a continuous improvement process in all areas and

aspects of the College. We will utilize a plan, do, check, act quality model of execution and measurement to assess needed

52



Attachment 1

changes. Continuous improvement is an ongoing and evolving effort to improve and align programs, services, resources,

O

and processes of the College.

53



Attachment 1

SAN JACINTO

@ COLLEGE

ONE COLLEGE VISION
Approved by the Board of Trustees on November 2, 2009

San Jacinto College District operates as one college with multiple campuses, centers, programs, and
services. Common policies and procedures and consistent business practices guide the organization. The
synergy is apparent. Concern is for the whole. Competition between the individual units, departments, or
functions is not part of our values. Decisions and actions are data informed answering the ultimate question,
“How does this improve student success?” We celebrate our accomplishments and successes together.

As one college, we embrace learning. All members of the college community are responsible for student
success. Those in the classroom facilitate learning, while maintaining the highest standards of quality. We
all share the responsibility to provide students with the best environment and support available so that
students can concentrate on learning. We are charged with ensuring excellence in everything that we do
and addressing challenges directly.

The focus of the San Jacinto College Strategic Leadership Team (SLT) is on the strategic direction of
the institution. Each member of the SLT serves in multiple leadership roles but the priority role must always
be to the college-wide focus, “What is best for the San Jacinto College community as a whole?”

The focus of the campus leaders is to foster teaching and learning and student success. The campus leaders
endeavor to identify new ways and programs to serve the community and to promote creative methods to
engage faculty and staff. The campus leaders challenge the status quo, promote academic excellence, and
ensure consistent quality and service levels among campus operations.

The focus of the district leaders is to provide support services to the campuses and to assist campus
leadership in facilitating the teaching and learning enterprise. The district leaders are partners with campus
leaders in creating solutions and establishing a climate of continuous improvement. All services provided
to the campuses are based on mutually agreed upon service levels and requirements.

The focus of the chancellor is to develop, in conjunction with the Board of Trustees, the college’s external
and internal strategic vision. The chancellor stimulates creativity, fosters opportunities for success, and
communicates the shared vision.

All executive leaders test the robustness of assumptions and logic while exhibiting a college-wide
perspective and understanding of issues, processes, policies, practices, and resources. When working with
their direct reports, executive leaders direct and guide an understanding of this unified perspective. Each
leader facilitates communication with peers, constituencies, and the college community. The college’s
values guide the organization’s culture and character. Each leader fosters a climate that is consistent with
these core values.

54



Attachment 1

San Jacinto College

2016 -2018 Strategic Plan
Underlying Assumptions

Underlying the College’s Strategic Plan are five assumptions that relate to a one-college alignment;
resources; institutional research; facilities, programming, and technologies; and communication.

Continue One-College Alignment: The Plan assumes that the College operates as one college with
multiple campuses, centers, programs, and services. Common policies and procedures and consistent
business practices will guide the College as the Plan is implemented. Leaders of the College may serve in
multiple leadership roles but the priority role must always be to the college-wide focus, "What is best for
the San Jacinto College community as a whole?" We will focus on providing students with a consistent,
quality educational experience across all locations, programs, and services.

Optimize Resources: The Plan assumes that the College will allocate and repurpose. funding sources to
adequately support the initiatives and strategies in the Plan. It is also assumed that the College will
leverage resources to adequately suppott the strategies and initiatives in the Plan by exploring and
actively seeking additional funding sources. Finally, the College seeks to operate efficiently and examines
methods to reduce costs.

Embrace Institutional Research: The Plan assumes that the College will support the institutional
research functions necessary to develop and assess the strategies and initiatives in the Plan. We will
continue to embrace data-informed decision making; it is assumed that decisions and actions must answer
the ultimate question, "How does this improve student success?"

Align Facilities, Programming, and Technologies: The Plan assumes that the College will acquire and
utilize appropriate technologies and facilities to support and advance the strategies and initiatives in the
Plan. The Plan also assumes that current needs are addressed while envisioning requirements for the
future.

Active Communication: The Plan assumes that the College will develop and disseminate information
necessary to implement, support; and advance the strategies and initiatives in the Plan. Such
communications will be open and transparent and will require active participation by all employees.

55



Attachment 1
San Jacinto College
2016 — 2018 Strategic Plan
Strategies
Goal 1: Student Success
Strategy 1:  Establish a holistic pathways model to enhance student success at San Jacinto College.
Strategy 2:  Ensure a supportive and rigorous teaching and learning environment from the classroom
experience to an effective array of student support services, including personalized

academic and career pathway planning.

Strategy 3:  Align courses and curricula that delineate clear pathways for university transfer and/or
entry into the workforce.

Strategy 4:  Eliminate barriers that prevent students from achieving their educational and career goals.

Strategy 5:  Reduce student time and cost from entry to completion.

Goal 2: P-16 Pipeline

Strategy 1:  Lead and strengthen the efforts for a regional P-16 approach.

Strategy 2:  Expand middle school and high school partnerships in an effort to create a college-going
and college-ready culture of first-time-in-college students who are academically prepared

for rigorous programs of study.

Strategy 3: Develop and enhance seamless articulations with baccalaureate-granting institutions for
associate degree graduates.

Strategy 4:  Explore and define University Center partnerships and options.

56



Attachment 1

Goal 3: Workforce and Economic Development

Strategy 1:  Create Centers of Excellence and develop requisite funding and timelines for
implementation.

Strategy 2:  Expand regional partnerships and connections to enhance the breadth and image of
workforce training programs with students and employers.

Strategy 3: Enhance noncredit/credit career pathways and expand contract training to serve local
industry better.

Strategy 4: Maximize participation and success in Science, Technology, Engineering, and
Mathematics (STEM) programs.

Goal 4: Our People

Strategy 1:  Create a culture that embraces change readiness, high performance, teamwork, and
increased individual and organizational productivity.

Strategy 2:  Build an agile organization to ensure successful execution of the College’s  strategic
plan.

Strategy 3:  Create a learning organization to build competitive advantage through long-term
opportunities for development and advancement within the College.

Strategy 4: Implement meaningful recognition, reward, and benefit programs that support the highest
level of affiliation by employees to the College.

Strategy 5: Attract, select, and retain high-performing and diverse talent.

Goal 5: Continuous Improvement

Strategy 1:  Create a culture that embraces continuous improvement by emphasizing employee
involvement and teamwork.

Strategy 2: Seek improvement on an incremental basis over time and for breakthrough improvement
all at once.

Strategy 3:  Utilize the four-step quality model—the plan-do-check-act (PDCA) cycle.

Plan: Identify an opportunity and plan for change.

Do: Implement the change on a small scale.

Check: Use data to analyze the results of the change and determine whether it made a
difference.

Act: If the change was successful, implement it on a wider scale and continuously
assess results. If the change did not work, begin the cycle again.

57


http://asq.org/learn-about-quality/project-planning-tools/overview/pdca-cycle.html

Attachment 1
San Jacinto College

20452016 — 2018 Strategic Plan
Strategies

Goal 1: Student Success

Strategy-3Strategy 1: Establish a holistie‘pathways model to enhance student success at

San Jacinto College.

Strategy 2:  Ensure a supportive and rigorous teaching and learning environment from the
classroom experience to.an effective array of student support services, including
personalized academic and career pathway planning.

Strategy 43: Align courses and curricula threugh-degreesthat delineate clear pathways for
college-preparatory-technieal programs;anduniversity transfer pregramsand/or

entry into the workforce.

Strategy 4:  Eliminate barriers that prevent students from achieving their educational and
career goals.

ogyEngineering;Reduce
t from entry to

Strategy S:

student time and Mathematies{(STEM)programs—cos
completion.

: . - ool .

Goal 2: P-16 Pipeline
Strategy 1:  Lead and strengthen the efforts for a regional P-16 approach.
Strategy 2: Expand middle school and high school partnerships in an effort to create a

college-going and college-ready culture of first-time-in-college students who are
academically prepared for rigorous programs of study.

Strategy 3: —lereae el Lol Coep s e e cobiope

58



Attachment 1

Strategy4:—Develop and enhance seamless articulations with baccalaureate-granting
institutions for associate degree graduates.

Strategy 4:  Explore and define University Center partnerships and options.

Goal 3: Workforce and Economic Development

Strategy 1:  Create Centers of Excellence and develop requisite funding and timelines for
implementation.

Strategy 2:  Expand regional partnerships and connections to enhance the breadth and image
of workforce training programs with students and employers.

Strategy 3: Enhance noncredit/credit career pathways and expand contract training to serve
local industry better.

Strategy 4:  Maximize participation.and success 1n Seience, Technology, Engineering, and
Mathematics (STEM) programs.

Goal 4: Our People

Strategy 1:  Create a culture that embraces change readiness, high performance, teamwork,
and increased individual and organizational productivity.

Strategy 2: - Build an agile organization to ensure successful execution of the College’s
strategic plan.

Strategy 3:  Create a learning organization to build competitive advantage through long-term
opportunities for development and advancement within the College.

Strategy 4: Implement meaningful recognition, reward, and benefit programs that support the
highest level of affiliation by employees to the College.

Strategy 5:  Attract, select, and retain high-performing and diverse talent.

Goal 5: Continuous Improvement

Strategy 1:  Create a culture that embraces continuous improvement by emphasizing employee
involvement and teamwork.

Strategy 2:  Seek improvement on an incremental basis over time and for breakthrough
improvement all at once.

59



Attachment 1

Strategy 3:

Utilize the four-step quality model—the plan-do-check-act (PDCA) cycle.
Plan: Identify an opportunity and plan for change.

Do: Implement the change on a small scale.

Check: Use data to analyze the results of the change and determine whether it
made a difference.

Act: If the change was successful, implement it on a wider scale and
continuously assess results. If the change did not work, begin the cycle again.

60


http://asq.org/learn-about-quality/project-planning-tools/overview/pdca-cycle.html

Attachment 2

San Jacinto College
2016-2017 Annual Priorities

Pathways Design and Implementation (Phase I): Improve student learning and success
including course completion, retention, and credential completion by scaling-up promising
student success strategies, by refining processes and scheduling to be more effective and student
focused, by identifying and eliminating barriers, and by aligning with employer and transfer
university requirements and expectations.

Course Material Access and Cost Reduction for Students: Develop strategies to reduce costs
to students while ensuring appropriate and high quality educational resource materials are
available and utilized in the classroom.

Fiscal Accountability and Responsibility: Redesign and implement new budget process to
focus on strategic priorities, enhance revenues, gain operational efficiencies, meet human and
physical resource demands, and eliminate activities that do not enhance student success.

Bond Programs: Plan, design, and construct facilities and infrastructure to meet student, faculty,
staff, and employer needs through collaboration with internal teams and industry/business
partners to leverage equipment, facilities, and resources.

Talent and Organizational Development: Promote faculty and staff excellence and retention
through professional development opportunities targeted at teaching and learning, student
success, leadership, and diversity.

Positioning for the Future: Develop an understanding of and plans for addressing the changing
landscape in higher education nationally, state-wide, and locally and identify ways for the
College to expand its competitive advantage:

61



14vdd

H (pJseoqysep) sainsea|n _mco_.SEmcL

SUoIdY

T>m_cu< 03} u,_:mmé

A|lenuuy

TEo:n_ _mscc,&

Attachment 3

H salgalells H

A H suonidwnssy wc_>_‘_m_ocDH

H S|eoo oAl w Tm_n_u_mwpmbmw

|

san|ep

H

wJia] 3uo LOISSIN

|

UOISIA

|

9|N) S}|NS9Y 0] UOI}IYy O] UOISIA
[9A _ I IS



Action Item “XI”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016

Consideration of Approval of the Renewal of the Articulation
Agreement Between San Jacinto Community College District and
Lamar University Department of Industrial Engineering

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the renewal of the
Articulation Agreement between San Jacinto Community College District (SJCCD) and
Lamar University (LU) Department of Industrial Engineering.

BACKGROUND

The Lamar University (LU) is a member of The Texas State University System. It offers
more than 100 programs of study leading to bachelor’s, master’s and doctoral degrees in
business; education; health sciences; language, communication, and media; science,
technology, engineering, and math; social sciences and humanities; and the arts. The
Department of Industrial Engineering offers a Bachelor’s of Science in Industrial Technology
on campus and in an online 2+2 format. Industrial engineering provides a wide range of
career opportunities. It is positioned to develop individuals for the fields of supply chain
management, logistics, operations research, design and manufacturing, project management,
six sigma and "lean" engineering, economic analysis, safety, quality assurance management,
plant operation control/design, and managerial problems.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

This Agreement revises the current articulation agreement by:
i.  increasing the maximum semester credit hours (SCH) accepted by LU from 60 to 63
SCH,
ii.  revising the number of technical credits from 39 to 33 SCH,
iii.  increasing the number of academic credits from 21 to 30 SCH, and
iv.  updating the technical programs that transfer from SJCCD to LU.

Both institutions enter into this Agreement in the spirit of cooperation and mutually
recognize each other as quality institutions of higher education. Each institution is dedicated
to serving students from diverse populations.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

N/A

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

This agreement shall be subject to review annually. Either party may independently terminate

this agreement by notifying the other party no less than one academic year before the
intended date of termination.

63



Action Item “XI”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016

Consideration of Approval of the Renewal of the Articulation
Agreement Between San Jacinto Community College District and
Lamar University Department of Industrial Engineering

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1- Transfer and Articulation Agreement between San Jacinto College District
and Lamar University

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Laurel V. Williamson 281-998-6182 laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu
Catherine O’Brien 281-998-6318 catherine.obrien@sjcd.edu
Chris Duke 281-998-6203 chris.duke@sjcd.edu

64


mailto:laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu
mailto:catherine.obrien@sjcd.edu
mailto:chris.duke@sjcd.edu

Attachment 1

TRANSFER AND ARTICULATION AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
San Jacinto College District
(Associate of Applied Science Degrees and others)
and
Lamar University
(Bachelor of Science Degree in Industrial Technology)

Purpose

San Jacinto College District (SJCD) and Lamar University Department of Industrial Engineering
enter into this agreement to facilitate the opportunities for students who wish to transfer from the
specified SJICD Associate of Applied Science Degree programs to the Lamar University
Bachelor of Science Industrial Technology Degree program. This agreement specifies the
conditions and requirements necessary for students to transfer to Lamar University with
minimum loss of credit.

Changes

Proposed changes in policies or curriculum by either party must be communicated in writing to
the other party. Any changes agreed upon must be signed, dated, and attached to this agreement.
Either party may independently terminate this agreement by notifying the other party no less than
one academic year before the intended date of termination.

Period
This agreement is subject to review each year.

General Requirements
All students transferring to Lamar University must meet the following requirements:

a.) Students must have a cumulative grade point average of at least 2.0.

b.) All courses intended for transfer must have a grade of “C” or higher.

c.) A maximum of 63 semester hours will be accepted towards the Bachelor of Science
in Industrial Technology for A.A.S. graduates. Up to 33 credits may be transferred
from an approved technology major field of study and up to 30 academic credits may
be applied which meet the Lamar University required academic core sequence. Lamar
University will work with transfer candidates to determine final credit award.

d.) Students eligible for transfer to Lamar University must have met the minimum
admission requirements to enter Lamar University.

e.) Students applying without an A.A.S. degree will have their credits transferred to their
best advantage as determined by Lamar University, provided the credits are
applicable to the degree program.

f.) This agreement includes the Bachelor of Science in Industrial Technology degree
plan for display purposes (See Appendix A) and the specific majors from San Jacinto
College that apply (See Appendix B).

g.) Other transfers for majors not included in this agreement will be considered by Lamar
University on an individual case-by-case basis.

65



Attachment 1

During the time that this Transfer and Articulation Agreement is in effect:

a.)
b.)

c.)

d)

Both institutions will work cooperatively to ensure a smooth transfer with minimal
academic interruptions;

Each institution will notify the other concerning any contemplated curricular changes
which would affect the future of this agreement;

With respect to courses or blocks of courses transferred under this agreement, San
Jacinto College District (SJCD) will ensure that all instructors of academic courses
satisfy the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS) faculty credentials
standards for “associate degree courses designed for transfer.” SICD will work to
ensure that instructors of technical courses meet these same standards as appropriate
and practical. SICD will ensure that all instructors of technical courses satisfy SACS
faculty credentials for “associate courses not designed for transfer to the
baccalaureate degree.” Upon request, SJCD will inform Lamar University of faculty
who do not meet the SACS criteria for technical courses and/or baccalaureate-transfer
courses, and will provide information on faculty credentials. Whenever credentials-
related issues arise, they will be resolved on a case-by-case basis by Lamar University
program faculty and administrators after consultation with appropriate administrators
and/or faculty at San Jacinto College District.

The Technical Course Review Committee (TCRC), composed of faculty from the
Industrial Engineering department at Lamar University, will assess technical courses
from SJCD to determine if they will be applied toward Lamar University’s Industrial
Technology program. This assessment will be conducted using syllabi and catalog
descriptions provided by SJCD. Once this assessment has been completed, a notice of
approval or denial will be sent to the SJCD campus involved.

Publication
San Jacinto College District and Lamar University may use this agreement and the names of the
institutions in the official college catalogs.

66



Attachment 1

Signatures

It is with this agreement that we propose to facilitate the transition of transfer students from San

Jacinto Community College District to the Lamar University Industrial Technology Program.

Srinivas Palanki, Ph.D.
Dean of the College of Engineering
Lamar University

Signature Date

James Marquart, Ph.D.
Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs
Lamar University

Signature Date

Brenda Hellyer, Ed.D.
Chancellor
San Jacinto College District

Signature Date

67



Attachment 1

Appendix A
Bachelor of Science in Industrial Technology
Lamar University

NEXT PAGE — for display purposes only
The San Jacinto College District degree planning would not change unless students inform their

advisor well in advance of their intention to pursue the BSIT degree at Lamar so adjustments
may be made to maximize transfer options.

68



Attachment 1

Appendix B
San Jacinto College District programs included in this B.S.I.T. Agreement

Associate of Applied Science Degrees

Accounting A.A.S.

Aeronautical Technology Pilot Development Program A.A.S.
Air Conditioning Technology A.A.S.

Art and Design A.A.S.

Audio Engineering A.A.S.

Automotive Collision Repair Technology A.A.S.
Automotive Technology A.A.S.

Biomedical Clinical Equipment Technology A.A.S.
Business Management A.A.S.

Business Office Technology A.A.S.

Computer Information Technology A.A.S.
Construction Management Technology A.A.S.
Criminal Justice A.A.S.

Culinary Arts A.A.S.

Diagnostic Med. Sonography A.A.S,

Diesel Technology A.A.S.

Electrical Technology A.A.S.

Electronics Technology A.A.S.

Engineering Design Graphics A.A.S.
Environmental Health and Safety Technology A.A.S.
Health Information Management A.A.S.
Instrumentation Technology A.A.S.

International Business and Logistics A.A.S
Maritime Transportation A.A.S.

Medical Laboratory Technology A.A.S.

Medical Radiography A.A.S.

Mental Health Services A.A.S.

Occupational Therapist Assistant A.A.S.

Paralegal A.A.S.

Physical Therapist Assistant A.A.S.

Process Technology A.A.S.

Respiratory Care A.A.S.

Surgical Technology A.A.S.

Welding Technology A.A.S.

Welding Technology-Non-Destruction Testing A.A.S.

69



Attachment 1

Associate of Arts Degrees and Associate of Science

Students who have graduated with an Associate of Arts or Associate of Science degree in any
field will be considered for the BSIT program with full transfer of academic credit as stated in
the university catalog. It should be noted that Associate of Science graduates in the fields of
business, computer related fields, engineering, math, or sciences are very appropriate candidates.

Certificate Programs

Consideration will be given to certificate program graduates; however, this agreement is
intended for two-year degree recipients.

70



Action Item “XII”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016

Consideration of Approval of Memorandum of Understanding Between

Galena Park Independent School District and San Jacinto College District for Use of Facilities

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees authorize the Chancellor to execute a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the purpose of permitting the Galena Park
Independent School District to utilize College space to teach high school metal trade classes.

BACKGROUND

For many years, San Jacinto College has permitted the Galena Park Independent School
District (GPISD) to use College facilities for the purpose of instruction in metal trades. While
this arrangement has been active for years, no written agreement has ever existed. The
purpose of this MOU is to formally establish this right and obligation of both parties
regarding metal trade classes taught by GPISD on properties and in facilities owned and
operated by San Jacinto College.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

This action will authorize GPISD to use classroom N-19.109 and office N-19.108B in the
Industrial Technology — Welding building at the North Campus, for the purpose of teaching
high school metal trades. Sufficient space is available to teach up to 120 students per
semester. GPISD will furnish all tools, equipment, and supplies and will provide all
instruction.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

There is no direct budget implication for the College. No current staff are involved with this
instructional activity, nor will additional staff be required. As a courtesy, GPISD will not be
charged for utilizing the designated space. Routine maintenance will be required for upkeep
of the classroom. The use of the facility by GPISD will be scheduled annually and will not
interfere with College offerings.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
Annually and as needed, officials from GPISD will meet with North Campus administrators
to review the arrangement and document the number of students participating. The term of

the contract is through August 30, 2020. Termination can also be provided with 60 days
written notice by either party.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 - Memorandum of Understanding Between Galena Park Independent School
District and San Jacinto Community College District: 2016

71



Action Item “XII”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016

Consideration of Approval of Memorandum of Understanding Between

Galena Park Independent School District and San Jacinto College District for Use of Facilities

RESOURCE PERSONNEL
William G. Raffetto 281-459-7699 william.raffetto@sjcd.edu
Pamela S. Campbell 281-991-2672 pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu

72


mailto:laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu
mailto:pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu

Attachment 1

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN
GALENA PARK INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
AND SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
2016

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU” or “Agreement”) is by and between SAN
JACINTO COLLEGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT, a public community college
established under Chapter 130 of the Texas Education Code and political subdivision of the State
of Texas (“SJCCD” or San Jacinto College), and the GALENA PARK INDEPENDENT SCHOOL
DISTRICT, a Texas public independent school district and political subdivision of the State of
Texas (“GPISD”). Individually, SJCCD and GPISD are referred to herein as “Party” and
collectively as “Parties.”

1. Background and Purpose. For many years, San Jacinto College has permitted the
Galena Park Independent School District to use College facilities for the purpose of instruction in
metal trades. The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding is to establish the rights and
obligations of both Parties regarding metal trade classes taught by the GPISD on properties and in
facilities owned and operated by SJCCD. These metal trade classes are referred to in this document
as the “Program.”

2. Term. Subject to the approval by the parties’ respective governing boards, the
term of this MOU shall commence upon the signing of this MOU by both authorized
representatives of the parties (“Effective Date”) and shall expire on August 30, 2020 (“Expiration
Date”). Any extension of the term requires written agreement by both parties and requires prior
approval by Parties’ governing boards.

3. Access to Facilities. SJCCD agrees to permit GPISD to use appropriate and
accessible classroom space in its facilities to conduct the Program at times and places to be
mutually agreed upon by the parties (hereinafter, the Premises). SJCCD will make available
sufficient space to accommodate up to 120 students per semester. GPISD shall use the Premises
for educational purposes only. GPISD will not cause or permit any changes, alterations, or painting
of any part of the Premises, furnishings, or college equipment without the written consent of
SJCCD. The parties agree that Classroom N-19.109 and Office N-19.108B at San Jacinto
College’s North Campus are suitable for the Program and will accommodate the enrollment in the
Program. Upon reasonable notice to GPISD, SICCD shall have the right, when reasonable under
the circumstances (such as a need to remodel or make repairs), to relocate the Premises.

a. This MOU is for use of the Premises only, is not a lease, and does not create a
leasehold interest. SJCCD retains ownership of and title to all SJCCD equipment
in the facility, and GPISD retains ownership and title to all GPISD classroom
equipment used in the facility.

b. SJCCD shall furnish routine maintenance and custodial service to the Premises, as
necessary, to maintain the area in good repair. SJICCD agents and employees shall
have the right of access to the Premises to the extent necessary to perform its
obligations under the MOU, to monitor compliance with the terms of this MOU, to
perform repairs, and to perform other obligations as may be required by law.

Memorandum of Understanding Page 1 of 6

GPISD and San Jacinto Community College District
73



Attachment 1

c. In addition to providing access to a classroom and office space, SJCCD agrees that
the employees and students in the Program may utilize the public lobby areas,
restrooms, and public parking areas at the North Campus.

4. Supervision and Discipline of Students. GPISD shall provide sufficient
personnel necessary to maintain appropriate supervision of the students and employees in the
Program. GPISD is solely responsible for administering student discipline to GPISD students
enrolled in the Program and for disciplining its own employees. However, if SJCCD has reason
to believe that a student or employee in the Program has violated the criminal law, has engaged in
conduct that is disruptive to college operations, or poses a threat to the security or safety to the
campus or other persons, SICDD may remove the individual from the campus on a temporary
basis or permanent basis, as circumstances reasonably may warrant. Any objection to a student or
employee by SJCCD shall be made in good faith and on a non-discriminatory basis. SICCD shall
communicate its objection to GPISD in writing.

5. Property Damage. GPISD agrees to reimburse SJCCD the reasonable cost to
repair any damages to the Premises or college equipment caused by GPISD’s employees, agents,
students, or invitees (ordinary wear and tear and acts of God excepted). In the event of such
damage, SJCCD shall present GPISD with an invoice and inventory identifying all damaged
property. Payment shall be due within 30 days of GPISD’s receipt of the invoice.

6. Required Fees. SJCCD shall waive all fees that would otherwise be payable for
using the Premises. The board of trustees of SJCCD has determined that this MOU services a
beneficial public purpose.

7. Insurance. At all times during the term of this MOU, GPISD shall obtain and
maintain, at its sole expense, a comprehensive general liability insurance policy with limits not
less than $500,000 per each occurrence, combined single limit, and $1,000,000 aggregate limit,
for bodily injury and property damage, including coverage for contractual liability, personal injury,
explosion, broad form property damage. Such policy/policies shall include within their scope
coverage for claims including, but not limited to: (i) damages because of bodily injury (including
emotional distress), sickness, disease, or death of any person other than GPISD employees, or
(i) damages arising from personal injury. Additionally, GPISD shall maintain workers’
compensation and employer’s liability insurance as may be required under applicable law and
comprehensive or business automobile liability insurance, with limits not less than $500,000 per
each occurrence, combined single limit, for bodily injury and property damage, including coverage
for owned, non-owned, and hired automobiles.

8. Applicable Law. The Parties agree to operate the Program in compliance with the
applicable federal, State, and local laws, implementing regulations, executive orders, and
interpreting authorities including, but not limited to, (a) the following federal statutes as may be
amended: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; Title VII of the Civil Rights Act; Title IX of
the Education Amendments of 1974; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975; the Americans with Disabilities Act; the Family Educational Rights
and Privacy Act of 1974 (“FERPA”); Title VI of the Higher Education Act of 1965; and
Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act; (b) the Texas Constitution and United States

Memorandum of Understanding Page 2 of 6

GPISD and San Jacinto Community College District
74



Attachment 1

Constitution; (c) applicable provisions of the Texas Education Code, including, without limitation,
Section 29.908 and Chapter 39; and (d) state and federal laws regarding the reporting of alleged
child abuse, school-related crimes, and sexual molestation of students. The Parties agree to operate
the Program in compliance with applicable SJCCD and GPISD board policies and procedures.

0. Termination of the MOU. Either Party may terminate this MOU for convenience
and without cause or penalty by providing 60 days’ written notice of termination to the other Party.
After notice is given, the MOU will terminate on the last day of the semester then in progress. In
the event of a material breach of this MOU, either Party may terminate this MOU without 60 days’
notice; however, prior to seeking termination, the non-breaching Party shall provide written notice
to the other Party specifying the deficiency or provision claimed to be breached. Except in the
event of a default or breach that threatens the health of safety of students, in which case the non-
breaching Party may immediately terminate this MOU on three days’ notice, the breaching Party
shall have 15 days in which to cure any alleged deficiency. If the other Party fails to cure and/or
the parties are unable to resolve their disagreement, the non-breaching Party may give 10 days’
notice of termination.

10.  Release. GPISD agrees to release SJCCD and its trustees, employees, agents,
officers, and representatives from any and all claims, losses, liabilities, damages, and debts arising
from or caused by an act or omission of GPISD or its trustees, employees, agents, officers, and
representatives.

11.  No Waiver. No delay or failure by a Party in exercising any right, power or
privilege under this MOU or any other instruments given in connection with or pursuant to this
MOU will impair any such right, power or privilege or be construed as a waiver of or acquiescence
in any default. No single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege will preclude the further
exercise of that right, power or privilege or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege.

12. Immunity. No party waives or relinquishes any immunity or defense on behalf of
itself, its trustees, its officers, employees, and agents as a result of the execution of this Agreement
and the performance of the covenants contained herein.

13.  Relationship of the Parties. Nothing in this agreement shall be deemed to create
a partnership, agency, or joint venture relationship. No Party will have the authority to act for or
bind another Party in any respect or to incur or assume any expense, debt, obligation, liability, tax,
or responsibility on behalf of or in the name of another Party hereto. Neither party shall have
control over the other Party with respect to its hours, times, employment, etc. The Parties
acknowledge and agree that no Party will be liable for the activities of another Party, including,
but not limited to, any liabilities, losses, damages, suits, actions, fines, penalties, claims, or
demands of any kind arising out of this MOU.

14.  Assignment. Neither Party may assign its interest in the MOU without the written
permission of the other Party.

15. Entire Agreement. This MOU constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties
regarding the subject matter herein described. This MOU supersedes all negotiations or previous

Memorandum of Understanding Page 3 of 6

GPISD and San Jacinto Community College District
75



Attachment 1

agreements between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. The Parties expressly
acknowledge that in entering into and executing this MOU the Parties rely solely upon the
representations and agreements contained in this MOU and no others. No subsequence change or
modification of this MOU is binding unless in writing and signed by the Parties.

16. Campus Emergency. GPISD will furnish in writing the name and phone number
of the GPISD official who will be notified in case of a SICCD campus emergency. SJCCD will
give access the SICCD Alert Me system to the person designated by GPISD.

17. Day-To-Day Contact Persons. Both Parties will designate in writing a responsible
person for day-to-day operations. The Parties shall provide name, address, title, phone number,
and electronic mail address for the responsible persons. Notice of changes to the names or contact
information for the responsible persons shall be provided in accordance with Section 21 of this
Agreement.

18. Severability. If any provision of this MOU is held to be invalid or unenforceable
for any reason, this MOU shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms
disregarding such unenforceable or invalid provision.

19.  No Third-Party Rights. This MOU is made for the sole benefit of GPISD and
SJCCD and their respective successors and permitted assigns. Nothing in this MOU will create or
be deemed to create a relationship between the Parties to this MOU and any third person, including
a relationship in the nature of a third-party beneficiary or fiduciary.

20. Counterparts. This MOU may be executed in identical counterparts, all of which
will be deemed an original, but all of which will constitute one and the same instrument. Each
Party may rely on facsimile or electronic signature pages as if such facsimile or electronic pages
were originals.

21. Notice. All notices hereunder by either Party to the other shall be in writing,
delivered personally, by certified mail, return receipt requested, by overnight courier, or any
manner permitted under the Texas Electronics Transactions Act and shall be deemed to have been
duly given when delivered personally, when deposited in the Unites States mail, postage prepaid,
or when received addressed as follows or to such other persons or places as either Party may from
time to time designate by written notice to the other:

COLLEGE: SCHOOL DISTRICT:
San Jacinto Community College District Galena Park Independent School District
Chancellor Superintendent
4624 Fairmont Parkway, Suite 200 14705 Woodforest Boulevard
Pasadena, Texas 77504 Houston, Texas 77015
COPY TO:
San Jacinto Community College North Campus
Provost
5800 Uvalde Road
Memorandum of Understanding Page 4 of 6

GPISD and San Jacinto Community College District
76



Attachment 1

Houston, Texas 77049

[Signatures Are on the Next Page]

Memorandum of Understanding Page 5 of 6

GPISD and San Jacinto Community College District
77



Attachment 1

[Signature page for the Memorandum of Understanding with an
Effective Date of , 2016]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Memorandum of Understanding as
of the Effective Date of , 2016:

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

By:
Dr. Brenda Hellyer, Date
Chancellor

By:
Mr. Dan Mims, Date

Chairman, Board of Trustees

GALENA PARK INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

By:
Dr. Angi Williams, Date
Superintendent
By:
President, Board of Trustees Date
Memorandum of Understanding Page 6 of 6

GPISD and San Jacinto Community College District
78



Action Item “XIII”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016

Consideration of Approval of Clear Horizons

Early College High School Memorandum of Understanding

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Clear Horizons Early
College High School Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). This MOU is an update to the
previous agreements.

BACKGROUND

Clear Horizons Early College high School has been in existence at San Jacinto College South
Campus since fall 2007. Anticipated enrollment for fall 2016 is 474 students in grades 9 —
12. Since 2009, Clear Horizons students have earned 463 associate degrees from San Jacinto
College. This year’s graduating class of 2017 will celebrate the 10™ anniversary of this
partnership.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

This updated MOU includes the dual credit tuition and fee waiver of 75 percent which is
effective for fall 2016 as part of the related tuition and fee changes effective for that same
time frame. The MOU includes additional language required by the school district due to
changes in its policies. New information regarding the Clery Act and emergency
management protocol has also been included. This action will continue the project with 125
new 9 grade students being added each fall semester and more College graduates in future
years.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The budgetary impact is consistent with prior years. Additional analysis will be conducted as
part of the budget review processes that are being implemented during fiscal year 2016-2017.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

Regular meetings are held between the leadership of the school district and College to review
operations and goals. Each year the number of Clear Horizons students who graduate from
San Jacinto College with an Associate’s degree will be reported to the Board of Trustees,
along with information regarding scholarships they have earned and four-year institutions to
which they will transfer.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 - Clear Horizons Early College High School Memorandum of Understanding
2016 - 2021

79



Action Item “XIII”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016

Consideration of Approval of Clear Horizons

Early College High School Memorandum of Understanding

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Laurel V. Williamson 281-998-6184 laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu
Pamela S. Campbell 281-991-2672 pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu
Kristen Ross 281-929-4653 kristen.ross@sjcd.edu

80


mailto:laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu
mailto:pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu
mailto:kristen.ross@sjcd.edu

Attachment 1

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
CLEAR HORIZONS EARLY COLLEGE HIGH SCHOOL
2016-2021

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU” or “Agreement”) is by and between SAN
JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT, a public community college established
under Chapter 130 of the Texas Education Code and political subdivision of the State of Texas,
(“SJICCD”), and the CLEAR CREEK INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT, a Texas
public independent school district and political subdivision of the State of Texas, (“CCISD”)
located in Harris and Galveston Counties in Texas with an effective date of
(“Effective Date”). Individually, SJCCD and CCISD are referred to herein as “Party” and
collectively as “Parties.”

WHEREAS, SJICCD and CCISD desire to establish an early college high school program
to be operated at the South Campus of SICCD; and

WHEREAS, the Parties intend to submit a program application to the Texas Education
Agency (“TEA”) as required by and in accordance with Section 29.908 of the Texas Education
Code and 19 Texas Administrative Code §§ 4.151-4.161; 4.81-4.85; and 102.1091; and

WHEREAS, upon approval from TEA, the early college program established between the
Parties will be called Clear Horizons Early College High School (“Clear Horizons ECHS”).

NOW THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and covenants contained herein and other
good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Background and Purpose. In the 2006-07 school year, CCISD and SJCCD
implemented a pilot high school for seniors, called Project EXCEL. This pilot became Clear
Horizons ECHS in 2007. Applicable Law (as hereinafter defined) permits a public school
district and public college to partner to provide a course of study for an early college high school
combining high school courses and college-level courses during grades 9 through 12 for students
who are at risk of dropping out of school (as defined in Section 29.081 of the Texas Education
Code) or who wish to accelerate completion of the high school program. The purpose of this
MOU is to establish the rights and obligations of the Parties with respect to the operation of
Clear Horizons ECHS, a four-year high school with early college program component
(“Program”) that complies with all Applicable Law and will be located at SICCD’s south
campus. The Program must provide student learning and support programs that enable
participating students to earn a high school diploma and earn up to 60 semester credit hours
toward an associate or baccalaureate degree by the fifth anniversary of the student’s first day of
high school. Additionally, Clear Horizons ECHS will provide advanced academic opportunities,
service learning, workplace internships, and college and career counseling. Clear Horizons
ECHS will continue to phase in approximately 125 students in grade 9 on a yearly basis, with a
maximum enrollment not to exceed 500 students in grades 9-12.

Memorandum of Understanding Page 1of 14
Clear Horizons Early College High School

81



Attachment 1

2. Applicable Law. The Parties agree to operate the Program and Clear Horizons ECHS in
compliance with the applicable federal, State, and local laws, implementing regulations,
executive orders, and interpreting authorities including, but not limited to, (a) the following
federal statutes as may be amended: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; Title VII of the
Civil Rights Act; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1974; Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975; the Americans with Disabilities
Act; the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (“FERPA”); Title IV of the Higher
Education Act of 1965; Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act; and the Jeanne Clery
Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1092(f)
(“Clery Act”); (b) the Texas constitution; (c¢) applicable provisions of the Texas Education Code,
including, without limitation, Section 29.908 and Chapter 39; (d) State and federal laws
regarding the reporting of any and all alleged child abuse, school-related crimes, and sexual
molestation of students; (e) State record retention laws; (f) applicable provisions of Title 19 of
the Texas Administrative Code, including, without limitation, Chapter 4, Subchapters D and G;
Section 102.1091; and Chapters 110-125; (g) TEA guidelines and requirements, including, the
Student Attendance Accounting Handbook (“Attendance Handbook™) and the Financial
Accountability System Resource Guide; and (h) Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board
(“THECB”) guidelines and requirements, including, without limitation, course conformity in
accordance with the Lower Division Academic Course Guide Manual (“LDACGM”) and the
Workforce Education Course Manual (“WECM?”) . The Parties agree to operate the Program and
Clear Horizons ECHS in compliance with applicable SICCD and CCISD board policies and
procedure and policies and procedures that may be agreed upon by the Parties and approved for
the Clear Horizons ECHS. The Parties agree to comply with all assurances in the Program
application submitted to TEA and any additional requirements for the Program adopted by the
THECB. The foregoing as set forth in this Section 2 and any other laws, rules, and guidelines
applicable to the subject matter of this MOU collectively shall be referred to as "Applicable
Law" or "Applicable Laws" when used herein.

3. Term. Subject to approval of the Program application by TEA, any additional approvals
that may be required from the THECB, and annual approval as required by law or by TEA or
THECB, the term of this MOU shall commence upon the date that the second of the Parties has
signed this MOU (“Commencement Date™) and shall expire on June 30, 2021 (“Expiration
Date”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, both Parties acknowledge and agree that a condition
precedent to a Party’s signing the MOU is approval of the Agreement by that Party’s governing
board. The time period between the Commencement Date and the Expiration Date shall be
referred to as “Initial Term.” Upon mutual written agreement by the Parties and approval as may
be required by the Parties’ governing boards, TEA, and THECB, this MOU may be extended for
a one-year renewal term ( “Renewal Term™). As used in this MOU, the term “Term” shall mean
the Initial Term, the Initial Term as may be extended by the Renewal Term, or such shorter
period of time in the event of termination of this MOU as set forth in Section 18.

Memorandum of Understanding Page 2 of 14
Clear Horizons Early College High School

82



Attachment 1

4. Governance.

a. Governing Structure. The governing structure of the Program shall include the
appointment of a Steering Committee and Campus Instructional Improvement Committee
(“CIIC”) at the Clear Horizons ECHS campus.

b. Steering Committee. Members of the Steering Committee will include the
following CCISD representatives: Superintendent of Schools, Deputy Superintendent for
Curriculum and Instruction, Assistant Superintendent for Secondary Education, one Board of
Trustees member, and the Clear Horizons ECHS principal (“Clear Horizons ECHS Principal™).
Members of the Steering Committee will include SJICCD representatives: Chancellor, Associate
Vice Chancellor for Student Success Partnerships, the Director of Dual Credit (“SICCD
Liaison”), and other appropriate SICCD campus and district personnel as determined by SJCCD.
The Steering Committee will meet at least every six (6) months and as needed. The Steering
Committee will be charged with the overall oversight of the Clear Horizons ECHS. Its
responsibilities will include:

L. Developing and implementing the academic and professional policy as
related to the Clear Horizons ECHS;
il. Developing and implementing budgets and financial policy as related to
the Clear Horizons ECHS;
iii. Insuring adherence to Applicable Law that affects the well-being of
students enrolled in Clear Horizons ECHS; and
v. Annually reviewing the MOU and suggesting revisions as necessary or

advisable.

C. Clear Horizons ECHS Administrative Team. SJICCD will provide a
representative to participate in the process of hiring the Clear Horizons ECHS Principal, who
shall be an employee of CCISD. CCISD will provide a representative to participate in the
process of hiring the SJICCD South Campus Dual Credit Director, who shall be an SJCCD
employee. SJCCD shall designate the person to serve as SJCCD Liaison with CCISD as it
relates to the Clear Horizons ECHS. The SJCCD Liaison will cooperate with and facilitate
communication between the CCISD and SICCD. The SJCCD Liaison will meet with the Clear
Horizon ECHS Principal, on-site administrator (if other than the Clear Horizons ECHS
Principal), and other representatives as may be needed to support the Clear Horizons ECHS.

5. Clear Horizons ECHS Organization. Except for building use policies or as otherwise
set forth in this MOU or required by Applicable Law, policies and procedures relating to the high
school portion of the Program and Clear Horizons ECHS shall be governed by CCISD policies
and regulations. The building use policies and all policies relating to the college courses and
services portion of the Program and Clear Horizons ECHS shall be governed by the SJICCD
policies and procedures. The Clear Horizons ECHS Principal will have decision-making
authority in matters of budgeting, staffing for non-college level courses, scheduling, student
assessment for non-college level courses and requirements, curriculum for non-college level
courses, and professional development in congruence with CCISD policy and Clear Horizons
ECHS procedures. SJCCD, in cooperation with the Clear Horizons ECHS Principal, shall be

Memorandum of Understanding Page 3 of 14
Clear Horizons Early College High School

83



Attachment 1

responsible for assessing participating students for readiness for college-level courses and for
developing and implementing an evaluation process for measuring the effectiveness of the
Program. The Program courses will be the same college-level courses offered by SJCCD to non-
Program students. SJCCD shall be responsible for selecting instructors for college-level courses
as required by SJICCD in accordance with Applicable Law and for supervising instructors of
college-level courses.

6. School Calendar. The instructional calendar for the high school portion of Clear
Horizons ECHS will be based on the CCISD calendar and comply with all related TEA
regulations for attendance. CCISD will adjust its schedule if necessary to enable the Clear
Horizons ECHS students to enroll in and attend the college-level courses provided by SICCD.
Where allowed by Applicable Law, including, without limitation, Section 29.0822 of the Texas
Education Code and 19 Texas Administrative Code § 129.1027, and further subject to approval
of both Parties, the Clear Horizons ECHS calendar may vary from that of the CCISD in order to
best fit the needs of students and reasonably interrelate with the SICCD academic calendar.

7. Clear Horizons ECHS Facilities. SICCD will provide a dedicated space at its South
Campus for the Clear Horizons ECHS (“ECHS Facility”). This space will include core learning
classrooms, administrative and student support areas, and other space as determined by the
Parties. As the number of students increases, subject to space requirements of SICCD for
students participating in the regular college program at the South Campus, additional space will
be provided to meet these needs of the Clear Horizons ECHS. Non-contiguous classrooms will
be utilized for specialized facilities (e.g., science labs, fine arts, physical education) and for
college credit classes taught in departmental buildings. Subject to availability and SJICCD
building use and other applicable policies and procedures, SICCD will provide to students and
employees of the Clear Horizons ECHS reasonable access to all South Campus buildings,
including the student center, for meetings, socialization, and cultural events sponsored by and/or
associated with Clear Horizons ECHS. Access for facilities, services, and resources will be
addressed by the Clear Horizons ECHS Steering Committee and SICCD Dual Credit Office.
Clear Horizons ECHS students will have a CCISD and a SJICCD identification card, which will
give them access to SJCCD facilities and resources available to all students enrolled at SJCCD.

8. Accidents/Emergency Incidents Due to the reporting requirements of the Clery Act that
apply specifically to higher education institutions, the procedures set forth in this Section 8 will
apply in the event any Clear Horizons ECHS student, instructor, or administrator experiences an
accident or sudden illness or commits a law-violating behavior. If such an event occurs while
the individual is on SJCCD property, the response to such incidents will be based on SICCD
policies, procedures, regulations, and guidelines. If such an event occurs while not on SJICCD
property, the response to such incidents will be based on CCISD policies, procedures,
regulations, and guidelines. Accordingly, while on SJCCD property, the policies and procedures
for building use, emergency response, and safety of both SICCD and CCISD shall apply.

9. Clear Horizons ECHS Faculty.

a. Faculty for High School Courses. To teach high school level courses in Clear
Horizons ECHS, CCISD instructors must meet State certification requirements in their subject

Memorandum of Understanding Page 4 of 14
Clear Horizons Early College High School k

84



Attachment 1

area to teach in the State of Texas and be designated as highly qualified. Clear Horizons ECHS
instructors teaching non-college level courses will be selected and supervised by CCISD.
CCISD employees assigned to the Clear Horizons ECHS will be evaluated annually by CCISD
according to Applicable Law and CCISD policies and procedures.

b. Faculty for College-Level Courses. Clear Horizons ECHS instructors teaching
college-level or dual credit courses must be regularly employed SICCD faculty members, meet
the same standards of SACSCOC for college-level instructors, including, without limitation,
holding a master’s degree in their content area. SJCCD shall select its instructors who teach the
college-level courses in which ECHS students are enrolled based upon their previous experience
and success in teaching freshman courses, developmental and accelerated courses, and dual
enrollment courses. SJCCD shall supervise its instructors who teach the college-level courses in
which ECHS students are enrolled, including any adjunct faculty as described in Section 8.c, in
accordance with SJCCD policies and procedures.

C. CCISD Employees as SICCD Adjunct Faculty. As needed and to the extent
permitted by Applicable Law, faculty of Clear Horizons ECHS who are CCISD employees and

meet the requirements necessary to teach college-level courses may apply for adjunct instructor
status from SJCCD during their assignment to Clear Horizons ECHS, and will be entitled to the
benefits provided by SICCD to other adjunct instructor faculty.

d. Salaries of Clear Horizons ECHS Instructors. Each Party shall be responsible for
the payment of the salary, benefits, and employment taxes of its respective employees
performing services for or at the Clear Horizons ECHS. Additionally, SICCD shall be
responsible for payment of the stipend or salary of any adjunct faculty who teach a college-level
course for Clear Horizons ECHS, which amount shall be equivalent to the salary or stipend paid
to other SJCCD adjunct faculty.

e. Professional Development. Each Party shall provide professional development
opportunities to its own employees in the same or similar manner as provided to its other
professional employees. Additionally, professional development for cross-over learning and
collaboration will be planned and implemented by the Clear Horizons ECHS Principal and the
SJCCD Liaison.

10. Building a College Culture. The CCISD and the SICCD will establish a learning
community that blends high school and college, instilling a college-going culture among the
participating students. Clear Horizons ECHS students will be aided to:

a. Develop a four-year high school graduation plan and post-secondary plan;

b. Participate in high school credit classes, and college-credit classes for which
students receive both high school and college credit;

e Develop and participate in a service learning project in the community;

d. Participate in an internship program;

& Participate in an advisory class which provides college campus orientation,
academic counseling, college and career planning and additional student support counseling; and

f. Adhere to student behavioral expectations.
Memorandum of Understanding Page 5 of 14

Clear Horizons Early College High School

85



Attachment 1

11. Outreach to Target Population; Admission of Students to Program.

a. Recruitment Efforts. To secure the broadest applicant pool possible, cach of the
Parties will participate in a recruitment effort for the Clear Horizons ECHS by focusing on
qualified eighth grade students at all CCISD intermediate schools in January of each year. This
recruitment process will include:

1. The establishment of a recruitment web site that will provide recruitment
and admission information;

iL. The distribution of recruitment/admission packets to all 8" grade students,
as applicable in CCISD;
1ii. Meetings with CCISD counselors, as applicable, to discuss the Clear

Horizons ECHS and answer questions;

iv. Student/parent meetings that will be held on intermediate school and high
school campuses that explain the opportunities and commitment required of Clear Horizons
ECHS students; and

V. Development of recruitment and admission information presented in a
bilingual mode.

b. Admission Policies. Admission to Clear Horizons ECHS will be limited to
students who reside in the CCISD and who meet the eligibility requirements for enrollment in an
early college program and dual enrollment program under Applicable Law. The CCISD and
SJCCD recruitment teams will focus on identifying highly-capable students that may or may not
be experiencing academic success. Recruitment efforts will also focus on at-risk students,
historically underserved student populations, and first generation college students. Additionally,
CCISD shall comply with all recruitment and notification requirements of Chapter 28 of the
Texas Education Code. Students will be required to complete online applications for both Clear
Horizons ECHS and SJICCD. SJCCD and the CCISD will develop special college admission
requirements to allow students to begin college credit coursework during the freshman year.
Students must meet established SICCD admission requirements for each college class upon
enrollment.

c. Transportation. In order to facilitate participation by the target population defined
for the Clear Horizons ECHS, CCISD will be responsible for transportation of the ECHS
students to and from the ECHS Facility.

12. Curriculum

a. Courses of Study and Curriculum Alignment. CCISD and SJICCD will develop
an articulated four-year course of study plan (grades 9-12) that meets the requirements of

Applicable Law, provides a seamless transition for students from grade level to grade level,
allows students to transition from a majority of high school classes in grades 9 and 10 to a

Memorandum of Understanding Page 6 of 14
Clear Horizons Early College High School

86



Attachment 1

gradual integration to college-level classes during grades 11 and 12, and represents high levels of
rigor, acceleration, and support. The SJCCD Liaison and the Clear Horizons ECHS Principal
will be responsible for working with Clear Horizons ECHS faculty to develop and refine a clear
and coherent academic program across the two institutions for curriculum alignment.

b. Course Requirements; Monitoring. CCISD shall be responsible for ensuring that
high school curriculum courses will meet the requirements of the Texas Essential Knowledge
and Skills and that Clear Horizons ECHS students are able to meet all high school graduation
requirements, including all End of Course examinations, while earning college credit. CCISD
will be responsible for monitoring and ensuring the quality of instruction for the solely high
school credit courses offered at Clear Horizons ECHS. Clear Horizons ECHS students must
meet all of the regular prerequisites for any college-level course. SJCCD will assess each
student for readiness to engage in any college-level course. Based on such assessment, the
SJCCD Liaison and the Clear Horizons ECHS Principal will determine what forms of assistance
and remediation may be needed by a student prior to the student’s enrollment in a given college-
level course. College- level courses will consist of curricula materials, instructional activities,
method, rigor, and evaluation of student performance as required by SJCCD and Applicable Law
for SJCCD non-Program students. College-level academic courses shall be identified in the
current edition of LDACGM adopted by the THECB. College-level workforce education
courses shall be identified in the current edition of the WECM adopted by the THECB. SJCCD,
in its sole discretion, may offer remedial or developmental courses for ECHS students. Students
enrolled in remedial and developmental courses will not earn college credit for those courses.
SICCD will ensure that college course goals and standards are understood. SJCCD will
designate personnel to monitor the quality of instruction in order to ensure compliance with all
Applicable Law and any accrediting authorities.

c. High School Diploma and Degree. Within this framework, students may be able
to earn the Recommended or an Advanced [Distinguished Achievement] High School Program
diploma within a four-year time frame and 60 credit hours towards an Associate degree, and/or
Baccalaureate degree. Students will be encouraged to pursue a basic associate degree course of
study as an Associate of Arts or Associate of Science. Clear Horizons ECHS students also may
be able to earn the Distinguished Level of Achievement diploma or graduate with endorsements
in accordance with Applicable Law.

d. Instructional Materials. The Clear Horizons ECHS will provide all course
materials, including, textbooks, syllabi, course packets, and other materials needed for classes at
no cost to the student. The funding of materials is addressed in Section 15.c. of this MOU.

13. Students.

a. Student Composition of Classes. Clear Horizons ECHS students enrolled in
SICCD college-level courses may attend classes composed of only Clear Horizons ECHS
students or may attend classes with regular SJCCD students enrolled in that college-level class.
Exceptions for a mixed class, which would also include high school credit-only students, may be
allowed under the following conditions:

Memorandum of Understanding Page 7 of 14
Clear Horizons Early College High School

87



Attachment 1

i If the course is required for completion under the State Board of Education
Recommended or Distinguished Achievement High School Program graduation requirements;

il. If the high school credit-only students are College Board Advanced
Placement students; or

iil. If the course is a career and technology/college workforce education
course and the students are earning articulated credit.

b. Academic Policies. The academic policies of CCISD shall apply to all students
enrolled in the Clear Horizons ECHS. The academic policies of SJCCD shall apply to Clear
Horizons ECHS students as to college-level courses.

C. Student Conduct. Clear Horizons ECHS students are required to adhere to
CCISD and SJCCD policies, procedures, and regulations regarding facilities and equipment
usage and both SJCCD and CCISD codes of student conduct. All disciplinary action, including,
suspension and dismissal from Clear Horizons ECHS, shall be in conformity with the codes of
student conduct of the Parties. In the event of a conflict between the policies of CCISD and
SJCCD, the Parties will collaborate to resolve any conflict.

d. Eligibility for Financial Aid. In addition to any financial support and assistance
provided by the Parties as set forth in this Agreement, the Parties will collaborate on identifying
third party sources of financial assistance, including, without limitation, State, federal, and other
grants; fundraising efforts for the Clear Horizons ECHS; and partnerships with baccalaureate-
granting institutions for scholarships to their institutions.

¢. Accounting for Attendance. The Parties shall comply with the TEA Attendance
Handbook and any THECB attendance requirements for credit in high school courses. Each
Clear Horizons ECHS faculty member will take daily attendance and shall report such
attendance for enrollment and funding purposes as required by Applicable Law. As applicable,
the Parties will refer to the TEA Guidance for ECHS — Dual Enrollment Credit Attendance for
documenting formal attendance-taking procedures.

f. Grading Periods and Policies; Transcripting. For college-level courses, both high
school and college credit shall be transcripted immediately upon a student’s completion of the

performance required in the course. SJICCD will report a letter or numerical grade based on the
SJCCD grading scale to CCISD, which may adapt the grade as required to conform to CCISD
policies and procedures. SJCCD will provide approximate mid-term grade averages in addition
to semester grades.

g. Student Assessment. All Clear Horizons ECHS students are required to
participate in required state, national and federal assessments, which will be administered by the
Clear Horizons ECHS staff. SJCCD agrees to make accommodations in course scheduling and
attendance so that Clear Horizons ECHS students are not penalized in their college credit courses
for their participation in the required state, national and federal assessments.

Memorandum of Understanding Page 8 of 14
Clear Horizons Early College High School

88



Attachment 1

h. Student Records. In accordance with Applicable Law, CCISD will maintain
student records pertaining to Clear Horizons ECHS and provide SICCD copies of the grades,
progress, and other informational data on student assessment, promotion, retention, award of
diplomas, and other student data necessary and advisable for SICCD to perform its obligations
under this MOU. Both Parties will be responsible for maintaining student records and records
pertaining to the Program in conformity with the Texas Record Retention laws. Each Party
designates the other Party as its agent with a legitimate educational interest in students’
educational records for purposes of FERPA. Both Parties shall institute policies and procedures
reasonably designed to ensure that its employees and agents comply with these and all other
federal and state laws governing the rights of Clear Horizons ECHS students with respect to
educational records, and shall protect student education records against accidental or deliberate
re-disclosure to unauthorized persons.

1. Student Support Services. Both Parties will identify and collaborate on measures
to assist those students who may not be performing satisfactorily to succeed. In addition to
enrolling in a double block of math, when appropriate, students will be assigned a
mentor/advisor in high school. During a specifically scheduled advisory class, tcacher
mentors/advisors will meet individually with students to oversee their academic progress,
monitor grading and matriculation decisions, and advise students on making positive post-
graduation plans. Students will also tutor each other and have access to SICCD tutors. At
SJCCD, students will receive support through supplemental instruction, SICCD tutors, and/or
additional sources identified. The SJCCD Liaison assigned to Clear Horizons ECHS will work
to inform the Clear Horizons ECHS administration of students with excessive absences and
academic concerns in college-level courses prior to the end of a semester to provide for
intervention for success. To ensure academic success, the Parties will provide counseling and
academic support services, as may be needed. CCISD will assign a specific counselor to its
Clear Horizons ECHS who will provide academic and counseling support to the Clear Horizons
ECHS learning community’s students and their parents and work with the SJCCD Liaison in the
areas of test preparation, remediation, and the development of an integrated support system for
Clear Horizons ECHS students across the two institutions. The CCISD counselor and SJICCD
Liaison will work to ensure students receive pertinent information regarding higher education,
financial assistance, and assistance waivers for tuition and fees. Each Party will assist families
as they complete initial application and enrollment in the respective organizations’ processes.
SJCCD will assist with registration for all students who are qualified to enroll in SICCD courses.

14. Program Reporting. In addition to any other reports to which the Parties have agreed or
other reporting requirements expressly set forth herein, the Parties will cooperate on the
preparation and submission of the annual and other reports on the progress of the Clear Horizons
ECHS to be submitted to TEA and as may be required by the THECB. The reports will be
provided to each Party and others as deemed appropriate. Data regarding student progress and
success will be collected and shared as deemed appropriate under the supervision of the Steering
Committee.

Memorandum of Understanding Page 9 of 14
Clear Horizons Early College High School

89



Attachment 1

15. Fiscal Matters.

a. Rules for Charging Students. Students enrolled in the Clear Horizons ECHS will
not be charged for costs associated with the Program for tuition and fees, textbooks,
administration of a college placement exam, or fees required by SJCCD for other students
enrolled in SJCCD. Neither CCISD nor SJCCD will be responsible for costs, including, without
limitation, the waiver of tuition and fees, associated with students re-taking a class due to failure,
re-taking a class to obtain a higher grade, or taking courses beyond the prescribed Associate of
Arts (AA) degree plan. Students who re-take classes because of failure or to obtain a higher
grade, as well as those who take classes beyond the prescribed AA degree plan will be
responsible for tuition, fees, and all other costs associated with the classes at the rate assigned to
dual credit students not enrolled in Clear Horizons ECHS.

b. Tuition and Fees. During the Term, SJCCD will waive 75% of the tuition and
fees for all Clear Horizons ECHS students enrolled in college-credit courses. CCISD will pay to
SJCCD 25% of the tuition and fees associated with the college-level courses and provide
textbooks, instructional materials, or any costs associated with enrollment for current ECHS
students enrolled in college courses at SJCCD. Notwithstanding the foregoing, SICCD will
waive 100% of the tuition for current ECHS students enrolled in EDUC 1300 or PSYC 1300
courses. CCISD will also fund the salaries, benefits, and employment taxes for Clear Horizons
ECHS Principal, Counselor, Independent Study and Research Teacher, support staff, and any
other CCISD employees assigned to the Program. SJCCD will provide classroom, office, and
other space for the Clear Horizons ECHS Program at the ECHS Facility. CCISD will support
the Clear Horizons ECHS’ day-to-day operational costs, including administrative and staff
salaries, transportation, and facility and other school-related expenditures.

& Physical Education. As Physical Education is not part of the associate degree
plan, but part of the high school graduation requirements, the requirement will be addressed in
the following manner:

1. Clear Horizons students will enroll in SJCCD PHED courses to meet their
high school graduation requirements in physical education.

ii. However, because the courses are not required for the College’s associate
degree, the 75% dual credit waiver will not apply to the tuition for those courses. CCISD will
pay the full-price applicable tuition for Clear Horizons ECHS students taking these courses (at
in-district, out-of-district, or out-of state rates, based on each student’s residency status).

iii. SJCCD will continue to accept the financial loss of state funding for these
courses under current legislation.

d. Textbooks and Instructional Materials. CCISD will apply to the Texas Education
Agency for textbook waivers for college-level instructional materials. If the applications for
textbook waivers are not successful, the CCISD will assume responsibility of providing college-
level texts and supplemental materials required for classes to the Clear Horizons ECHS students.

e Funding Sources. Each Party is entitled to receive state funding based on current
funding rules of TEA and THECB. CCISD has committed to the Clear Horizons ECHS the use

Memorandum of Understanding Page 10 of 14
Clear Horizons Early College High School

90



Attachment 1

of its local funds for instructional, administrative, and professional development costs beyond the
expenditure of startup funds. In turn, the SJCCD has agreed to provide administrative,
instructional, and support services as well as 75% tuition waiver (or 100% for the two courses
listed in Section 15.b) beyond the expenditure of start-up funds.

i3 Fiscal Agent. The CCISD will act as the fiscal agent for the purposes of this
MOU. Under this arrangement, the CCISD will be the recipient of Clear Horizons ECHS funds
and will be acting as the intermediary for the Clear Horizons ECHS.

16. Release. To the extent permitted by Applicable Law, CCISD does hereby agree to
release SJCCD and its trustees, employees, agents, officers, and representatives from any and all
claims, losses, liabilities, damages, and debts arising from or caused by any act or omission of
CCISD or its trustees, employees, agents, officers and representatives.

17. Insurance. Each Party shall carry general liability insurance to cover against claims,
liabilities, losses, and damages resulting from that Party’s presence on the SJCCD South Campus
property and participation in the Program under this MOU. Each Party shall cause its insurance
policy to contain a waiver of subrogation against the other Party. Each Party shall carry other
insurance as that Party deems advisable to protect against claims or liabilities that may result
from participation in the Program under this MOU.

18. Termination of the MOU.

a. Termination for Cause. Either Party may terminate this MOU due to the default
of the other Party. An event of default shall be deemed to have occurred if a Party commits a
material breach of any provision of this MOU. In the event of default, the non-breaching Party
shall provide written notice to the other Party of the breach specifying the provision claimed to
be breached. Except in the event of a default that threatened the health or safety of students in
which the non-breaching Party may terminate this MOU immediately, the breaching Party shall
have thirty (30) days to cure such default. If the breaching Party fails to cure the breach within
such 30-day time period, the non-breaching Party may terminate this Agreement upon written
notice to the other Party and shall be entitled to any remedies available in equity or law for such
breach.

b. Termination for Convenience. Either Party may terminate this MOU for
convenience and without cause or penalty upon sixty (60) days written notice to the other Party.
In the event of termination for convenience, the Steering Committee will prepare an agreeable
plan of dissolution in accordance with all Applicable Laws.

c. Termination Due to Change in Applicable Law. Either or both Parties may
terminate this MOU in the event that TEA fails to approve the Program for the next school year

or that a change in Applicable Law poses a hardship on either Party in its performance under this
MOU or makes the obligations of either Party untenable. Termination for a change in
Applicable Law or failure to receive Program approval shall occur at the end of the then current
contract year or earlier as may be agreed by the Parties.

Memorandum of Understanding Page 11 of 14
Clear Horizons Early College High School

91



Attachment 1

d. Effect of Termination. Should SICCD or the CCISD terminate their participation
in the Clear Horizons ECHS they will agree to return any unspent funds and provide a complete
accounting for all expenditures to the date of termination.

€. Discontinuance of Clear Horizons ECHS. CCISD and SJICCD agree to comply
with the requirements of Applicable Law for discontinuing operations of Clear Horizons ECHS.
During the teach-out period transitioning from full operation to the discontinued program,
SJCCD and CCISD will continue to meet all of the required elements of an early college high
school program and provide full support for all students enrolled in Clear Horizons ECHS.
During the teach-out period, no new or additional students will be enrolled in Clear Horizons
ECHS in grades that have been phased out. If Clear Horizons ECHS has only ninth and/or ninth
and tenth grade cohorts, the Program will be closed down at the end of the school year in which
the decision is made to discontinue operations. If Clear Horizons ECHS has cleventh and/or
cleventh and twelfth grade cohorts, operation will continue through the graduation date for the
eleventh grade cohort. During this time, services may continue to be offered for enrolled ninth
and tenth grade students through scheduled graduation for the cohort(s); however, a continuation
of services is not required.

19. Miscellaneous Provisions.

a. Amendments. This MOU may be modified and amended only by written
amendment signed by both Parties, and any such modification or amendments shall be attached
to and become a part of this MOU.

b. Governing Law; Venue. This MOU and the rights and obligations herein shall be
performable under, governed by, and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of
Texas without regard to its choice of law or conflicts of law provisions. The parties irrevocably
consent to the sole and exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the courts of Harris County, Texas for
any action under this MOU.

£. Relationship of the Parties. In the performance of their respective duties
hereunder, the Parties hereto and their respective employees and agents, are at all times acting
and performing as independent contractors of each other (notwithstanding the foregoing,
employees of SICCD and CCISD may teach college courses as adjunct professors of SICCD or
through some other teaching arrangement, if such arrangement is approved in advance by the
Parties). No Party will have the authority to act for or bind another Party in any respect or to
incur or assume any expense, debt, obligation, liability, tax, or responsibility on behalf of or in
the name of another Party hereto. Neither party shall have control over the other party with
respect to its hours, times, employment, etc. The Parties acknowledge and agree that no Party
will be liable for the activities of another Party, including, but not limited to, any liabilities,
losses, damages, suits, actions, fines, penalties, claims, or demands of any kind arising out of this
MOU.

Memorandum of Understanding Page 12 of 14
Clear Horizons Early College High School

92



Attachment 1

d. Communication and Cooperation. The Parties acknowledge their respective duties
and obligations to enforce their student codes of conduct and policies applicable to both students and
staff, as well as investigate and address reports of concerns that implicate state and federal law,
including, but not limited to, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1974. To ensure that both
Parties comply with these sometimes overlapping obligations, the Parties agree that their
designees responsible for discharging these duties will act cooperatively, communicate fully, and
share information as permitted by Applicable Law.

e. No Waiver. No delay or failure by a Party in exercising any right, power or
privilege under this MOU or any other instruments given in connection with or pursuant to this
MOU will impair any such right, power or privilege or be construed as a waiver of or
acquiescence in any default. No single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege will
preclude the further exercise of that right, power or privilege or the exercise of any other right,
power or privilege.

t. Assignment. Neither Party may assign its interest in the MOU without the written
permission of the other Party.

g. Entire Agreement. This MOU constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties
regarding the subject matter herein described. This MOU supersedes all negotiations or previous
agreements between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. The Parties expressly
acknowledge that in entering into and executing this MOU the Parties rely solely upon the
representations and agreements contained in this MOU and no others. No subsequent change or
modification of this MOU is binding unless in writing and signed by the Parties.

h. Notice. All notices hereunder by either party to the other shall be in writing,
delivered personally, by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, by overnight
courier, or any manner permitted under the Texas Electronics Transactions Act, and shall be
deemed to have been duly given when delivered personally, when deposited in the United States
mail, postage prepaid, or when received addressed as follows:

COLLEGE: SCHOOL DISTRICT:

San Jacinto Community College District  Clear Creek Independent School District
Chancellor Superintendent

4624 Fairmont Parkway, A1.200 2425 E. Main Street

Pasadena, Texas 77504 League City, Texas 77573

COPY TO:

San Jacinto Community College South Campus
Provost

13735 Beamer Road, $S6.211

Houston, Texas 77089

Memorandum of Understanding Page 13 of 14
Clear Horizons Early College High School

93



Attachment 1

or to such other persons or places as either party may from time to time designate by written
notice to the other.

1. Captions. The captions contained herein are used solely for convenience and shall
not be deemed to define or limit the provisions of this MOU.

j-  Severability. If any provision of this MOU is held to be invalid or unenforceable for
any reason, this MOU shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms
disregarding such unenforceable or invalid provision.

k. No Third-Party Rights. This MOU is made for the sole benefit of CCISD and SICCD
and their respective successors and permitted assigns. Nothing in this MOU will create or be
deemed to create a relationship between the Parties to this MOU and any third person, including
a relationship in the nature of a third-party beneficiary or fiduciary.

. Counterparts. This MOU may be executed in identical counterparts, all of which will
be deemed an original, but all of which will constitute one and the same instrument. Each Party
may rely on facsimile or electronic signature pages as if such facsimile or electronic pages were
originals.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Memorandum of Understanding
as of the Effective Date of :

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

By:
Dr. Brenda Hellyer, Chancellor Date

By:
Mr. Dan Mims, Chairman, Board of Trustees Date

CLEAR CREEK INDEPENDENY SCHOOL DISTRICT
-
By: _— = 3 7 a({/%
Dr-Gregory gith/Su' intendent of Schools Date
By: Wi 25-1b
D# Latra DuPont, President, Board of Trustees Date
Memorandum of Understanding Page 14 of 14

Clear Hotizons Early College High School

94



Action Item “XIV”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016

Consideration of Approval of Memorandum of Understanding Between
Harris County Department of Education and San Jacinto College District

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with the Harris County Department of Education (HCDE).

BACKGROUND

Historically, the College and the HCDE have partnered with a food program. This MOU
expands the partnership and calls for the HCDE to pay tuition and fees for their employees
pursuing the Child Development Associate (CDA) credential. Approximately ten (10)
students will take classes under this agreement.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

The MOU provides for HCDE to designate and identify Head Start staff members who will
enroll in the child development program. In addition, they will pay the College all tuition and
fees for the CDA credentialing classes. The College is responsible for providing course
instruction and academic advising for HCDE Head Start staff members. The proposed MOU
outlines the duties and responsibilities of both parties governing this agreement.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

No additional personnel costs are anticipated because of this agreement. Institutional revenue
will be enhanced through tuition, fees, and potential contact hour funding. In addition, no
physical plant, renovations, or additions will be required. The source of funding for all
payments made by HCDE pursuant to this MOU is federal funds from a U.S. Health and
Human Services Head Start grant. The College acknowledges that federal funds will be used
to pay for all payments under this MOU and that this MOU is subject to appropriation and
approval of a Head Start grant by the United States federal government.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The initial term of this MOU shall be from September 20, 2016 through July 31, 2017. This
MOU shall automatically renew for up to three additional one-year terms, for a maximum
total term of four years and one month, unless either party gives the other party prior written
notice of at least thirty (30) days before the start of a renewal term of the party’s desire that
this MOU not be automatically renewed.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 - Memorandum of Understanding Between Harris County Department of
Education and San Jacinto Community College District

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Shawn B. Silman 281-459-7623 shawn.silman@sjcd.edu
Randy Snyder 281-998-6150 ext. 7228 randy.snyder@sjcd.edu
Caresal Bolds 281-459-7635 caresal.bolds@sjcd.edu


mailto:pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu

Attachment 1

/...,* SAN JACINTO
<X HCDE S o

HARRIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Your Goals. Your College.

MEMORANDUM of UNDERSTANDING
Between Harris County Department of Education and San Jacinto Community College District

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is made and entered into by and between Harris County Department of Education
(“HCDE”) and San Jacinto Community College District (“College™) as of September 20, 2016 (“Effective Date”) for the purpose of the
College providing instruction to HCDE’s Head Start staff members at HCDE’s expense, pursuant to the terms and conditions outlined
herein.

Whereas, HCDE has been awarded one or more grants from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services to operate Head Start
and Early Head Start programs in the greater Houston area;

Whereas, Head Start regulations require Head Start and Early Head Start teachers and assistants to possess a Child Development Associate
(“CDA”) credential;

Whereas, the College offers classes necessary to obtain the CDA credential (“CDA credential classes”);

Whereas, HCDE desires to assist its Head Start and Early Head Start teachers and/or assistants with obtaining the CDA credential by
paying for the CDA credential classes at the College;

Whereas, HCDE and the College desire to collaborate to register HCDE Head Start staff for CDA credential classes at College’s San
Jacinto College-North campus

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained in this MOU and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

1. Term. The initial term of this MOU shall be from September 20, 2016 through July 31, 2017 (“Initial Term”). This MOU shall
automatically renew for up to three additional one-year terms, (each a “Renewal Term” and collectively “Renewal Terms”) for
a maximum total term of four years and one month, unless either party gives the other party prior written notice of at least thirty
(30) days before the start of a renewal term of the party’s desire that this MOU not be automatically renewed. As used herein
the term “Term” shall mean the Initial Term and Renewal Terms collectively. This MOU may be modified and amended only
by mutual agreement of the Parties in a signed written medication instrument, and any such modification or amendment shall be
attached and become a part of this MOU as if set forth herein.

2. HCDE Responsibilities. HCDE and its Head Start Division shall be responsible for the following:

a. Designate Head Start staff members to enroll and to complete CDA credential classes at the College;

b. Pay the College the tuition and fees for the CDA credential classes in which HCDE Head Start staff members designated by
HCDE are enrolled within fifteen (15) days of receiving an invoice from the College;

c. Obtain consent forms compliant with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34 CFR Part 99
(“FERPA”) from HCDE Head Start staff members (or if applicable under FERPA, the parents of the staff members) enrolled
in CDA credential classes with the College that permits authorized representatives of HCDE’s Head Start Division to access
information from the College concerning education records and other personally identifiable information of students.

3. College Responsibilities. College shall be responsible for the following:
a. Child Development/Early Childhood Education Department Director will provide course counseling for HCDE Head Start
staff members;
b. Permit HCDE and HCDE’s Head Start Division to designate Head Start staff members to enroll and to complete CDA
credential classes at the College;
c. Review transcripts, test scores, and other criteria for enrollment and eligibility in CDA credential classes at the College;
Assist with enrolling HCDE Head Start staff members designated by HCDE in CDA credential classes at the College;
e. Bill HCDE directly, after the official day of enrollment and no later than the 3. day after courses have begun of each
semester during the term of this MOU, for the tuition for all classes in which HCDE Head Start staff members designated
by HCDE are enrolled;

e



10.

Attachment 1

f. Award HCDE Head Start staff members who complete CDA credential classes with college credit.

g. Upon receipt of consent forms signed by the student in accordance with the requirements of FERPA, provide authorized
representatives of HCDE Head Start with information concerning HCDE Head Start staff members enrolled in CDA
credential classes with the College the education records and other personally identifiable information of students that the
students (or parents, if applicable) have authorized the College to disclose to HCDE.

Collaboration. HCDE Head Start and College representatives will meet to identify appropriate College classes that qualify for
CDA certification. The Parties agree to correspond periodically, as needed, for the purposes of planning, monitoring, and
evaluation, as necessary. The Parties agree to perform (or procure the performance of) all further acts and things, and execute
and deliver (or procure the execution and delivery of) such further documents, as may be required by law or as the other party
reasonably may require to implement and/or give effect to this MOU and the transactions contemplated by it so long as such
documents are in a form acceptable to both parties.

Termination. Either party may terminate this MOU at any time if that party, in its sole discretion, determines that it is in the
party’s best interest to do so. In the event of material breach by a party, the non-defaulting party will give the party alleged to
have committed a breach fifteen (15) days written notice in which to cure. If that party has not cured within such fifteen (15)
day period, the non-breaching party may terminate this agreement and seek any remedies in law or equity that may be available
to that party for a breach by the other party.

Acknowledgement of Federal Funding. The source of funding for all payments made by HCDE pursuant to this MOU is federal
funds from a U.S. Health and Human Services Head Start grant. College acknowledges that federal funds will be used to pay for
all payments due under this MOU and that this MOU is subject to appropriation and approval of a Head Start Grant by the United
States federal government. As such, if HCDE does not receive sufficient grant funding, either party may terminate this MOU without
penalty or further obligation to the other party upon written notice.

Relationship of the Parties. The parties acknowledge and agree that College is independent of HCDE and not an employee agent
of or in a joint venture or legal partnership arrangement with HCDE and HCDE not an employee agent of or in a joint venture or
legal partnership arrangement with the College. Nothing this MOU shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing
the relationship of employer and employee, agent, joint venturer or partner, between HCDE and College, HCDE and any of
College’s representatives, or the College and any of the HCDE representatives. Except as otherwise set forth herein, neither
party may bind the other party to any third party obligations including those in contract.

Forms. The Vendor Certification Forms attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference in this MOU for all purposes.

Access to Records. Both parties shall retain financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records

pertinent to this MOU for a period of three years from the last day of the Term or as long as required under the Texas Records

Retention laws except for the following:

a. Ifany litigation, dispute, or audit is started before the expiration of the three-year period, the records shall be retained until
all litigation, dispute, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved and final action is taken.

b. Records for real property and equipment acquired with Federal funds shall be retained for three years after final disposition.

c. HHS, the Inspector General, Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives, have
the right of timely and unrestricted access to any books, documents, papers, or other records of HCDE or the College that
are pertinent to this MOU, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, transcripts, and copies of such documents. This
right also includes timely and reasonable access to each respective party’s applicable personnel for the purpose of interview
and discussion related to such documents. The rights of access provided for in this MOU are not limited to the required
retention period, but shall last as long as the records are retained.

Compliance with Laws. Both parties agree to perform under this MOU in compliance with all federal, state, and local laws,
rules, regulations, and ordinances, as applicable, including, but not limited to, Title 2 CFR Part 200, Title 2 CFR Part 215, Title
2 CFR Part 220, Title 2 CFR Part 225, Title 2 CFR Part 230, Title 45 CFR Part 74, Title 45 CFR Part 75, Title 45 CFR Part 92,
and Title 45 CFR Part 93, FERPA; and the Texas Public Information Act, Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code; the Texas
Education Code; and all interpreting authorities and regulations of the foregoing. Either HCDE or College may object to
disclosure of information and records under FERPA and/or the Texas Public Information Act. While in possession of FERPA
records and data, only persons authorized to access FERPA-protected information of HCDE Head Start staff members enrolled
in College classes will be granted access, in accordance with FERPA.




11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Attachment 1

No Waiver of Immunity. Neither HCDE nor College waives or relinquishes any immunity or defense entitled to either Party by
law. This non-waiver of immunity extends to the trustees, officers, directors, employees, and agents of HCDE and College.

No Wavier. No waiver of a breach of any provision in this MOU shall be construed to be a waiver of any breach of any other
provision. No delay in acting with regard to any breach of any provision shall be construed to be a waiver of such breach.

Notice. Any notice required to be given under the provisions of this MOU shall be in writing and shall be duly served when it
shall be hand-delivered to the addresses set out below, or shall have been duly deposited, duly registered or certified, return
receipt requested, in a United States Post Office addressed to the Party at the following addresses:

To: HCDE

Harris County Department of Education

Attn: James Colbert, Jr., County School Superintendent
6300 Irvington Boulevard

Houston, Texas 77022

cc: Sarah W. Langlois

Rogers, Morris & Grover, LLP
5718 Westheimer Road, Suite 1200
Houston, Texas 77057

To: College

San Jacinto Community College

Attn: Shawn Silman, Dean of Liberal Arts
5800 Uvalde Road, N-1.104

Houston, TX 77049

cc: Maureen Singleton
Thompson & Horton LLP

3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2000
Houston, Texas 77027

Any Party may designate a different address by giving the other Party ten (10) days prior written notice in the manner provided
above.

No Assignment. No assignment of this MOU, or of any duty, obligation, performance, or payment hereunder, shall be made be
either party, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other party, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld.

Section Headings. The headings of sections contained in this MOU are for convenience only, and they shall not, expressly or by
implication, limit, define, extend, or construe the terms or provisions of the sections of this MOU.

No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this MOU shall be deemed or construed to create any third party beneficiaries or
otherwise give any third party any claim or right of action against either HCDE or College.

Severability. If any provision of this MOU shall be determined to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this
MOU shall not be affected thereby, and every provision of this MOU shall remain in full force and effect and enforceable to the
fullest extent permitted by law.

Rights Cumulative. The rights and remedies provided in this MOU are cumulative and not exhaustive and are in addition to any
other rights and remedies the partners may have at law or otherwise.

Entire Agreement. This MOU and any valid amendments to the MOU constitute the entire and complete understanding of HCDE
and College and may not be modified in any manner without the express written consent of both parties, as provided herein.

Counterparts; Electronic Transmission; Electronic Signatures. This MOU may be may be executed in identical counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original for all purposes, but all of which shall constitute one document; provided each of the
parties hereto executes at least one counterpart. A facsimile or other electronic signature to this MOU shall be sufficient to prove

3




Attachment 1

the execution hereby by any party. The parties consent to the attaching signatures to this document by electronic means and such
signature shall be considered an original for purposes of execution.

[Signatures appear on the following page]

[Signature page for Memorandum of Understanding with an Effective Date of September 20, 2016]

In witness whereof, HCDE and College have executed this Agreement to be effective on the Effective Date:
San Jacinto Community College District Harris County Department of Education
By: By:

Brenda Hellyer, Chancellor James Colbert, Jr.
County School Superintendent




Action Item “XV

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval of Pasadena Early College
High Schools Memorandum of Understanding

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Pasadena Early College
High Schools Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). This MOU is an update to the
agreement signed in 2013. This document is intended to apply to all current and subsequent
Early College High Schools established by Pasadena Independent School District (PISD).

BACKGROUND

Pasadena Early College High School (PECHS) began in 2011 with its inaugural class of 9
grade students. PECHS has subsequently added new 9™ grade classes each fall since that
time. The school has now had two classes of graduating seniors, many of whom also
completed Associate Degrees prior to high school graduation. The school operates as a
“school within a school” model at Pasadena High School. Ninth and tenth graders enroll in
dual credit courses taught by San Jacinto College faculty at the Pasadena High School
facility. Eleventh and twelfth graders attend high school and college courses at San Jacinto
College Central Campus.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

This action will continue the project with the addition of approximately 125 new 9" graders
each fall. In addition, this MOU outlines the proposed addition of four new early college
high schools in fall 2017. These new schools will continue to be offered as school-within-a-
school models at Dobie, South Houston, Sam Rayburn, and Pasadena Memorial High
Schools. The MOU outlines the collaborative agreement between the College and PISD for
the operation of PECHS and the subsequent additional four ECHSs.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)
PECHS tuition and fees are paid by Pasadena Independent School District with a 75% tuition
and fee waiver granted by San Jacinto College for all dual credit coursework. The College
will provide a 100% tuition waiver for current PECHS students enrolled in EDUC 1300 or
PSYC 1300. This waiver will extend to the additional ECHSs when they open.

PISD will provide bus transportation to and from the San Jacinto College Central Campus for
the ECHS students. San Jacinto College provides a dining facility available for the use of
ECHS students, faculty, and/or staff.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The parties will collaborate on the preparation and submission of reports to required state
agencies and to the administration and governing boards of each organization.

100



Action Item “XV
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval of Pasadena Early College
High Schools Memorandum of Understanding
ATTACHMENTS
Attachment 1 - Pasadena Early College High School Memorandum of Understanding
RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Pamela S. Campbell 281-991-2672 pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu
Nicole Barnes 713-754-8411 nicole.barnes@sjcd.edu

101


mailto:pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu
mailto:nicole.barnes@sjcd.edu

Attachment 1

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
PASADENA ISD EARLY COLLEGE HIGH SCHOOL PROGRAMS

This Memorandum of Understanding (“Agreement”) is by and between the San Jacinto
Community College District, a public community college established under Chapter 130 of the
Texas Education Code and political subdivision of the State of Texas, (“SJCCD”) and the
Pasadena Independent School District, a Texas public independent school district established
by law and political subdivision of the State of Texas, (“Pasadena 1SD”) with an effective date
of July 1, 2016 (“Effective Date”). Individually, SJCCD and Pasadena ISD are referred to herein
as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, SJCCD and Pasadena ISD have established and desire to continue operation
of early college high school programs referred to as Pasadena ISD Early College High School
Programs (“ECHS Programs™) as further described in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, SJCCD and Pasadena ISD have established a desire to continue operation of
an early college high school program referred to as Pasadena Early College High School
(“Pasadena ECHS”) as further described in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, SICCD and Pasadena ISD have established a desire to begin operation of
four early college high school programs referred to as Dobie Early College High School (“Dobie
ECHS”), Pasadena Memorial Early College High School (“Pasadena Memorial ECHS”),
Sam Rayburn Early College High School (“Sam Rayburn ECHS”), and South Houston Early
College High School (“South Houston ECHS”) as further described in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have submitted and will submit a program application to the Texas
Education Agency (“TEA”) as required by and in accordance with Section 29.908 of the Texas
Education Code and 19 Texas Administrative Code §§ 4.151-4.161; 4.81-4.85; and 102.1091; and

WHEREAS, upon approval from TEA, the ECHS Programs will continue operation under
the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and any additional requirements imposed by
TEA; and

WHEREAS, upon approval from TEA, the Dobie ECHS, Pasadena Memorial ECHS, Sam
Rayburn ECHS, and South Houston ECHS will operate under the terms and conditions set forth
in this Agreement and any additional requirements imposed by TEA.

NOW THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and covenants contained herein and other
good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: '

AGREEMENT

1. Incorporation. The foregoing recitals and any and all exhibits attached hereto are
incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes.

. Pagelof19

102




Attachment 1

2. Background and Purpose, High School. Tn 2011-2012, the Parties began serving
approximately 60 9 grade students at the Pasadena ECHS. Applicable Law (as hereinafter
defined) permits a public school district and public college to collaborate to provide concurrent
enrollment for academic dual credit consisting of a course of study combining high school courses
and college-level courses during grades 9 through 12 for students who are at risk of dropping out
of school (as defined in Section 29.081 of the Texas Education Code) or who wish to accelerate
completion of the high school program. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the rights
and obligations of the Parties with respect to the operation of the ECHS Program, which consists
of a four-year highly rigorous high school program with early college component (“ECHS
Program”) that complies with all Applicable Law. The ECHS Programs will operate within
comprehensive high schools while providing small school environments with a highly rigorous
program of study and support programs that enable participating students to achieve the
Foundation High School Program with an Endorsement and Distinguished Level of Achievement
with Performance Acknowledgement. Students graduating in 2017 will be able to achieve
Recommended High School Program or Distinguished Achievement Program.

3. Background and Purpose, College. The ECHS Programs will provide a course
of study that enables participating students to complete the Texas Higher Education Coordinating
Board (THECB) core curriculum (as defined by the Texas Administrative Code (TAC) §4.28) or
an associate’s degree or at least 60 credit hours toward a baccalaurcate degree during grades 9-12
by the fifth anniversary of the student’s first day of high school. Additionally, the ECHS Programs
will provide advanced academic opportunities including college and career counseling and may
provide service learning, and workplace internships. Each ECHS Program will continue to phase
in approximately 100-125 students in grade 9 on a yearly basis, with a maximum enrollment not
to exceed 500 students. The 9™ and 10" grade ECHS students will attend classes at their respective
high schools and the 11™ and 12 grade students will attend classes at SICCD’s Central or South
campuses.

4, Applicable Law. The Parties agree to operate the ECHS Programs in compliance
with the applicable federal, State, and local laws, implementing regulations, executive orders, and
interpreting authorities including, but not limited to, (a) the following federal statutes as may be
amended: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; Title VII of the Civil Rights Act; Title IX of
the Education Amendments of 1974; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975; the Americans with Disabilities Act; the Family Educational Rights
and Privacy Act of 1974 (“FERPA”); Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965; and
Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act; (b) the Texas constitution; (c) applicable provisions
of the Texas Education Code, including, without limitation, Section 29.908 and Chapter 39; (d)
State and federal laws regarding the reporting of any and all alleged child abuse, school-related
crimes, and sexual molestation of students; () applicable provisions of the Texas Penal Code and
Texas Family Code; (f) State record retention laws; (g) applicable provisions of Title 19 of the
Texas Administrative Code, including, without limitation, Chapter 4, Subchapters D and G;
Section 102.1091; and Chapters 110-125; (h) TEA guidelines and requirements, including, the
Student Attendance Accounting Handbook (“Attendance Handbook”) and the Financial
Accountability System Resource Guide; and (i) Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board
(“THECB”) guidelines and requirements, including, without limitation, course conformity in

Page2of19

103



Attachment 1

accordance with the Lower Division Academic Course Guide Manual (‘“ACGM”) and the
Workforce Education Course Manual (“WECM?”) . The Parties agree to and shall cause the
Advisory Board and Collaborative Committee to operate the ECHS Programs in compliance with
applicable STCCD and Pasadena ISD board policies and procedure and policics and procedutes
that may be agreed upon by the Parties and approved for the ECHS Programs. For employees
working at SICCD, SICCD will monitor and oversee its employees as well as ECHS Program
personnel to ensure that they follow SJICCD’s operating procedures and policies for working and
conducting business at SJCCD. The Parties agree to comply with all assurances in the ECHS
Program application submitted to TEA and any additional requirements for the ECHS Program
adopted by the THECB. The foregoing as set forth in this Section 3 and Section 4 and any other
laws, rules, and guidelines applicable to the subject matter of this Agreement collectively shall be
referred to as "Applicable Law" or "Applicable Laws" when used herein.

5. Term. Subject to approval of the Program application by TEA, any additional
approvals that may be required from the THECB, and annual approval as required by law or by
TEA or THECB, the term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date
(“Commencement Date”) and shall continue until terminated by the parties as ptovided in section
18 (“Expiration Date”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, both Parties acknowledge and agree that
a condition precedent to a Party’s signing the Agreement is approval of the Agreement by that
Party’s governing board.

6. Governance.

a. Governing Structure. The governing structure of the Program shall include
the appointment of an Advisory Council and Collaborative Committee as described below.

b. ECHS Program Liaisons. The ECHS Programs will be managed on a daily
basis by the Pasadena ISD Early College High School District Coordinator (“ECHS
Coordinator”), who shall be a Pasadena ISD employee, and will serve as liaison for the ECHS
Programs. SJCCD will provide a representative to participate in the process of hiring the ECHS
Coordinator. Pasadena ISD will provide a representative to participate in the process of hiring the
SJCCD Dual Credit Directors, who shall be SJCCD employees. SJCCD shall designate the person
to serve as liaison with Pasadena ISD (“SJCCD Liaison™) as it relates to the ECHS Programs.
The SJCCD Liaison will cooperate with and facilitate communication between the Pasadena ISD
and SJICCD. The SICCD Liaison will meet with the ECHS Coordinator and other representatives
as may be needed to support the ECHS Programs.

7. ECHS Program Organization,

a. Policies and Procedures. Except for building use policies of the entity on
whose campus the ECHS Program is in operation for that cohort of students and as may be
otherwise set forth in this Agreement or required by Applicable Law, the policies and procedures
relating to the high school portion of the ECHS Programs shall be governed by the Pasadena [SD
policies and regulations, including the Pasadena ISD Board Policy Manual, Employee Handbook,
and Student Handbook. All policies relating to the college courses and college services portion of

Page 3 of 19

104




Attachment 1

the ECHS Programs shall be governed by the SJCCD policies and procedures, including the
SICCD Code of Student Conduct, regardless of the location of the infraction.

b. ECHS Program Advisory Council. An advisory council (“Advisory
Council”) comprised of representatives from the SICCD, Pasadena ISD, community/business
partner(s), a parent reptesentative, and a student representative will meet on a biannual and/or as
needed basis in order to facilitate communication, evaluate instructional and programmatic
activities, identify issues and challenges, make recommendations, and enhance collaboration to
ensure implementation of the ECHS Programs in accordance with this Agreement, Applicable
Law, and expectations of the Parties for the ECHS Programs. Members of the Advisory Council
will include the Pasadena ISD Superintendent of Schools, Deputy Superintendent of Academic
Achievement, Associate Superintendents for Campus Development, Executive Director of
Curriculum and Instruction, Director of College Readiness and Counseling, ECHS Coordinator,
high school principals, ECHS Deans (“Deans”), and ECHS Counselors. Members of the Advisory
Council from SJICCD will include the Associate Vice Chancellor for Student Success Partnerships,
Provosts (Central and South Campuses), applicable deans and department chairs, and Dual Credit
Directors (Central and South Campuses). The parent representative, student representative, and
Community/Business Partner(s) will be agreed upon by Pasadena ISD and SJCCD. The parent
and student representatives to the Advisory Council will be elected following the first parent-
student meeting of the year through an onsite nomination/election process. The term of office for
the parent and student representatives will be one year. Student representatives will be afforded
the opportunity to address the Advisory Council during each council meeting. Representatives of
the Advisory Council are subject to change as advised and agreed upon by the existing Advisory
Council members. During the Term, the Advisory Council will conduct an annual review of this
Agreement for the purpose of program evaluation and recommendation of proposed changes based
on ECHS Program needs. Specifically, the Advisory Council will meet in order to:

i. Develop and implement academic and professional policy as related
to the ECHS Programs;
ii. Develop and implement budgets and financial policy as related to
the ECHS Programs;
it Supervise annual cvaluation and effectiveness of the ECHS
Programs;
iv. Ensure adherence to Applicable Laws that affect the safety and well-

being of students enrolled in the ECHS Programs; and

V. Review the Agreement, articulation agreements, and suggest
revisions on an annual basis or as needed. '

c. ECHS Program Collaborative Committee. Each ECHS Program will also
establish a collaborative committee (“Collaborative Committee™), chaired by the ECHS Program
Dean. The Collaborative Committee will meet at least every six weeks to review ECHS Program
progress, discuss implementation issues, and make recommendations regarding policies, practices,

Page 4 of 19

105



Attachment 1

and procedures to improve the ECHS Program. Members of the Collaborative Committee will
consist of the Dean, the high school Principal, the ECHS Counselor, the ECHS Coordinator, and
the SJCCD Dual Credit Director.

8. School Calendar. The ECHS Programs will follow a schedule that facilitates the
offering of college and high school courses simultaneously. The Dual Credit Directors will plan
and schedule college level courses collaboratively with the ECHS Counselors. For SICCD courses
taken for credit at either the high schoo! location or the SJCCD location, the instructional calendar
will follow the SJICCD instructional calendar, When a scheduling conflict exists in the
instructional calendars of Pasadena ISD and SJCCD in which Pasadena ISD requires student
attendance but SJCCD does not provide an instructional day, Pasadena ISD assumes responsibility
for the students to meet the attendance requirements of Applicable Law. When a scheduling
conflict exists in the instructional calendars of Pasadena ISD and SICCD in which SICCD requires
student attendance but Pasadena ISD does not provide an instructional day, SICCD assumes
responsibility for the students to meet the attendance requirements of Applicable Law, The
instructional calendar for the high school portion of the ECHS Programs will be based on the
Pasadena ISD calendar and comply with all related TEA regulations for attendance. Where
allowed by Applicable Law, including, without limitation, Section 29.0822 of the Texas Education
Code and 19 Texas Administrative Code § 129.1027, and further subject to approval of both
Parties, the ECHS Program calendar may vary from that set forth herein in order to best fit the
needs of students and reasonably interrelate with the respective academic calendars.

9, ECHS Program Facilities.

a. Pasadena ISD Facilities. The 9% and [0" grade portions of the ECHS
Programs will be located in dedicated spaces at the Pasadena ISD high school campuses (“ECHS
Program Facilities”) and will serve as small learning communities. The ECHS Program Facilitues
include core learning classrooms and a computer lab, as well as administrative and student support
areas. As the number of students increase, Pasadena ISD will provide additional space to meet
these needs and maintain the goal of creating a college culture that is separate from the remainder
of the comprehensive high school student body. Pasadena ISD will provide office space at the
ECHS Program Facility as needed for ECHS Program faculty and SJCCD instructors involved in
the ECHS Program. In addition to the designated ECHS Program Facility at cach high school,
ECHS Program students will have access and use of the main high school libraries, cafeterias,
college rooms, and extra-cutricular activity areas as needed and appropriate. Pasadena ISD shall
be responsible for maintenance and operations at each high school including the ECHS Program
Facility.

b. SJICCD Academic and Administrative Facilities. For the 11th and 12th
grade portion of the Program, and according to the degree pian, ECHS Program students will attend
classes at the appropriate SICCD Campus (“STCCD ECHS Facility”). As the number of students
increase, the SJICCD Facility will provide sufficient administrative and faculty offices, student
classrooms, and student support areas. SICCD will provide office furniture, computers, printers,
data and internet connection, and telephones in the offices of the STCCD ECHS Facilities. SICCD
shall be responsible for maintenance and operations at SJCCD Campuses including the SICCD
ECHS Facilities.

Page 5 of 19

106




Attachment 1

c. Food Service at SJCCD. SJCCD will allow Pasadena ISD to use furniture
and food service area to meet Pasadena ISD food service requirements. Pasadena ISD shall be
responsible for Pasadena ISD Food Setvice Personnel and for all food prepared and served by their
personnel to ECHS Program students at the SICCD ECHS Facilities. Pasadena ISD is responsible
for meeting all federal and state regulations for providing food services to ECHS Program students
including those students qualifying for the free and reduced meal program. Pasadena ISD shall be
responsible for any property damage to the SICCD food service equipment caused by the Pasadena
ISD personnel at the SICCD food service arcas. SJICCD will provide designated and secure areas
for Pasadena ISD Food Service Personnel to safely lock money collected from students. However,
SJICCD assumes no liability for lost or stolen money. Pasadena 1SD will assume responsibility for
arranging appropriate security for transporting the monics from safes at the SJCCD ECHS
Facilities to Pasadena ISD administration building following Pasadena ISD policy, procedures,
and guidelines.

d. Other SJCCD Accessibility. Subject to availability and SICCD building
use and other applicable policies and procedures, SICCD will provide to students and employees
of the ECHS Programs reasonable access to all Central and South Campus buildings, including
the student center, for meetings, socialization, and cultural events sponsored by and/or associated
with the ECHS Programs. Access for facilities, services, and resources will be addressed by the
Collaborative Committees for each ECHS and appropriate SJCCD Dual Credit Offices.

€. Student Identification. ECHS Program students will have both a Pasadena
ISD and SJICCD Identification Card which will give them access to the ECHS Program Facilities,
the SJCCD ECHS Facilities, and resources available to all students enrolled at these institutions.
The SICCD students will be expected to carry both identification cards on their person at all times.

10. ECHS Program Faculty.

a. Faculty for High School Courses. To teach high school level courses in the
ECHS Programs, Pasadena ISD instructors must meet certification requirements in their subject
area to teach in the State of Texas. ECHS Program instructors teaching high school level courses
will be selected based on the ECHS teacher job description and Pasadena ISD) interview process
and hiring practices. ECHS Program instructors teaching high school courses will be Pasadena
ISD employees and will be supervised by Pasadena ISD. Pasadena ISD employees assigned to the
ECHS Program will be evaluated by Pasadena ISD according to Applicable Law, Pasadena ISD
policies and procedures, and criteria established by any teacher appraisal system adopted by
Pasadena ISD.

b. Faculty for College Courses. Instructors teaching college courses must be
employed SJCCD faculty members. Instructors must meet the SACSCOC standards for faculty
credentials as outlined in the SACSCOC Faculty Credential Guidelines (see Appendix A). SJCCD
shall select its instructors who teach the college courses in which ECHS Program students are
enrolled based upon their previous experience and success in teaching freshman courses,
developmental and accelerated courses, and dual-enrollment courses. SJCCD shall supervise and

Page 6 of 19

107




Attachment 1

evaluate its instructors who teach college courses in which ECHS Program students are enrolled,
in accordance with SICCD performance management policies and procedures.

c. Pasadena ISD Employees as SJCCD Adjunct Faculty. As needed and to the
extent permitted by Applicable Law, ECHS Program faculty who are Pasadena ISD employees
and meet the requirements necessary to teach college fevel courses may apply for adjunct instructor
status from SICCD during their assignment. Those faculty who qualify and are hired as adjunct
professors will adhere to the SICCD syllabus associated with their respective disciplines and will
be entitled to the services provided by SICCD to other adjunct instructor faculty.

d. Compensation of Faculty Instructor Program Stipends. Each Party shall be
responsible for the payment of the salary, benefits, and employment taxes of its respective
employees performing services for or at the ECHS Programs. Pasadena ISD faculty functioning
as college professors as part of the instructional day will be paid by Pasadena ISD. SJCCD wilt
remit to Pasadena ISD the corresponding adjunct instructor hourly rate for all classes taught during
Pasadena ISD’s instructional day.

e. Professional Development, Pasadena ISD and SJCCD have a history of
cooperation in staff development to support P-16 initiatives to ensure student success throughout
all academic transitions and institutions. The collaboration to create the ECHS Program builds on
that history of cooperation. In addition to common planning time during the day, SJICCD and
Pasadena ISD will provide time for the ECHS Program teachers, whether teaching high school
courses or college courses, to collaboratively create and implement a rigorous academic program.
To ensure alignment, Pasadena ISD teachers assigned to the ECHS Programs will have the
opportunity to meet with SICCD faculty and observe instruction of college courses in preparation
for teaching prerequisite courses not offered at SJCCD, and likewise, SJICCD instructors will have
the opportunity to visit ECHS Program classrooms taught by Pasadena ISD faculty to support
college level rigor in prerequisite classes taught at the ECHS Programs. Professional development
for cross-over learning and collaboration will be planned and implemented by the ECHS
Coordinator and the SJCCD Liaison. Both SJCCD and Pasadena ISD will share in the
responsibility of assisting parents in preparing students for a “college going” and “college ready”
culture. Additionally, each Party shall provide other professional development opportunities to its
own employees in the same or similar manner as provided to its other professional employees.
Pasadena ISD and SJCCD will provide awareness opportunities to both high school and college
instructors regarding the unique needs of high school students taking college courses.

11, Student Recruitment and Selection.

a. Recruitment Efforts. To secure the broadest applicant pool possible, each
of the Parties will participate in a recruitment effort for the ECHS Programs by focusing on
qualified eighth grade students residing in the Pasadena ISD attendance zones in the F all of each
year. This recruitment process will include:

i. The distribution of recruitment/admission packets to all 8" grade
students residing in the Pasadena ISD attendance zones;

Page 7 of 19

108



Attachment 1

ii. Meetings with all 7%- 8% grade counselors and faculty members at
Pasadena ISD intermediate schools to discuss the ECHS Programs and answer questions;

fii. Student/parent meetings that will be held on intermediate school and
high school campuses that explain the opportunities and commitment required of ECHS Program
students; and

iv. Development of recruitment and admission information presented
in a bilingual mode to the extent possible.

b. Admission Policies. Admission to ECHS Programs will be limited to
students who are enrolled in Pasadena ISD. The Pasadena ISD and SJICCD recruitment teams will
focus on at-risk students, historically underserved student populations, and first generation college
students.  Additionally, Pasadena ISD shall comply with all recruitment and notification
requirements of Chapter 28 of the Texas Education Code. Students will be required to complete
applications for both ECHS Programs and SJCCD. Students must meet established SICCD course
requirements prior to enrollment. Each Party will assist families as they complete initial
application and enrollment in the respective organizations’ processes. SJCCD will assist with
registration for all students who are qualified to enroli in SJCCI courses.

C. Student Enrollment. All ECHS Program students will take the college
placement exams as required by Applicable Law and mect the minimum score requirements as
determined by SICCD in order to enroll in college courses. ECHS Program students must
demonstrate college readiness as outlined in 19 Texas Administrative Code § 4.54 (Texas Success
Initiative). The ECHS Progtam counselors and SJCCD Dual Credit Directors will work to ensure
students receive pertinent information regarding higher education. SJCCD will complete
registration for all ECHS Program students. Pasadena ISD is a designated testing site for the
college entrance cxams selected by SJCCD and will facilitate initial and subsequent
administrations of these assessments for students. However, Pasadena ISD will transport students
to SJICCD for administration of the selected college entrance exams as necded at no cost to
students.

d. Transportation. In order to facilitate participation by the target population
defined for the ECHS Programs, Pasadena ISD will provide transportation of the ECHS Program
students to and from the PISD zoned high schools and the SICCD ECHS Facilities. Transportation
will be provided in accordance with Pasadena ISD policy for all required school days based on
both instructional calendars of SICCD and Pasadena ISD.

12. Academic Pathways

a. Courses of Study and Curriculum Alignment. The SJCCD Liaison and
ECHS Coordinator will be responsible for working with ECHS Program faculty to develop and
refine a clear and coherent academic program across the two institutions for curriculum alignment.
Pasadena ISD and SJCCD will develop an articulated four year course of study plan (grades 9-12)
that meets the requirements of Applicable Law, enables participating students to:

 Page8of19

109




Attachment 1

i. Achieve the Foundation High School Program with an Endorsement
and Distinguished Level of Achievement with Performance Acknowledgement (students
graduating in 2017 will be able to achieve Recommended High School Program or Distinguished
Achievement Program); and

ii. Complete the Texas Higher FEducation Coordinating Board
(THECB) core curriculum (as defined by the Texas Administrative Code (TAC) §4.28), or an
associate’s degree, or at least 60 credit hours toward a baccalaureate degree within four years of
entering high school; and

iii. Experience a seamless transition from grade level to grade level,
moving from a schedule consisting of primarily high school courses in grades 9 and 10 to a focus
on full time college courses during grades 11 and 12; and

iv. Experience high levels of rigor, acceleration, and support through
both high school and college courses.

b. Course Compliance; Course Requirements; Monitoring. SJCCD and
Pasadena ISD will seek full designation as Early College High School programs from TEA and
THECB. Pasadena ISD shall be responsible for ensuring that high school curriculum courses meet
the requitements of the Texas Essential Knowledge and Skills (or successor TEA requirements)
and that ECHS Program students meet all high school graduation requirements, while earning
college credit. Pasadena 1SD will be responsible for monitoring and ensuring the quality of
instruction for solely high school credit courses offered at the ECHS Programs. ECHS Program
students must meet the prerequisites for the college course in which they plan to enroll. SICCD
will assess each student for readiness to engage in any college course. Based on such assessment,
the SICCD L iaison and the ECHS Deans will determine what forms of assistance and remediation
may be needed by a student prior to the student’s enroliment in a given college course. SICCD is
responsible for involving credentialed teaching faculty in the process of selecting and
implementing college courses. SICCD department chairs will monitor the quality of instruction
in order to assure compliance with Applicable Law and this Agreement. College courses will
consist of curricula materials, instructional activities, method, rigor, and evaluation of student
performance as required by SJCCD and Applicable Law for SICCD non-Program students.
College academic courses shall be identified in the current edition of ACGM adopted by the
THECB. College workforce education courses shall be identified in the current edition of the
WECM adopted by the THECB. SJCCD will ensure that college course goals and standards are
understood. The SJICCD, Pasadena ISD, and Pasadena ISD personnel will develop and refine a
clear and coherent academic program across institutions.

c. High School Diploma and Degree. Within this framework, students may be
able to earn the Foundation High School Program with an Endorsement and Distinguished Level
of Achievement with Performance Acknowledgement (students graduating in 2017 will be able to
achieve Recommended High School Program or Distinguished Achievement Program) and
complete the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB) core curriculum (as defined
by the Texas Administrative Code (TAC) §4.28), or an associate’s degree, or at least 60 credit

Page 9 of 19

110



Attachment 1

hours toward a baccalaureate degree within four years of entering high school. Students will be
encouraged to pursue a basic associate degree course of study as an Associate of Arts or Associate
of Science. SICCD will give credit for courses that are at a higher level than taught by the high
school; that have been evaluated and approved by the SICCD curriculum approval process and for
which Course Articulation Agreements have been approved. Professional / career certification
opportunities will be evaluated by the ECHS Coordinator and the SJCCD Liaison.

d. Instructional Materials, Pasadena ISD will provide all course materials,
including, textbooks, syllabi, course packets, and other materials needed for enrollment in classes
for high school graduation credit at no cost to the student. Pasadena ISD and SJCCD will
recommend at least a three year textbook adoption agreement for college textbooks. The funding
of materials is addressed in Section 15.c. of this Agreement.

13. Students

a. Student Composition of Classes. ECHS Program students enrolled in
SJCCD college courses at the SJCCD ECHS Facilities may attend classes composed of only ECHS
Program students or may attend classes with regular SJICCD students enrolled in that college
course.

b. Academic Policies. The academic policies of Pasadena ISD shall apply to
all students enrolled in the ECHS Program. The academic policies of SJCCD shall apply to ECHS
Program students as to college courses. Upon entry into the ECHS Program, students will be made
aware of all policies to which they are subject.

c. Student Conduct. ECHS Program students are required to adhere to
Pasadena ISD Board policies, procedures, and regulations of the Pasadena ISD Handbook,
including the Student Code of Conduct, while at the ECHS Program Facilities, either on the high
school campus or on the SICCD campus, or any ECHS Program sponsored off-campus activity.
ECHS Program students are required to adhete to the SICCD policies, procedures, and regulations
of the SJCCD Code of Student Conduct while at the SICCD ECHS Facilities and any SJCCD
sponsored off-campus activity that is available to ECHS Program students. The failure of any
ECHS Program student to comply with the policies, procedures, and regulations of either Party
will be subject to the appropriate action taken by Pasadena ISD and SICCD, where appropriate,
including suspension and dismissal from the ECHS Program. All disciplinary action, including,
suspension and dismissal from the ECHS Program shall be in conformity with the codes of student
conduct of the Parties. In the event of a conflict between the policies of Pasadena ISD and SJICCD,
the Parties will collaborate to resolve the conflict.

d. Safety.

i. Accidents/Emergency Incidents [If any ECHS Program student,
instructor, or administrator should experience an accident, sudden illness or commit a law violating
behavior while at the ECHS Facilities not on STCCD property, the response to such incidents will
be based on Pasadena ISD policies, procedures, regulations, and guidelines. If any ECHS Program
student, instructor, or administrator should experience an accident, sudden illness, or commit a law

. Page 10 of 19

111




Attachment 1

violating behavior while at the SICCD ECHS Facilities, the response to such incidents will be
based on SICCD policies, procedures, regulations, and guidelines. Accordingly, while at an ECHS
Facility not on college property, the policies and procedures for building use, emetgency response,
and safety of Pasadena ISD shall apply and while at an SJCCD ECHS Facility, the policies and
procedures for building use, emergency response, and safety of SJCCD shall apply.

ii. Visitor Check-in. As small learning communities within the
comprehensive high school campuses, all ECHS Program visitors and guests to the ECHS Program
Facilities will be required to check-in through the main reception area and obtain a visitor pass
including a safety check through the Raptor system. Additionally, the Pasadena ISD Police
Department will have designated appropriate law enforcement fo provide security to the
comprehensive high schools, including ECHS Programs.

iii. Background Checks; Criminal History. Al ECHS Program
personnel and SJCCD Instructors teaching at the ECHS Program Facilities will be required to go

through a background check as per Pasadena ISD policy and procedures. In accordance with state
mandated requirements, a criminal history check will be conducted for all persons who have
regular contact with students, including all faculty, Pasadena 15D personnel, and STCCD personnel
who will be having continual responsibilities with students located at the ECHS Program Facilities.
Pasadena ISD will be responsible for ensuring that all ECHS Program staff follows Pasadena ISD
policies and procedures for this background check. The Pasadena ISD Human Resources
Department shall be responsible for completion of the required criminal history check for all
Pasadena ISD employees. SICCD accepts this responsibility, coordinated by the SJCCD Liaison,
for all SJICCD employees and college tutors serving students of the ECHS Programs. SJCCD will
ensure that SICCD Tnstructors and personnel working at the ECHS Program Facilities meet the
requirements and follow the Pasadena ISD policies and procedures for the background check.

iv. Reporting of Child Abuse and Criminal Activity. All members of
ECHS Program faculty and administration, as well as any other party connected to the Program,
must comply with all Applicable Law regarding the report of any and all alieged child abuse,
school-related crimes, and sexual molestation.

e. Eligibility for Financial Aid. In addition to any financial support and
assistance provided by the Parties as set forth in this Agreement, the Parties will collaborate on
identifying third party sources of financial assistance, including, without limitation, State, federal,
and other grants; fundraising efforts for the ECHS Programs; and partnerships with baccalaureate-
granting institutions for scholarships to their institutions.

f. Accounting for Attendance. For the 9% and 10™ grade portion of the ECHS
Programs, the Parties shall comply with the TEA Attendance Handbook attendance requirements
and TEA accountability requirements for credit in high school courses. With respect to the 110
and 12 grade portion of the ECHS Programs and any dual credit or college courses, if required,
Pasadena ISD will submit a request for applicable waivers to TEA to accommodate the SICCD
schedule for ECHS Program students. Each ECHS Program faculty member will take daily
attendance and shall report such attendance for enrollment and funding purposes as required by
Applicable Law. As applicable, the Parties will refer to the TEA Guidance for the ECHS Program
_ Dual Enrollment Credit Attendance for documenting formal attendance taking procedures.

Page 11 0f 19

112




Attachment 1

2. Grading Periods and Policies; Transcripting. The ECHS Programs will
follow the grading policies established by Pasadena ISD for high school and dual credit courses
entered on an ECHS Program’s student’s official Pasadena ISD transcript. SJCCD will follow
grading policies established by SICCD for dual credit college courses entered on an ECHS
Program’s student’s official SICCD transcript. For college courses, both high school and college
credit shall be transcripted immediately upon a student’s completion of the performance required
in the course. SICCD will report a letter or numetical grade based on the SJCCD grading scale to
Pasadena ISD, which may adapt the grade as required to conform to Pasadena ISD policies and
procedures. SICCD will provide approximate mid-term grade averages in addition to semester
grades.

h. Student Assessment. All ECHS Program students are required to
participate in required state, national and federal assessments, which will be administered by the
ECHS Program staff. SJCCD agrees to make accommodations in course scheduling and
attendance so that ECHS Program students are not penalized in their college credit courses for
their participation in the required state, national and federal assessments.

1. Student Records. In accordance with Applicable Law, Pasadena ISD will
maintain student records pertaining to ECHS Programs and provide SICCD copies of the grades,
progress, and other informational data on student assessment, promotion, retention, award of
diplomas, and other student data necessary and advisable for SICCD to perform its obligations
under this Agreement. Both Parties will be responsible for maintaining student records and
records pertaining to the Program in conformity with the Texas Record Retention laws. Each Party
designates the other Party as its agent with a legitimate educational interest in students’ educational
records for purposes of FERPA. Both Parties shall institute policies and procedures reasonably
designed to ensure that its employees and agents comply with these and all other federal and state
laws governing the rights of the ECHS Program students with respect o educational records, and
shall protect student education records against accidental or deliberate re-disclosure to
unauthorized persons.

J- Student Support Services.

i. Communication and Planning. The ECHS Coordinator and SJICCD
liaison will identify and develop procedures for collecting and sharing data between the Parties on
a continuous basis in orderto evaluate program effectivencss. The Advisory Council will also meet
to discuss the data and focus on strategies for supporting student success. Both Parties will identify
and collaborate on measures to assist those students who may not be performing satisfactorily to
succeed.

ii. Bridee Program. All incoming ECHS Program students will begin
preparing for success by participating in a mandatory bridge program, which will provide an
intensive focus in core subject areas based on individualized student need, college entrance exam
preparation, and introductory college readiness skills (“Bridge Program”). The Bridge Program
builds the foundational academic and study skills needed for student success in rigorous college
level courses. In addition to serving incoming 9™ grade students, the ECHS Program Bridge

Page 12 of 19

113




Attachment 1

Program will also support students in meeting TSI testing requirements and preparing for transition
to the SICCD campus in 11th/12th grade.

iii. Mentoring. At SJICCD, students will receive support through
supplemental instruction, SJCCD tutors, and/or additional sources identified. Support will be
provided through a SJCCD tutor that travels to the comprehensive high schools to support 9" and
10 grade college courses. Students in 11™ and 12" grade will have access to on-campus and
online student support services and tutoring support offered by SICCD as needed.

iv. Counseling and Academic Suppori, To ensure academic success,
the Parties will provide counseling and academic support services, as needed. Pasadena ISD will
assign a specific counselor to each ECHS Program who will provide academic and counseling
support to the ECHS Program students and their parents and work with the appropriate SJICCD
Dual Credit Director in the areas of test preparation, remediation, and the development of an
integrated support system for ECHS Program students across the two institutions, The ECHS
Program counselors and Dual Credit Directors will work to ensure students receive pertinent
information regarding higher education, FAFSA, financial assistance, and assistance waivers for
tuition and fees. The ECHS Program counselors and SJCCD Dual Credit Directors will
collaboratively develop and implement academic support services within the Program of study.
The dual credit office staff will provide academic and career counseling to support the ECHS
Program students. SJCCD will provide tutorial support to ECHS Program students through the
Student Success Center on each SICCD campus and will provide academic support to ECHS
Program students attending classes at the SJCCD ECHS Facility at a level commensurate with the
academic support provided to other SJCCD students. The SJCCD Dual Credit Directors will
inform the ECHS Program administration of students with excessive absences and academic
concerns in college courses prior to the end of a semester to provide for intervention for success
on an ongoing and continuous basis. All ECHS Program students will be taught AVID coilege
readiness strategies. AVID methodologies support the acquisition of college readiness skills and
development of a college going culture. Through the use of AVID resources and strategies,
students will cultivate academic behaviors critical for college success including organization, time
management, note-taking structures, and individual and peer study skills. Students also will build
“college knowledge” by learning about topics such as the college admission process and
requirements, grade point averages, transcripts, degree plans, class registration, and college
grading practices. The ECHS Program staff will consist of AVID ftrained teachers, who are
prepared to fulfill the role of mentor/advisor for their students. Teacher mentors/advisors will meet
individually with students to oversee their academic progress, monitor grading and matriculation
decisions, and advise students on making positive post-graduation plans with the support of the
counseling staff from Pasadena ISD and the SJCCD educational planner.

\Z Qutreach to Parents and Community. As an additional means of
creating the college culture at the ECHS Programs, the ECHS Program staff will provide
information and support to the parents and the community. The ECHS Program staff will host
college focused activities for students, parents, and community members in order to foster the
growth of college and career awareness for all stakeholders. Examples of the activities offered may
include, but are not limited to, college and career fairs, college major night, college field trips,
parent organizations, open house, parent and community newsletters, and parent workshop series

Page 13 of 19

114



Attachment 1

aimed at developing “college knowledge.” All parent and community outreach activities will be
offered in English and Spanish, to the extent possible, in order to serve the language needs of the
community.

14. Program Evaluation; Reporting, The ECHS Program Advisory Council will
evaluate the effectiveness of the ECHS Programs each academic year. The results of the evaluation
will be reported at the end of each academic year. The Partics will collaborate to ensure that this
evaluation satisfies all Applicable Law for the evaluation of K-12 schools, in addition to any other
evaluative guidelines established for the ECHS Programs. An annual report and other reports, as
required, will be prepared and submitted to TEA on the progress of the ECHS Programs under its
purview. The Parties will cooperate on the preparation and submission of the annuai and other
reports on the progress of the ECHS Programs to be submitted to TEA and as may be required by
THECB. The report will be provided to both SICCD and Pasadena ISD, and others as deemed
appropriate.

15. Fiscal Matters.

a. Rules for Charging Students. Students enrolled in the ECHS Programs will
not be charged for costs associated with the ECHS Programs for tuition and fees or textbooks for
first time enrollment in college courses, repeating a course due to failure, administration of college
placement exams, ot fees required by SICCD for other students enrolled in SICCD. Students who
are repeating a course or choose to accelerate their schedule by enrolling in courses during the
summer are responsible for all associated tuition and course fees. The Parties’ respective
obligations for covering or waiving fees and costs are set forth in Sections 15(b) through 15(d).

b. Tuition and Fees. During the Term, SJICCD will waive seventy-five percent
(75%) of the tuition and fees for all ECHS Program students enrolled in college-credit courses for
dual credit. Pasadena ISD will pay to STCCD twenty-five percent (25%) of the tuition and fees
associated with the college courses and will provide textbooks, instructional materials, or any costs
associated with enrollment for current ECHS students enrolled in college courses at SJCCD.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, SICCD will waive 100% of the tuition for ECHS Program students
enrolled in EDUC 1300 or PSYC 1300 courses.

c. Textbooks and Instructional Materials. Pasadena ISD will apply to the
Texas Education Agency for textbook waivers for college instructional materials. If the
applications for textbook waivers are not successful, Pasadena ISD will assume responsibility of
providing coliege texts and supplemental materials required for classes to the ECHS Program
students. Pasadena [SD will provide all course materials, including, textbooks, syllabi, course
packets, and other materials needed for enrollment in classes for high school graduation credit at
no cost to the student. Pasadena ISD and SJICCD will agree to at least a three year textbook
adoption agreement for college textbooks.

d. Fund Sources. Each Party is entitled to receive state funding based on
current funding rules of TEA and THECB. Using local funds, Pasadena ISD is responsible for
and will support the ECHS Programs’ day-to-day operational, instructional, and administrative
costs, including administrative and staff salaries and benefits for ECHS Program Deans,

~Page 14 of 19

115



Attachment 1

Counselors, and any other Pasadena ISD employees assigned to the ECHS Programs;
transportation costs; professional development costs; and other school related expenditures.
Except as otherwise set forth herein, Pasadena ISD is responsible for all costs associated with the
ECHS Program Facilities and SJCCD is responsible for all costs associated with the SICCD ECHS
Facility. Pasadena ISD will address any funding requirements for future technology needs of the
ECHS Programs. SICCD has agreed to provide administrative, instructional, and suppott services
as set forth in this Agreement, as well as 75% tuition waiver (or 100% for the two courses listed
in Section 15(b).

e. Change in Funding and/or Applicable Law. The Parties agree that in the
event of any material change in the State funding of dual enrollment programs during the Term of
this Agreement, the Parties will negotiate in good faith to amend this Agreement to adjust the
funding arrangements to equitably accommodate such change. In the event that the Parties are
unable to agree upon a written amendment to this Agreement encompassing a changed funding
mechanism within forty-five (45) days of the State action effectuating the change in State funding,
either Party may terminate this Agreement without penalty or any further obligation upon an
additional ten (10) day written notice to the other Party.

f. Fiscal Agent. Pasadena ISD will act as the fiscal agent for the purposes of
this Agreement. Under this arrangement, the Pasadena ISD will be the recipient of ECHS Programs
funds and will be acting as the intermediary for the ECHS Programs.

16.  Release. To the extent permitted by Applicable Law, Pasadena [SD agrees to and
does hereby release SICCD and its trustees, employees, agents, officers, and representatives from
any and all claims, losses, liabilities, damages, and debts arising from or caused by any act or
omission of Pasadena ISD or its trustees, employees, agents, officers and representatives. To the
extent permitted by Applicable Law, SJCCD agrees to and does hereby release Pasadena ISD and
its trustees, employees, agents, officers, and representatives from any and all claims, losses,
liabilities, damages, and debts arising from or caused by any act or omission of SICCD or its
trustees, employees, agents, officers and representatives.

17. Insurance. Each Party shall carry general liability insurance to cover against
claims, liabilities, losses, and damages resulting from that Party’s presence on the other Party’s
campus and property and participation in the Program under this Agreement. Each Party shall
cause its insurance policy to contain a waiver of subrogation against the other Party. Each Party
shall carry other insurance as that Party deems advisable to protect against claims or liabilities that
may result from participation in the ECHS Program under this Agreement.

18. Termination of the Agreement,

a. Termination for Cause. Either Party may terminate this Agreement due to
the default of the other Party. An event of default shall be deemed to have occurred if a Party
commits a material breach of any provision of this Agreement. In the event of default, the non-
breaching Party shall provide written notice to the other Party of the breach specifying the
provision claimed to be breached. Except in the event of a default that threatens the health of
safety of students in which the non-breaching Party may terminate this Agreement immediately,

Page 15 of 19

116




Attachment 1

the breaching Party shall have thirty (30) days to cure such default. If the breaching Party fails to
cure the breach within such 30-day time period, the non-breaching Party may terminate this
Agreement upon written notice to the other Party and shall be entitled to any remedies available
in equity or law for such breach.

b. Termination for Convenience. Either Party may terminate this Agreement
for convenience and without cause or penalty and without further obligation upon sixty (60) days
written notice to the other Party. In the event of termination for convenience, the Collaborative
Committee will prepare an agreeable plan of dissolution in accordance with all Applicable Laws.

c. Termination Due to Change in Applicable Law. Subject to Section 15(¢}),
cither or both Parties may terminate this Agreement in the event that TEA fails to approve the
ECHS Program for the next school year or that a change in Applicable Law poses a hardship on
either Party in its performance under this Agreement or makes the obligations of either Party
untenable. Termination for a change in Applicable Law or failure to receive Program approval
shall occur at the end of the then current contract year or earlier as may be agreed by the Parties.

d. Effect of Termination. Should SJICCD or Pasadena ISD terminate their
participation in the ECHS Programs they will agree to return any unspent funds and provide a
complete accounting for all expenditures to the date of termination.

e. Discontinuance of ECHS Programs. Pasadena ISD and SJCCD agree to
comply with the requirements of Applicable Law for discontinuing operations of ECHS Programs.
During the teach-out petiod transitioning from full operation to the discontinued program, SJCCD
and Pasadena 1SD will continue to mect all of the required elements of an early college high school
program and provide full support for all students enrolled in ECHS Programs. During the teach-
out period, no new or additional students will be enrolled in ECHS Programs in grades that have
becn phased out. If ECHS Programs have only ninth and/or ninth and tenth grade cohorts, the
ECHS Programs will be closed down at the end of the school year in which the decision is made
to discontinue operations. If ECHS Programs have cleventh and/or eleventh and twelfth grade
cohorts, operation will continue through the graduation date for the eleventh grade cohort. During
this time, services may continue to be offered for enrolled ninth and tenth grade students through
scheduled graduation for the cohort(s); however, a continuation of services is not required.

19. Miscellaneous Provisions.

a. Amendments. This Agreement may be modified and amended only by
written signed by both Parties, and any such modification or amendments shall be attached to and
become a part of this Agreement.

b. Governing Law: Venue. This Agreement and the rights and obligations
herein shall be performable under, governed by, and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas without regard to its choice of law or conflicts of law provisions. The Parties
irrevocably consent to the sole and exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the courts of Harris County,
Texas for any action under this Agreement.

Page 16 of 19

117




Attachment 1

c. Relationship of the Partics. In the performance of their respective duties
hereunder, the Parties hereto and their respective employees and agents, are at all times acting and
performing as independent contractors of each other (notwithstanding the foregoing, employees of
SJCCD and Pasadena ISD may teach college courses as adjunct professors of SJCCD or through
some other teaching arrangement, if such arrangement is approved in advance by the Parties). No
Party will have the authority to act for or bind another Party in any respect or to incur or assume
any expense, debt, obligation, Liability, tax, or responsibility on behalf of or in the name of another
Party hercto. Neither party shall have control over the other party with respect to its hours, times,
employment, etc. The Parties acknowledge and agree that no Party will be Hable for the activitics
of another Party, including, but not limited to, any liabilities, losses, damages, suits, actions, fines,
penalties, claims, or demands of any kind arising out of this Agreement.

d. No Waiver. No delay or failure by a Party in exercising any right, power or
privilege under this Agreement or any other instruments given in connection with or pursuant to
this Agreement will impair any such right, power or privilege or be construed as a waiver of or
acquiescence in any default. No single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege will
preclude the further exercise of that right, power or privilege or the exercise of any other right,
power or privilege.

e. Assignment. Neither Party may assign its interest in the Agreement without
the written permission of the other Party.

f. No Waiver of Immunity. The execution of this Agreement and the
performance of either Party of any of its obligations hereunder are not, and are not intended to
waive or relinquish, any governmental, sovereign immunity or defense from or to liability or
prosecution available to both Parties and its trustees, officers, employees, or agents under federal
or Texas Law

g Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the
Parties regarding the subject matter herein described. This Agreement supersedes all negotiations
or previous agreements between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. The Parties
expressly acknowledge that in entering into and executing this Agreement the Parties rely solely
upon the representations and agreements contained in this Agreement and no others., No
subsequent change or modification of this Agreement is binding unless in writing and signed by
the Parties.

h. Notice. All notices hereunder by either Party to the other shall be in writing,
delivered personally, by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, by overnight courier,
or any manner permitted under the Texas Electronics Transactions Act, and shall be deemed to
have been duly given when delivered personally, when deposited in the United States mail, postage
prepaid, or when received addressed as follows:

If to Pasadena ISD:  Superintendent of Schools
1515 Cherrybrook Lane
Pasadena, Texas 77502
Telephone: 713-740-0000
Facsimile: 713-740-4170

Page 17 of 19

118



Attachment 1

With a copy to: Deputy Superintendent of Academic Achievement
1515 Cherrybrook Lane
Pasadena, Texas 77502
Telephone: 713-740-0000
Facsimile: 713-740-4170

if to SICCD: Chancellor
4624 Fairmont Parkway, Suite 200
Pasadena, Texas 77504
Telephone: 281-998-6100
Facsimile: 281-998-6324

With a copy to: Director of Contracts and Purchasing Services
4620 Fairmont Parkway
Pasadena, Texas 77504
Telephone: 281-998-6103
Facsimile: 281-998-6322

or to such other persons or places as either party may from time to time designate by
written notice to the other.

i Captions. The captions contained herein are used solely for convenience
and shall not be deemed to define or limit the provisions of this Agreement,

J- Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or
unenforceable for any reason, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect in accordance
with its terms disregarding such unenforceable or invalid provision.

k. No Third-Party Rights. This Agreement is made for the sole benefit of
Pasadena I1SD and SJCCD and their respective successors and permitted assigns. Nothing in this
Agreement will create or be deemed to create a relationship between the Parties to this Agreement
and any third person, including a relationship in the nature of a third-party beneficiary or fiduciary.

L. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in identical counterparts,
all of which will be deemed an original, but all of which will constitute one and the same
instrument. Each Party may rely on facsimile or electronic signature pages as if such facsimile or
electronic pages were originals.

Page 18 of 19

119




Attachment 1

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Parties hereto have exccuted this Memorandum of

Understanding as of the Effective Date of July 1, 2016:

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

By:
Dr. Brenda Hellyer, Chancellor

By:
Mr. Dan Mims, Chairman, Board of Trustees

PASADENA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Jﬂ/@; 9

h well, Superintendent of S

VZ%&/%W

rs. Netda-Sullivan, Presfdent, Board of Trustees

Page 19 of 19

120



Attachment 1

sAcs(/coc

Southern Association of Colleges and Schools
Commission on Colleges
1866 Southern Lane
Decatur, Georgia 30033-4097

FACULTY CREDENTIALS

- Guidelines -

Comprehensive Standard 3.7.1 of the Principles of Accreditation reads as follows:

The institution employs competent faculty members qualified to accomplish the mission and
goals of the institution. When determining acceptable qualifications of its faculty, an
institution gives primary consideration to the highest earned degree in the discipline. The
institution also considers competence, effectiveness, and capacity, including, as
appropriate, undergraduate and graduate degrees, related work experiences in the field,
professional licensure and certifications, honors and awards, continuous documented
excellence in teaching, or other demonstrated competencies and achievements that
contribute to effective teaching and student learning outcomes. For all cases, the institution
is responsible for justifying and documenting the qualifications of its facuity.

When an institution defines faculty qualifications using faculty credentials, institutions should use the
following as credential guidelines:

a. Faculty teaching general education courses at the undergraduate level: doctorate or master's
degree in the teaching discipline or master’s degree with a concentration in the teaching
discipline (a minimum of 18 graduate semester hours in the teaching discipline).

b. Faculty teaching associate degree courses designed for transfer to a baccalaureate degree:
doctorate or master's degree in the teaching discipline or master's degree with a concentration in
the teaching discipline {a minimum of 18 graduate semester hours in the teaching discipline}.

C. Faculty teaching associate degree courses not designed for transfer to the baccataureate degree:
bachelor's degree in the teaching discipline, or associate’s degree and demonstrated
competencies in the teaching discipline.

d. Faculty teaching baccalaureate courses: doctorate or master's degree in the teaching discipline
or master's degree with a concentration in the teaching discipline (minimum of 18 graduate
semester hours in the teaching discipline).

e, Faculty teaching graduate and post-baccalaureate course work: earned doctoratefterminal
degree in the teaching discipline or a related discipline.

f. Graduate teaching assistants: master’s in the teaching discipline or 18 graduate samester hours
in the teaching discipline, direct supsrvision by a faculty member experienced in the teaching
discipline, regular in-service training, and planned and periodic evaluations.

Approved: College Delegate Assembly, December 2006

121




Action Item “XVI”
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval of Proposed Budget for 2016-2017

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the proposed 2016-2017
budget for the San Jacinto Community College District which consists of a balanced
Unrestricted Operating Revenue budget of $163,573,288 of revenues and expenses. The total
budget also includes depreciation expense of $20,351,251 and a balanced Restricted Funds
budget of $100,493,221.

BACKGROUND

The proposed unrestricted budget provides operating funds for 2016-2017 (FY17).
Conservative projections have been utilized for revenues and are therefore considered
reasonably attainable.

Highlights of the major categories of budgeted revenue include:

e Appropriations from the State of Texas to support instruction are the same as the prior
year. This is the second year of the 2016-2017 biennium.

e The budget anticipates that the combined ad valorem or property tax rate will be
adopted at a similar maintenance tax rate as the prior year, and the debt service tax
rate will increase as a result of the issuance in spring 2016 of $150 million of voter
approved debt. The taxable value is projected to increase by 3.21 percent based on
Harris County Appraisal District estimates. Final decisions on tax calculations and
rates will be determined once the certified tax rolls for tax year 2016 are available
which is anticipated to be available in late August 2016. Tax rate and revenue
calculations will be subject to final truth-in-taxation rate calculations and limitations.
The FY17 budget anticipates an approximate $4.0 million increase in maintenance
and operations property tax revenue as compared to FY 16. The debt service property
tax revenue is estimated at $27,502,805 for FY 17 which is $4.6 million higher than
the prior year debt service requirements. The outstanding balance of unissued voter

authorized debt is $275 million with the next debt issuance currently anticipated in
2018.

e Budgeted net tuition and fee revenue is projected higher for FY 17 by approximately
$2.1 million as compared to FY 16 budget. The components of the budgeted increase
are as follows:

o A net decrease of $0.6 million due to the elimination of helicopter fees of
$750,000, a reduction in flight fees of $295,000, and a net increase to actual
adjustment of $426,000 for other fees. The helicopter and flight training
services are pass-through revenues which have a corresponding reduction in
expenses.

122



Action Item “XVI”
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval of Proposed Budget for 2016-2017

o An increase of $4.5m due to tuition rate increases of $3 in-district; $6 out-
district; $11 out-state/foreign per semester credit hour (SCH), course fee
additions of $2 - $7 per SCH, and an increase of $10 per semester in the
general service fee.

o An increase of $1.0 million for projected enrollment growth of 1.8 percent
over current year offset by a proportional increases in exemptions, waivers
and bad debt.

o A reduction in net tuition and fees due to increasing waivers and exemptions
by $1.3 million for FY'16 actual adjustments, projections for FY'17 rate and
enrollment increases, along with increasing the dual credit waiver from 70
percent to 75 percent.

o Bad debt expense increased by $1.6 million to primarily adjust for the
allowance methodology supported by the external auditors.

e Overall restricted revenues are budgeted to increase by $6.1 million. This is
primarily due to an increase in Debt Service revenue of $4.6 million for the
issuance of the new $150 million of bond debt. The remaining increases are for
changes in federal, state, and local grants of $1.5 million.

Highlights of the proposed expense budget include:

The establishment of a compensation pool for salary adjustments of $2.4 million with
the corresponding increase to benefits. This budget is maintained in Institutional
Support until the salary adjustments are allocated to individual employees budget
accounts in September. The salary pool will be distributed based on the evaluations
from the performance management system. For FY 17, the salary increases will be 3.0
percent for valuable ratings, 3.5 percent for notable ratings, and 4.0 percent for
exceptional ratings.

Unrestricted Budgets were reduced by 2 percent for all salary and expenses except
required items such as benefits, utilities, software agreements, and credit card fees.

Funding was restored for reserved unexpended salaries.
Adequate funding was provided for expenditures that have historically exceeded

budget, such as interpreting services, commencement, scholarships, and institutional
memberships.

123



Action Item “XVI”
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval of Proposed Budget for 2016-2017

Budgeted expenses for Instruction increased $1.0 million due to an increase in full
and part-time salaries of $1.9 million and $265,000 for maritime instruction, offset by
decreases in helicopter flight training services of $750,000, flight training services of
$295,000 and $130,000 in operating accounts. The helicopter and flight training
services are pass-through expenses which have a corresponding reduction in
revenues.

Academic Support increased by $60,000 which is primarily due to a $200,000
increase in full and part-time salaries, an increase of $60,000 for blackboard and
library shared services and a decrease of $200,000 in the overall budget related to the
2 percent reductions.

The Student Services budget increased by $1.9 million due to an increase of $1.35
million for interpreting services, $690,000 increase in full and part-time salaries,
$45,000 for Clery and Title IV software, offset by a decrease of $200,000 as part of
the 2 percent budget reductions.

Institutional Support expenses increased by $1.8 million with an increase of $1.2
million for salaries and other expenses, a decrease of $300,000 as part of the 2
percent budget reductions and an increase in the ‘transfers out’ to Auxiliary Services
of $895,000.

Auxiliary Services decreased by a net of $210,000 due to a reduction in expenses of
$350,000 due to the golf course operations discontinuing in December, increases of
$1.035 million primarily related to adjusting scholarships to actual estimates, and a
decrease resulting from a $895,000 increase to “transfers in” from unrestricted
institutional support to offset the increase in scholarships.

Depreciation is projected to increase by $761,000, however, the College does not
budget to recover depreciation expense.

No major capital outlays are budgeted in the unrestricted operating budget.

The budget is prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The
expense totals include a restricted non-expense cash outlay for bond principal payments of
$10.0 million and a non-cash expense of $20.3 million for depreciation.

The proposed budget reflects the College’s commitments to teaching and learning and
serving the citizens in its taxing and service area and throughout the Greater Houston region.
Additional initiatives and requests were not funded or were not fully funded due to limited
resources. Budget areas will continue to be reviewed during the year as College personnel
continue to emphasize scaling promising practices, eliminating low value activities, and
controlling costs.

124



Action Item “XVI”
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval of Proposed Budget for 2016-2017

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

Approval of the proposed budget will establish the 2016-2017 budget for the College and
comply with section 51.0051 of the Texas Education Code that requires that the governing
board of each institution to approve a budget on or before September 1 of each year.

RESOURCE PERSONNEL
Brenda Hellyer 281-998-6100 brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu
Chet Lewis 281-998-6306 chet.lewis@sjcd.edu

125


mailto:brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu
mailto:chet.lewis@sjcd.edu

Action Item “XVII”
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval of the 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting Dates
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends the Board of Trustees approve the 2017 Board of Trustees
regularly scheduled meeting dates.

BACKGROUND

The Board of Trustees operates on a calendar of meetings which are traditionally the first
Monday of each month. Periodic changes to this meeting structure may occur as needed.
Establishing an annual calendar allows for advanced notice of regularly scheduled meetings.
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

The Board’s meeting calendar sets various timelines and reporting dates throughout the
College’s operating cycle. This calendar reflects changes to the traditional Board meeting
schedule (first Monday of each month) in order to address known scheduling conflicts such
as holidays, speaking engagements, and conferences.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)
None

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

Monthly meetings will occur as scheduled unless prior approval is obtained by the Board of
Trustees.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment 1- 2017 Board Meeting Dates
RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Brenda Hellyer 281-998-6100 brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu

126


mailto:brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu

Attachment 1

San Jacinto College District
Board of Trustees

2017 Board Meeting Dates

January 30, 2017
March 6, 2017
April 3, 2017
May 1, 2017
June 5, 2017
July 10, 2017

August 14,2017
September 11, 2017
October 2, 2017
November 6, 2017

December 11, 2017

127



Action Item “XVIII”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016

Consideration of Approval of Reauthorization of the Full-time Salary Schedules,
Part-time Hourly Pay Rates, and Stipends and Market Premiums for 2016-2017

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the full-time salary schedules,
part-time hourly pay rates, stipends and market premiums for 2016-2017.

BACKGROUND

This action establishes the salary, pay rates, stipends, and market premiums for fiscal year
2016-2017. Salary schedules are reviewed periodically to provide for market competitiveness.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

The current salary schedules for full-time employees remain unchanged. The full-time salary
schedules for faculty, staff, and administrators are included in this recommendation for
reaffirmation.

The current part time hourly rates remain unchanged. The part-time salary schedule for faculty,
staff, and administrators is included in this recommendation for reaffirmation

The schedule for stipends and market premiums remain the same as the previous year with the
addition of the market premium for engineering instructors and is included in this
recommendation for reaffirmation.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The fiscal impacts of this recommendation have been included in the 2016-2017 budget.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

All compensation components including both internal and external market equity are addressed
as part of the College’s overall compensation philosophy and are reviewed periodically for
adjustments.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1- Administration and Staff, Salary Range Table
Attachment 2- Faculty, Salary Range Table

Attachment 3- Part-time Hourly Rates, Salary Range Table
Attachment 4- Stipends and Market Premiums, Salary Range Table

RESOURCE PERSONNEL
Stephen Trncak 281-998-6348 Stephen. Trncak@sjcd.edu

128



Attachment 1

San Jacinto College District
2016 - 2017 Salary Range Table
Administration & Staff
Salary Minimum Midpoint Maximum Salary Minimum Midpoint Maximum
Range Range
1 $15,080( $18,850 $22,620 31 $65,175 $81,469 $97,762
2 $15,834 $19,793 $23,751 32 $68,434| $85,542| $102,650
3 $16,626( $20,782 $24,939 33 $71,855| $89,819| $107,783
4 $17,457| $21,821 $26,185 34 $75,448| $94,310| $113,172
5 $18,330( $22,912 $27,495 35 $79,220 $99,026| $118,831
6 $19,246( $24,058 528,869 36 $83,182| $103,977| $124,772
7 $20,209( $25,261 $30,313 37 $87,341| $109,176| $131,011
8 $21,219( $26,524 $31,829 38 $91,708| S114,635| $137,561
9 $22,280( $27,850 $33,420 39 $96,293| $120,366| $144,439
10 $23,394( $29,243 $35,091 40 $101,108| $126,385| $151,661
11 $24,564( $30,705 $36,846 41 $106,163| $132,704| $159,245
12 $25,792( $32,240 538,688 42 $111,471| $139,339( $167,207
13 $27,082 $33,852 $40,622 43 $117,045| $146,306( $175,567
14 $28,436| $35,544 $42,653 44 $122,897| $153,621| $184,345
15 $29,857| $37,322 $44,786 45 $129,042| $161,302 $193,563
16 $31,350( $39,188 $47,025 46 $135,494| $169,367| $203,241
17 $32,918( $41,147 $49,377 47 $142,269| $177,836| $213,403
18 $34,564( $43,205 551,845 48 $149,382| $186,728| $224,073
19 $36,292( $45,365 $54,438 49 $156,851| $196,064| $235,277
20 $38,106 $47,633 $57,160 50 $164,694| $205,867| $247,041
21 $40,012 $50,015 $60,018 51 $172,928| $216,160( $259,393
22 $42,012 $52,515 $63,018 52 $181,575| $226,969| $272,362
23 $44,113( $55,141 $66,169 53 $190,654| $238,317| $285,980
24 546,319 $57,898 $69,478 54 $200,186| $250,233| $300,279
25 548,635 $60,793 $72,952 55 $210,196| $262,744| $315,293
26 $51,066 $63,833 $76,599 56 $220,705| $275,882( $331,058
27 $53,620( $67,024 $80,429 57 $231,741| $289,676| $347,611
28 $56,301 $70,376 584,451 58 $243,328| $304,160 $364,991
29 $59,116( $73,894 $88,673 59 $255,494| $319,367| $383,241
30 $62,071 $77,589 $93,107 60 $268,269| $335,336( $402,403

Midpoint %
5.00%

Effective 9/01/2016

Range Spread
50.00%

129



Attachment 2

San Jacinto College District
2016-2017 Salary Range Table
Faculty

| Minimum | Midpoint | Maximum
NINE MONTH FACULTY
Bachelor S 41,792 | S 53,552 | S 65,312
Masters S 42,483 |S 55,540 | $ 68,597
Masters + 18 S 44424 S 57,929 | $ 71,434
Masters + 36 S  46,225|S 60,397 | $ 74,570
ABD S 48,165 | S 62,936 | S 77,706
Doctorate $ 50105|S 65,548 | S 80,992
10.5 MONTH FACULTY
Bachelor S 48,749 S 62,431 | S 76,114
Masters S 49,539 | S 64,743 | S 79,946
Masters + 18 $ 51,700 | $ 67,478 | $ 83,256
Masters + 36 S 53,874 | S 70,395 | S 86,917
ABD $ 56049 |S 73,311 | $ 90,574
Doctorate S 58,387 (S 76,396 | S 94,406
TWELVE MONTH FACULTY
Bachelor S 55,642 | S 71,278 | S 86,914
Masters $ 56,546 | S 73,921 |$ 91,297
Masters + 18 S 59,013 | $ 77,046 | S 95,079
Masters + 36 $  61,525|S 80,392 | $ 99,259
ABD S 63,985 | S 83,712 | $ 103,439
Doctorate $ 66,656 |S 87,238 | $ 107,821
Department Chair- 12 month | $ 69,456 | $ 90,948 | $ 112,439

Effective 9/01/2016

130



Attachment 3

San Jacinto College District
2016-2017 Salary Rate Table
PART-TIME HOURLY RATES

Position Classification

| Position Description

| Hourly Rate

[Maintenance |Groundskeeper | $8.00 |
[Cashier Clerk |Cashier / Clerk - with monetary responsibilities | $8.00 |
Cafeteria/Food Service Cashier/Catering Attendant/Cook/Wait Person - Entry level $7.25
Cashier/Cook Level 2 - 6-12 months skill set on grill & food prep or cashier & customer
service $8.00
Cashier/Cook Level 3 - 2 years skill set on grill & food prep or cashier & customer
service $8.50
Banquet Chef - 3 years kitchen & cooking experience w/knowledge of ordering &
inventory $9.00
Banquet Chef Level 2 - Experienced Banquet Chef w/complete knowledge and skill set
on all kitchen equipment, ordering, inventory w/Associate's degree in the culinary field
and ability to supervisor kitchen personnel. $10.00
Children's Center Teacher's Aide $7.25
Assistant Teacher (CDA or 12 hours in early childhood) $7.35
Cook $7.25
Lead Teacher with appropriate credentials $7.75
Clerical/Receptionist Clerk/Office Assistant/Information Clerk/Student Assistant $7.25
Accounting Asst / Admin Asst / Clerical / Call Center/Records Specialist $9.45
General Student/Art Model/Test Proctor $7.25
Toolroom Attendant $7.50
Orientation Leader/Student Ambassador $8.50
Life-Drawing Model $15.00
Disability Services Hearing Impaired Students
Transcribers / Note Takers $8.00
Tutors for Severely Learning Disabled Adult Students
(to be screened by Disability Services Counselor on each campus)
Faculty Tutors $15.00
Student Tutors $10.00
Educationally Disadvantaged Students - Tutors for students not
maintaining minimum stated requirements (not learning disabled)
Student Tutors $8.00
Faculty Tutors/Financial Aid Counselors (with appropriate credentials) $15.00
Grant Funded Grant Funded Basic Tutor (tutor for students not maintaining minimum stated
requirements) $9.00
Grant Funded Tutor / Mentor (tutor for students not maintaining minimum stated
requirements; Mentor for achieving goals and supporting grant program activities) $10.00
API Non Destructive Testing Grant Program
API NDT Training Instructor with level 3 certification $75.00
API NDT Test Proctor with level 3 certification $75.00
API NDT Subject Matter Expert with level 3 certification & industry recognition $150.00
Development Dimensions International (DDI) Leadership Program
DDI Certified Instructor / Facilitator $70.00
131

Effective 09/01/2016



Attachment 3

Position Classification Position Description | Hourly Rate |

Instructional Part-time Faculty Instructors - Lecture $38.00
Lab $32.00

Part-time Faculty Instructors - Private Lessons $38.00

Part-time Faculty Professional Development (ad hoc training, non-curriculum) $20.00

Placement Specialist (CPD non teaching adjunct duties) $15.00

Flight Simulator Instructor $15.00

Medical Imaging Clinical $32.00

Wellness Instructor (current lab rate) $32.00

LVN Clinical $32.00

ADN Clinical $38.00

Full-time Faculty Formula Pay - Lecture $62.70

Full-time Faculty Formula Pay - Lab $52.80

Full-load Adjunct: Hourly Rate + $2,500 per semester, with approval by appropriate
Dean and Provost

Golf Course Golf Course Attendant $8.25
Golf Course Supervisor $9.00
Golf Course Groundskeepers $10.00
Interactive Learning Multimedia Assistant | $9.00
Centers/Information Computer Lab Assistant | $9.00
Technology/ Help Desk Assistant | $9.00
Departmental Labs/ PC Technician Assistant | $9.00
Supplemental Audio Visual Assistant | $9.00
Instruction Specialty Lab Assistant | $9.00
Multimedia Assistant Il $12.00
Computer Lab Assistant Il $12.00
Help Desk Assistant Il $12.00
PC Technician Assistant Il $12.00
Audio Visual Assistant Il $12.00
Specialty Lab Assistant Il $12.00
Student Success Centers Peer Tutors:
Non-Certified Tutors (basic training completed, working $9.00
towards Level | Certification)
Certified Level | - After one long semester with 10 hours $9.50
training & 25 hours tutoring completed
Certified Level Il - After two long semesters with 20 hours $10.00
training & 50 hours tutoring completed
Certified Level IIl - After three long semesters with 30 hours $11.00

training & 75 hours tutoring completed (must also complete
a project related to the tutoring and resource center)

Physical Education Athletic Trainer (travel time not to exceed 8 hours per day) $7.25
Gym / Field Attendant $7.25
Gym Supervisor / Lifeguard w/Red Cross certification $7.25
Assistant Coach $8.00
Athletics Facilities Coordinator $12.00
Athletic Trainer w/certification (daily service, practice, and games) $15.00
132

Effective 09/01/2016



Attachment 3

Position Classification Position Description | Hourly Rate |
Professional Web Designer $8.50
Librarian w/Bachelor of Library Science $10.00
Test Examiners (Bachelor of Science / Bachelor of Arts) $10.00
Bus Driver $10.50
Administrative Intern $11.00
Assistant Manager, Theater $12.00
HVAC Intern $12.00
Student Accompianist $12.00
Telecommunicator $12.00
Grant Writer $13.00
Program Assistant $13.00
Architect Intern $14.00
Librarian w/Masters of Library Science w/no experience $14.00
Advisor (w/appropriate credentials) $15.00
Educational Planner $15.00
Manager, Theater $15.00
Banner Student System Services Specialist $16.00
Document Specialist $17.00
Counselor (w/appropriate credentials) $20.00
Extension Center Coordinator $20.00
Faculty Advisor $20.00
Police Officer $20.00
Program Director / Coordinator $20.00
Telecom Specialist - IT $22.00
Aerospace Liaison / Coordinator $25.00
Police - Special Assignments $25.00
Project Director / Coordinator, Grant Funded $26.00
Business Advisor, SBDC $28.00
Librarian w/MLS, MLIS or equivalent w/experience $30.00
Faculty Accompianist $38.00
Weekend Director / Coordinator (tied to current adjunct lecture rate) $38.00
Winter Mini Coordinator (tied to current adjunct lecture rate) $38.00
Writing Center Coordinator (tied to current adjunct lecture rate) $38.00
Technical Tool / Equipment Specialist $10.00
Skilled Craft Supervisor (Carpenter, Plumber, HVAC, etc) $20.00
Inspection Technology/Imaging $24.00
Process / Instrumentation Technology $25.00
Aeronautical Flight Simulator Repair $40.00
133

Effective 09/01/2016



Attachment 4

San Jacinto College District
2016-2017 Salary Schedule
Stipends and Market Premiums

Stipends Amount
Bilingual Proficiency S50 monthly
Catalogue Coordinator $260 monthly
Clinical Coordinator $1,000 annually
Curriculum Development Coordinator $480 monthly
College-Wide Program Director $350 monthly
GED Chief Examiner $300 monthly

$150 - 400 monthly based on

Program Director program/department size
Department Chairs $912 monthly (510,944 annual)
Travel $100 monthly

$200 monthly

$300 monthly

S400 monthly

S$500 monthly

S$600 monthly

Phone S50 monthly

$75 monthly

{Member of SLT only} |$100 monthly

Completion of New Hire Curriculum for part-time faculty S85 (one-time)
Completion of Recurring Curriculum for part-time faculty $30 annually
Completion of ACAdemic training for part-time faculty teaching

online or hybrid courses $180 (one-time)
Completion of Success At SIC training for part-time faculty teaching

GUST and EDUC 1300 classes $80 (one-time)

Instructional Market Premiums (subject to availability of funding)

Air Conditioning $5,000 annually
Nursing - ADN and Vocational $3,500 annually
Computer Information Technology $5,000 annually
Dental Assisting $2,500 annually
Emergency Medical Technology $2,500 annually
Engineering - must have Master's degree in Engineering $5,000 annually
Engineering/Drafting $5,000 annually
Fire Protection $2,500 annually
Health Information Management $3,000 annually
Instrumentation $5,000 annually
Instrumentation & Electrical $5,000 annually s
Maritime (CPD) - must have Coast Guard certifications $6,000 annually h




Attachment 4

Medical Laboratory Technology

$2,500 annually

Medical Radiography

$2,500 annually

Non-Destructive Testing

$5,000 annually

Occupational Health & Safety

$2,500 annually

Occupational Therapy - must have Occupational Therapy license

$6,000 annually

Pharmacy Technology - must have Pharmaceutical license

$6,000 annually

Physical Therapy - must have Physical Therapy license

$6,000 annually

Pipefitting

$5,000 annually

Process Technology

$5,000 annually

Respiratory Therapy

$2,500 annually

Surgical Technology

$2,500 annually

Welding

$5,000 annually

All Nursing - LVN and ADN-Signing incentive

$2,500 added to base salary

Adjunct Instructional Market Premiums (subject to availability of funding)

Lecture & Lab courses

Air Conditioning

$5.00 per contact hour

Nursing - ADN and Vocational

$5.00 per contact hour

Computer Information Technology

$5.00 per contact hour

Instrumentation

$5.00 per contact hour

Instrumentation & Electrical

$5.00 per contact hour

Maritime - must have Coast Guard certifications

$5.00 per contact hour

Medical Radiography

$5.00 per contact hour

Non-Destructive Testing

$5.00 per contact hour

Occupational Therapy - must have Occupational Therapy license

$5.00 per contact hour

Pharmacy Technology - must have Pharmaceutical license

$5.00 per contact hour

Physical Therapy - must have Physical Therapy license

$5.00 per contact hour

Pipefitting

$5.00 per contact hour

Process Technology

$5.00 per contact hour

Surgical Technology

$5.00 per contact hour

Welding

$5.00 per contact hour

Effective 09/01/2016

135




Action Item “XIX”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval of the Annual Review

of the Investment Policy and Strategy of the College

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Investment Policy and
Strategy of the College. No changes of the policy are required.

BACKGROUND

The Investment Policy of the College requires that the Board of Trustees, at least annually,
review and approve the Investment Policy and Strategy of the College which is required by
Texas Government Code 2256. Patterson & Associates are the current investment advisors to
the College. In their capacity as investment advisors, Patterson & Associates are required to
review the College’s existing Investment Policy and make recommended changes for the

Board’s consideration. No changes were recommended for the investment policy and the
incorporated investment strategies.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

Since no changes are recommended for the investment policy, the approval of this item will
meet the requirements of an annual review by the Board of Trustees in Section 2256.005(e)
of the Government Code of the State of Texas.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)
Adoption of the recommended policy changes does not have budget or staffing implications.
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

None

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 — Policy V-O: Policy on Investment Policy and Strategy

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Chet Lewis 281-998-6306 chet.lewis@sjcd.edu

136


mailto:chet.lewis@sjcd.edu

Policy V-O: Investment Policy and Strategy | San Jacinto College Page 1 of 9

Policy V-O: Policy On Investment Policy
And Strategy

GENERAL STATEMENT

It is the policy of the San Jacinto College District (the "College™) to invest its public funds in a
manner which will provide the highest reasonable investment return with the maximum security
while meeting the daily cash flow requirements of the College and conforming to all state and
federal statutes governing the investment of public funds. The primary state statute controlling
the investment of public funds is the Public Funds Investment Act (Texas Government Code,
Chapter 2256, the “Act’.)

The Board of Trustees of San Jacinto College will review and adopt the College's Investment
Policy and investment strategies not less than annually in accordance with the Act.

SCOPE

This Investment Policy applies to all assets and investment activity of the San Jacinto College
District including restricted and unrestricted funds. These funds are accounted for in the College's
annual financial report.

OBJECTIVES
The primary objectives, in priority order, of the College's investment activities shall be:

SAFETY: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments of the College shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation
of capital in the overall portfolio. Use of high-credit quality securities in a laddered portfolio
structure will assist in minimizing credit risk.

LIQUIDITY: The College's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable
the College to meet all operating requirements which can be reasonably anticipated. Cash flow
projections will be used to monitor changing needs.

DIVERSIFICATION: It will be the objective of the College to create diversification in all
portfolios to minimize credit and market risks. Diversification will be addressed in terms of
maturity as well as security type and issuer. It will be the policy of the College to diversify its
portfolios to manage market risk resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific maturity,
a specific issuer or a specific class of investment instruments.

YIELD: It will be the objective of the College to earn a reasonable market yield within
the restrictions imposed by the Policy’s safety and liquidity requirements, investment strategies,
and state and federal laws governing investment of public funds. The investment portfolio shall
be designed with the objective of meeting and exceeding the yield of comparable benchmark
securities chosen to be commensurate with the College's investment risk constraints and the cash
flow characteristics. The College will utilize the six-month Treasury Bill and one-year Treasury
Note as benchmarks for the portfolios’ performance and risk level.

STRATEGY

The general investment strategy of the College is based on its objectives of (a) safety of principal,
(b) liquidity, (c) diversification, and (d) reasonable yield. The strategies created for individual
funds are all designed to address:

137
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-v-... 7/26/2016



Policy V-O: Investment Policy and Strategy | San Jacinto College Page 2 of 9

1. The suitability of the authorized investments to the financial and cash flow requirement of the
College.

2. The need for preservation and safety of principal.

3. The need for a measured liquidity to meet the College’s cash flow requirements.

4. The marketability of every investment if the need arises to liquidate that investment before
maturity.

5. Diversification of the investment portfolio to limit market and credit risks.

6. The recognition of reasonable yield to be used for the needs of the College.

The College maintains two separate portfolios representing the major fund types of the College.
Each portfolio is guided by individual investment strategy considerations addressing the unique
characteristics of its fund group.

A. Operating Funds and Commingled Pools Containing Operating Funds

Investment strategies for operating funds and commingled pools containing operating funds
have as their primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with
adequate investment liquidity. This objective may be accomplished by purchasing high credit
quality, short to medium-term securities, which form a laddered maturity structure and provide
for a suitable liquidity buffer for unanticipated expenses. A maximum dollar weighted average
maturity (WAM) of 365 days will be maintained in these funds and the WAM will be calculated
using the stated final maturity date of each security.

These portfolios contain debt service funds with particular needs. Investment strategies for
debt service payments shall assure investment liquidity adequate to cover the debt service
obligation on the required payment date. The next debt service date must always be funded
before funding subsequent payments.

Included also are debt service reserve funds which are used to generate a dependable
revenue stream to the appropriate debt service fund from securities with a low degree of
volatility. Bond documents and ordinances specific to an individual issue shall be considered
in the investments. Securities should be of high credit quality with short to intermediate term
maturities. Volatility shall be managed with relatively short and intermediate securities.

B. Bond Funds, Construction, Special Projects or Special Purpose Funds

Investment strategies for construction, special projects or special purpose fund portfolios will
have as their primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with
adequate investment liquidity. These portfolios should include at least 10% in highly liquid
securities to allow for flexibility and unanticipated project outlays. The College will attempt to
match its issue costs of bonds (avoid negative arbitrage) without incurring major rebate
payables. The stated final maturity dates of securities held should not exceed the estimated
project completion date and the maximum weighted average maturity will be guided by
anticipated expenditure plans.

STANDARD OF CARE - PRUDENT PERSON STANDARD

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which
persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs,
not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of capital as well as
income to be derived. Investment of funds shall be governed by the following investment
objectives, in order of priority: preservation and safety of principal, liquidity, diversification, and
yield.

This standard of prudence is to be used by all Investment Officers and shall be applied in the
context of managing the overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written
procedures and this Investment Policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal

138
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-v-... 7/26/2016



Policy V-O: Investment Policy and Strategy | San Jacinto College Page 3 of 9

liability for an individual security’s credit or market price fluctuations provided that deviations from
expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control adverse
developments.

INVESTMENT TRAINING

It will be the College's policy to provide training for Board members and Investment Officers as
required by the Act. The Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board will provide training for
Board members to be conducted within six months of assuming office.

The designated Investment Officer(s) shall attend ten hours of investment training within twelve
months of assuming their duties and ten hours every subsequent two fiscal years. The
investment training shall be provided by an independent source approved by the Board. For
purposes of this Policy, an “independent source” from which investment training shall be obtained
shall include a professional organization, an institute of higher learning or any other sponsor other
than a business organization with whom the Board of Trustees engage in an investment purchase
or sale.

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILTIES

In accordance with the Act, the Board of Trustees delegates, by resolution, management
responsibility for the investment program through the Chancellor to the Vice Chancellor of Fiscal
Affairs as the Investment Officer. In the absence of the Vice Chancellor of Fiscal Affairs, with the
approval and direction of the Chancellor, the Director of Accounting and Financial Services will
perform daily investment transactions.

Board of Trustees

The Board is responsible for reviewing and adopting the Investment Policy on no less than an
annual basis. The Board is responsible for designating Investment Officer(s) or an Investment
Adviser responsible for the management of the portfolio(s). The Board may designate an
investment committee to review reports and approve counterparties but the Board must receive
and review quarterly investment reports. The Board retains ultimate fiduciary responsibility for all
funds.

Investment Committee

The Board Budget and Audit Committee will act as the College's Investment Committee. The
Investment Committee shall meet at least quarterly to receive and review quarterly investment
reports and monitor investment results. The Investment Committee shall include in its
deliberation such topics as: economic outlook, portfolio diversification, maturity structure, risk
levels, and performance. The Investment Committee will, on no less than an annual basis, review
and adopt the list of authorized broker/dealers for the Board.

Investment Officer(s)

The Investment Officer(s) shall monitor and maintain all controls and procedures of the
investment process as designated by this Policy. The Officer(s) shall obtain training and shall
establish written procedures and controls consistent with this Investment Policy. Such procedures
shall include delegation of authority to individual employees responsible for investment
transactions and documentation of investment transactions and holdings. The Investment Officer
(s) shall prepare all required reports and maintain broker/dealer files as required. All Investment
Officers will strictly adhere to the standard of care and conditions prescribed in this Policy.

All participants in the investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians of the public
trust. Investment Officers will avoid any transaction that might impair public confidence in the
College. The investment program shall be designed and managed with a degree of
professionalism which is worthy of that public trust.

139
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-v-...  7/26/2016



Policy V-O: Investment Policy and Strategy | San Jacinto College Page 4 of 9

All Investment Officers shall be familiar with this Policy and its underlying procedures. No
Investment Officer may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms
of this Policy and the established procedures.

The Board may designate an SEC registered investment adviser to act as an Investment Officer
for the College in assisting College staff with all provisions of this Policy.

ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

College Investment Officers involved in the investment process who have personal business
relationships with any entity seeking to sell an investment to the College shall file a statement
disclosing the extent of that personal business interest. An Investment Officer who is related
within the second degree by affinity or consanguinity (as determined by State statute) to an
individual seeking to sell an investment to the College shall file a statement disclosing that
relationship with the Texas Ethics Commission in accordance with the Act.

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS

This Policy applies to all investment activity of the College. The College will pursue a pro-active,
conservative approach to investment activity and although other investments may be authorized
by law, the College may invest only in investments authorized by the Board as listed below:

1. Obligations of the US Government (Treasury Bills and Treasury Notes), its agencies and
instrumentalities not to exceed three years to stated maturity. Mortgage backed securities,
with stated maturities less than ten years, are authorized only in bond construction funds.

2. Fully insured or collateralized certificates of deposit of any bank doing business in Texas
which is collateralized in accordance with this Policy and with a stated final maturity not to
exceed one year to include those bought through the CDARS network.

3. Negotiable certificates of deposit securities issued by a bank that has a certificate of deposit
rating of at least 1 or equivalent by a nationally recognized credit rating agency or that is
associated with a holding company having a commercial paper rating of at least A1/P1 or
equivalent by a nationally recognized rating agency.

4. Commercial paper rated no less than A1/P1 by two nationally recognized rating agencies with
a stated maturity less than 90 days.

5. Fully collateralized direct repurchase agreements with a defined termination date, secured in
accordance with this Policy and placed with a primary securities dealer. All repurchase
agreement transactions shall be governed by an executed Bond Market Association Master
Repurchase Agreement. Maximum stated maturity shall be 90 days except for flex
repurchase agreements. Bond proceeds from one issue may be invested in a single flex
repurchase agreement the maximum stated maturity for which shall be matched to the
expenditure plan of the bonds.

6. Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities and other political subdivisions of any state
rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than
A or its equivalent, with a stated maturity of not more than three years.

7. AAA or equivalent rated, constant-dollar, Texas local government investment pools as
defined by the Act and authorized specifically by the Board of Trustees for a particular pool.

8. A money market mutual fund striving to maintain a $1 net asset value .

9. Corporate bonds, debentures or similar debt obligations rated in one of the two highest long-
term rating categories without regard to gradations in those categories by a two nationally
recognized rating agencies not to exceed three years to maturity.

140
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-v-... 7/26/2016



Policy V-O: Investment Policy and Strategy | San Jacinto College Page 5 of 9

10. FDIC insured brokered certificate of deposit securities from a bank in any US state, delivered
versus payment to the College's safekeeping depository, not to exceed one year to maturity.
Before purchase, the investment officer or adviser must verify the FDIC status of the bank on
www.fdic.gov to assure that the bank is FDIC insured.

11. Fully insured or collateralized interest bearing accounts in any bank in Texas.

If additional types of securities are approved for investment by public funds by state statute, they
will not be eligible for investment by the College until this Policy has been amended and the
amended version adopted by the Board of Trustees.

PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS

The College is strictly prohibited from investing in any type of mortgage derivatives:

1. Interest Only Mortgage Backed Securities (10). Obligations whose payment represents the
coupon payments on the outstanding principal balance of the underlying mortgage-backed
security collateral and pays no principal.

2. Principal Only Mortgage Backed Securities (PO). Obligations whose payment represents
the principal stream of cash flow from the underlying mortgage-backed security collateral
and bears no interest.

3. Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOQ) that have a stated final maturity date greater
than ten years.

4. Inverse Floaters. Collateralized mortgage obligations the interest rate of which is
determined by an index that adjusts opposite to the changes in a market index.

DIVERSIFICATION

Diversification will be used to minimize risk of loss by over-concentration in a particular market
sector, maturity or security. The College will strive to structure portfolios with laddered maturities
and securities in accordance with the Policy’s authorized investments and maximum maturity
constraints. To assure diversification in the portfolio the following maximum limits will be
imposed:

Investment Type Max. % in Portfolio
US Treasury Obligations 90 %
US Agency and Instrumentality Obligations 85 %
SEC Registered Money Market Funds 60 %
Repurchase Agreements 75 %

Flex Repurchase (Bond Funds) 100 % of issue
Collateralized/Insured CDs 20 %
FDIC insured brokered CDs 20 %
Negotiable CDs 15 %

Limit per bank 5%
Local Government Investment Pools 100 %

Participation per pool 10 % of pool
Commercial Paper 25 %

Limit per issuer 5%
Municipal Obligations 50 %

Limit per issuer 10 %

Limit per geographical region 50 %
Corporate Obligations 30 %

141
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-v-... 7/26/2016



Policy V-O: Investment Policy and Strategy | San Jacinto College Page 6 of 9

Limit per issuer ]5 %
MAXIMUM MATURITIES

The College will diversify maturity dates and to the extent possible, match investments with
anticipated cash flow requirements. No investment stated maturities will exceed three years at
the time of purchase.

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS

All investments transactions shall be made with a broker/dealer authorized by the Board or its
Investment Committee. The authorized list is to be reviewed at least annually. Banks utilized for
time or demand accounts need not be approved by the Board or Committee but must provide all
required information to the Investment Officers prior to the transaction. The list shall contain no
less than five broker/dealers to assure a competitive process. There is no limit to the number of
banks.

Authorized broker/dealers and financial institutions may include:

* Broker/dealer subsidiaries of banks doing business in the State of Texas,

« Security dealers reporting designated as “primary government securities dealers” by the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York,

= Secondary institutional brokers/dealers registered with the State, the SEC, and the FINRA.

Financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to transact business with the College must
supply the following information/documents. The Investment Officer, or the College’s investment
adviser, will maintain this information on the authorized financial institutions.

= Annual current year audited financial statements

+ Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) certification and FINRA's Central Depository
Registration (CRD) number.

+ Proof of current Texas State Securities registration.

No investment transactions may be entered into with a brokerage subsidiary of the Authority’s
depository bank in order to fulfill all delivery versus payment (DVP) requirements for trade
independence.

Policy Certification

Each authorized financial institution, pool, and broker/dealer must be provided a copy of this
Policy to assure that they are familiar with the goals and objectives of the College. The authorized
representative of the firm shall sign a written certification, in a form acceptable to the College,
substantially to the effect that the firm has:

* Received, and thoroughly reviewed the Policy, and
« Acknowledges that the firm has implemented reasonable controls and procedures in an effort
to preclude investment transactions with the College that are not authorized by the College’s
Policy.
No investment transaction shall be executed with a firm which has not delivered this written

certification. Material changes in this Policy will require re-certification by all broker/dealers. The
College is under no obligation to transact business with any financial institution.

COLLEGE DEPOSITORY

At least every five years a College Depository shall be selected through a formal request for
proposal (RFP). In selecting a depository, the services, cost of services, credit worthiness, and
collateralization by the institutions shall be considered.

INTERNAL CONTROL

142
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-v-...  7/26/2016



Policy V-O: Investment Policy and Strategy | San Jacinto College Page 7 of 9

An annual independent review will be conducted to assure internal controls are in place which
provide for compliance with the College's Investment Policies and procedures and the Act.

Loss of Rating

The Investment Officer or investment adviser shall monitor, on no less than a weekly basis, the
credit rating on all authorized investments in the portfolio based upon independent information
from a nationally recognized rating agency. If any security falls below the minimum rating
required by Policy, the Investment Officer or adviser shall notify the Investment Committee of the
loss of rating, conditions affecting the rating and possible loss of principal with liquidation options
available, within two weeks after the loss of the required rating.

Monitoring FDIC Status

The Investment Officer or Investment Adviser shall monitor, on no less than a weekly basis, the
status and ownership of all banks issuing brokered CDs owned by the College based upon
information from the FDIC. If any bank has been acquired or merged with another bank in which
brokered CDs are owned, the Investment Officer or Adviser shall immediately liquidate any
brokered CD which places the College above the FDIC insurance level.

COLLATERALIZATION

All College time and demand deposits shall be secured above FDIC coverage by pledged
collateral. In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for all funds,
collateral will be maintained and monitored by the depository at 102% of market value of principal
and accrued interest on the deposits. The bank shall be responsible for monitoring and
maintaining the collateral market value daily to assure that the margin on the pledged securities is
maintained.

Collateral pledged to secure deposits shall be held by an independent financial institution outside
the holding company of the depository in accordance with a safekeeping agreement signed by
authorized representatives of the College, the Depository, and the custodian (with the exception
of the Federal Reserve for which a Circular 7 Pledgee Agreement will be executed.).

All collateral shall be subject to inspection and audit by the College or its independent auditors.

Authorized Collateral

The College shall accept only the following as collateral for time and demand deposits:

A. FDIC insurance coverage.

B. Obligations of the United States, its agencies or instrumentalities, or other evidence of
indebtedness of the United States guaranteed as to principal and interest including mortgage
backed securities which pass the bank test.

C. Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities and other political subdivisions of any state
rated A or its equivalent by two nationally recognized rating agencies.

Voluntary Collateral Pooling Alternative

Collateral pooling alternatives authorized by state statute (TX Gov't Code 2257) will be evaluated
on a case-by-case basis for use.

If any depository offers a voluntary collateral pocling alternative for the provision of collateral
(instead of uniquely pledged securities to the College), the investment officers shall fully evaluate
the risk factors concerned to determine the efficacy of participation. The use of collateral pooling
will be analyzed using factors such as anticipated balances, fluctuations in balances, duration of
deposits and current economic conditions to determine the acceptability of the collateral pool.
The pool must contain only marketable securities.

SAFEKEEPING

143
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-v-... 7/26/2016



Policy V-O: Investment Policy and Strategy | San Jacinto College Page 8 of 9

All securities owned by the College shall be held in safekeeping by the College’s depository bank
or an authorized third party financial institution under an executed safekeeping agreement.

DELIVERY VERSUS PAYMENT

All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered into by the
College shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis to assure that the College
has full control of its funds and assets at all times.

REPORTING

The Investment Officer shall submit monthly and quarterly reports to the Board of Trustees in
accordance with the Act containing sufficient information to permit an informed reader to evaluate
the performance and risks of the investment program. At a minimum the report shall include:

Description of each investment and depository position.

Book and market values at the beginning and end of the reporting period
Additions and changes to the market value during the period

The book and market value of each separately invested asset

The maturity date of each separately invested asset

The account, fund, or pooled group fund for which each investment was acquired.
The earnings for the period

The overall yield for the portfolio(s) and its benchmark yield for the period

T8 @ 00 OTO

Market prices for market value calculations shall be obtained from an independent source. The
report must conform to the contents of the Act and must be prepared and signed by all investment
officers of the College.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Vice Chancellor of Fiscal Affairs shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities
of the investment program and staff. The controls will be reviewed annually with the independent
auditor of the College. The controls shall be designed to prevent loss of funds due to fraud,
employee error, misrepresentation by third parties, unanticipated market changes, or imprudent
actions. Controls deemed most important would include: control of collusion, separation of duties,
custody and safekeeping, delegation of authority, securities losses and remedial actions, and
documentation of all transactions.

Cash Flow Forecasting

Cash flow forecasting is a control designed to protect and sustain cash flow requirements of the
College. The Investment Officer will maintain a cash flow analysis designed to forecast cash
positions for investment purposes.

INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION

The Investment Committee may suggest Policy changes to the Board of Trustees at any time.
The Board of Trustees shall review and adopt, by resolution, its Investment Policy and investment
strategies not less than annually and the approving resolution shall designate any changes made
to the Policy.

Policy #: V-0

Policy on Investment Policy

Policy Name:
‘and Strategy

Pages: 9

Adopted Date: August 3, 2009

144
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-v-...  7/26/2016



Policy V-O: Investment Policy and Strategy | San Jacinto College Page 9 of 9

Revision/Reviewed Date: |July 7, 2014; July 21, 2015

August 3, 2009, July 7, 2014
and July 21, 2015

Effective Date:

Associated Guideline:

145
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-v-... 7/26/2016



SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
PURCHASE RECAP
AUGUST 15, 2016

L EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & SERVICES BIDS
IFB #16-16
Welding Machine Trainers (pgs. 2-4) $ 265,000
RFP #16-27
Advanced Manufacturing Training Courses (pgs. 5-7) 100,000
RFP #16-24
Moving Services (pgs. 8-9) 150,000
TOTAL OF ALL BIDS 515,000
PURCHASE REQUESTS,
II. SOLE SOURCE VENDORS,

COOPERATIVES, AND CONTRACT RENEWALS

Purchase Request #1 -
Annual Renewals (pgs. 10-19) $ 35,193,526

Purchase Request #2 -
Purchasing Cooperatives (pgs. 20-21) -

Purchase Request #3 -
Data Networking Equipment (pgs. 22) 3,100,000
Purchase Request #4 697,000

K-Sim Engine Full Mission Trainer (pgs. 23-24)

Purchase Request #5 -

Graduation Event License (pgs. 25) 108,000
TOTAL OF PURCHASE REQUESTS 39,098,526
GRAND TOTAL: $ 39,613,526

1 146



IFB #16-16
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval to Purchase Welding Machine Trainers

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of welding machine
trainers from The Lincoln Electric Company for the Welding Technology department at
North campus.

BACKGROUND

An invitation for bids, Project Number 16-16, was issued to procure the following welding
machine trainers: thirty-six (36) compact wire feeder welders and one (1) pipe cutting
machine. Three (3) responses were received and the bid submitted by Lincoln Electric was
determined to be both responsible and responsive to all bid requirements.

Welding machine trainers are to be installed at the Center for Industrial Technology building
in November 2016 for the Welding Technology courses beginning in Spring 2017. Welding
Technology courses have been offered at North Campus since 1976. The program offers an
Associate Degree in Applied Science in Welding Technology; two (2) Certificates of
Technology: Combination Welder and Gas Shielded Welding; and two (2) Occupational
Certificates: Stick Pipe Welder and Structural Welder.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

The compact wire feeder machines will help train our students in a multi-functional,
efficient, and safe environment. The machines contain trademarks and characters that will
help ensure high quality instruction, utilizing durable and reliable welding equipment.

The pipe cutting machine will benefit both the welding and pipefitting programs and will
help train our students in proper cutting and beveling techniques. This piece of equipment
will result in a cost savings by reducing the need to outsource pipe cutting, and it will save on
instructional time when cutting bevels on pipe, while adding to the student’s repertoire.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The expenditure is $265,260 to be funded by revenue bonds as part of the Center for
Industrial Technology construction budget.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
The equipment shall be delivered on or before November 21, 2016.
ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 - Tabulation

2 147



IFB #16-16
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016

Consideration of Approval to Purchase Welding Machine Trainers

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

William Raffetto 281-459-7699
Kevin Morris 281-922-3479
Eddie Foster 281-459-7178
Angela Klaus 281-998-6327

william.raffetto@sjcd.edu
kevin.morris@sjcd.edu
eddie.foster@sjcd.edu
angela.klaus@sjcd.edu

148



Project Name Welding Machine Trainers

Project Number IFB 16-16
Welding Machine . . . .
Trai Airgas Lincoln Electric Praxair
rainer

36 compact wire $ 20942424 | $ 209,624.76 | §  213,840.00
feeder welders

1 pipe cutting

) $ 60,619.82 | $ 55,635.00 | $ 61,860.00
machine
S 270,044.06 $ 265,259.76 $ 275,700.00
Final Ranking
Vendor Name Total Price

Lincoln Electric $ 265,259.76

Airgas $ 270,044.06
Praxair $ 275,700.00

149



RFP #16-27
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval to Purchase Advanced Manufacturing Training Courses

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends the Board of Trustees approve a contract to provide advanced
manufacturing training courses from Educated Business Resource Corp (EBRC) for the
Continuing Professional Development department (CPD).

BACKGROUND

CPD began offering advanced manufacturing courses in 2010 through the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act High Growth and Emerging Industries Grant. The grant
was very effective, training 182 participants in Computer Numeric Controls (CNC) Operator
training, 79 participants in Industrial Automation, and 102 participants in Programmable
Logic Control (PLC) Programming. These courses are currently being offered through a
TWC Skills Development Fund grant with PolyOne and DuPont. There are also opportunities
with NASA and other industry partners.

The demand for advanced manufacturing courses is expected to grow due to CPD’s current
marketing efforts, the opening of the new North Campus Center for Industrial Technology
building, the availability of grant funding, and two corporate clients, SSAB and Vallourec,
who are requesting courses from the College for their employees.

A request for proposals, Project Number 16-27, was issued to provide advanced
manufacturing training course curriculum and instructors as needed. One response was
received and evaluated by a team consisting of CPD staff who determined the proposal
submitted by EBRC would provide the best value to the College.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

CPD anticipates elevating the skill level of more unemployed, underemployed, and
incumbent workers with additional available courses through the award of this contract. The
reputation of these courses is attracting companies to enroll their employees in order to
improve the skill level of their workforce.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The estimated annual expenditure for these services is $100,000. This expenditure is funded
by CPD Computer/IT Department’s 2016-2017 operating budget and subsequent year
budgets, subject to approval by the Board.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The initial award term will be for one (1) year, commencing September 2, 2016 with renewal
options of three (3) one-year time periods.

5 150



RFP #16-27
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval to Purchase Advanced Manufacturing Training Courses

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment 1 — Tabulation

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Craig Zimmerman 281-478-3684 Craig.zimmerman@sjcd.edu
Jerelyn Glenn 281-542-2066 Jerelyn.glenn@sjcd.edu
Genie Freeman-Scholes 281-998-6349 Genevieve.scholes@sjcd.edu

6 151



Project Name
Project Number
Number of Evaluators

Advanced Manufacturing Training Services

RFP 16-27
3

Stated Criteria

Price Proposal

Criteria Explanation

Pricing per student or per couse
rate for on-site work. State all
anticipated, reimbursable travel-
related expenses

Total Points
Available

90

EBRC

50

Qualifications and
Experience of Personnel

Professional experience and
qualifications of the individuals
assigned to the account

75

43

Project Approach and
Services

Vendor's relevant approach and
methodology analyzing the
likelihood of project success.
Provide course syllabi and a
draft of elecronicic flyer or
brochure for student
recruitement.

60

47

Qualifications and
Experience of Firm

Firm's description, history, size
and staff composition. Describe
experience with higher
education

45

37

Business Questionnaire

Performance reputation,
delivery, and value added
services.

30

23

Final Ranking

Vendor Name

300

200

Total Points
Received

Total Score

200

152



RFP #16-24
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval to Contract for Moving Services

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends the Board of Trustees approve a contract with A-Rocket Moving
& Storage to provide moving services.

BACKGROUND

A request for proposals, Project Number 16-24, was issued to procure moving services for the
Maintenance & Facilities department. Seven (7) responses were received and evaluated by a
team consisting of representatives from Maintenance & Facility and campus staff who
determined the proposal submitted by A-Rocket Moving & Storage would provide the best
value to the College.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

The Maintenance & Facility department coordinates and schedules all moves within the
College and must rely on an external moving company to assist with planning and facilitating
the movement of physical assets and personal effects within the College. The need is
intensified by the number and size of moves required due to ongoing renovation projects and
completion of new facilities. The business of the College would be unduly hindered, and
occupancy of newly renovated and constructed buildings would be delayed if the use of an
outside moving firm was not utilized.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The estimated annual expenditure for these services is $150,000. This expenditure will be
funded by the Maintenance & Facilities department’s 2016-2017 operating budget.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The initial contract term will be for one (1) year, September 1, 2016 through August 31, 2017,
with renewal options of four (4) additional one-year periods.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment 1 — Tabulation

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Bryan Jones 281-998-6343 bryan.jones@sjcd.edu
Larry Logsdon 281-998-6120 larry.logsdon@sjcd.edu
Angela Klaus 281-998-6327 angela.klaus@sjcd.edu

8 153



Project Name
Project Number
# of Evaluators

Stated Criteria

Moving Services
RFP 16-24
4

Criteria Explanation

Total
Points
Available

All Points Moving &

Storage
A-Rocket Moving &

Storage

East End Transfer &

Storage
Pioneer Contract

Clark, Duncan &
Services

Morris

Roadrunner Moving

& Storage

Wald Relocation
Services

Firm Qualifications

Firm's history, size,

. locations, and years of 25 19.25 21.25 23.00 20.00 20.25 21.25 21.50
and Experience .
service
Personnel Professional experience and
Qualifications and qualifications of individuals 10 825 875 9.00 7.13 813 825 8.00
Experience assigned to the account
. Technical approach to the
Project Approach (¢ of services and 30 24.00 25.75 2625 24.00 24.75 2575 24.75
& Services . .
implementation processes
Firm's ability to meet
Price Proposal requirements within a 25 21.12 1890 16.09 13.72 1398 14.34 14.18
competitive price
Firm's performance and
References . . . 10 775 863 888 7.50 825 8.00 7.75
reputation with other clients
100 80.37 83.28 83.22 7235 7536 77.59 76.18
Total Points received
Final Ranking
Vendor Name Total
Score
A-Rocket Moving & Storage 83.28
Clark, Duncan & Morris 83.22
All Points Moving & Storage 80.37
Roadrunner Moving & Storage 77.59
Wald Relocation Services 76.18
Pioneer Contract Services 75.36
East End Transfer & Storage 72.35
9 154



Purchase Request #1
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration for Annual Renewals

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the following purchase requests
which encompass the annual contract renewals and anticipated expenditures from existing
suppliers in excess of $50,000 during the 2016-2017 fiscal year. Funds will not be expended
until after the fiscal year 2016-2017 budget has been approved by the Board.

Auxiliary Services $4,450,000

Barnes and Noble to provide bookstore operation services procured through RFP #07-21. This is
the tenth year of a ten-year contract with an option to renew for one additional year. The current
contract term expires June 14, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure is $4,000,000.

Sysco, Houston to provide food supplies procured through RFP #15-17. This renewal will
exercise the first of three one-year renewal options available. The first renewal contract term
expires August 31, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure is $450,000.

Continuing and Professional Development (CPD) $2,140,000

Alliance Safety Council to provide training materials for the Certified Occupational Safety
Specialist program. The sole source number is 1334. The estimated annual expenditure is
$90,000.

LZ Technology, Inc. to provide internship staffing services procured through RFP #13-09. This
is the third year of a possible five year contract. The contract expires August 31, 2018. The
estimated annual expenditure is $2,000,000.

The Quality Group to provide training materials and services for CPD courses. Agreement
effective December 20, 2011 and remains in effect until terminated. The estimated annual
expenditure is $50,000.

Educational Technology $1,650,000
Blackboard to provide the annual software license and maintenance for the Blackboard online
class delivery, web support services and emergency notification system. The sole source number
is 1225. This is the fourth year of a five year contract. The current contract term expires August

31,2017. The estimated annual expenditure is $1,200,000.

Kaltura, Inc. to provide media streaming services procured through RFP #13-14. This is the
fourth year of a possible eight year contract. The estimated annual expenditure is $50,000.

10 155



Purchase Request #1
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration for Annual Renewals

Smarthinking to provide the annual software license and maintenance for Smarthinking online

tutoring services. The sole source number is 1224. The estimated annual expenditure is
$400,000.

Facilities and Construction $6,985,000

Automated Logic to provide heating, ventilation and air conditioning supplies procured through
the Choice Partners purchasing cooperative, contract number 14/021JN-02. The contract expires
June 20, 2018. The estimated annual expenditure is $60,000.

Construction Masters of Houston to provide job order contracting services procured through the
Choice Partners purchasing cooperative, contract number 15/041JN-04. The contract expires
August 17, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure is $800,000.

City of Houston to provide impact fees, boiler renewals, permits, inspection fees, water and
sewer services. This is as a sole source provider in a regulated market. The estimated annual
expenditure is $255,000.

City of La Porte to provide water and sewer services. This is as a sole source provider in a
regulated market. The estimated annual expenditure is $100,000.

City of Pasadena to provide trash removal, water and sewer services. This is as a sole source
provider in a regulated market. The estimated annual expenditure is $375,000.

Harris County FWSD No. 51 to provide water and sewer services. This is as a sole source
provider in a regulated market. The estimated annual expenditure is $150,000.

Grainger to provide maintenance, repair and operational equipment and supplies for the
Maintenance department’s inventory control program, general use and Bond projects procured
through the E&I purchasing cooperative, contract number CNR-01248. The contract expires
January 31, 2020. The estimated annual expenditure is $600,000.

Hunton Trane to provide heating, ventilation and air conditioning maintenance services,
procured through the TCPN purchasing cooperative, contract number R150502. The contract
expires September 30, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure is $150,000.

Lowes to provide maintenance, repair and operational equipment and supplies procured through
the TCPN purchasing cooperative, contract number R142104. The contract expires March 31,
2017. The estimated annual expenditure is $60,000.

NAES Central Inc. (dba Amtech Elevator Services) to provide elevator maintenance and repair
services procured through the National IPA purchasing cooperative, contract number 19281.
The current contract term expires August 31, 2016 and is expected to renew for another term.
The estimated annual expenditure is $150,000.

1" 156



Purchase Request #1
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration for Annual Renewals

Nalco to provide water treatment services and supplies, procured through the TXMAS
purchasing cooperative, contract number TXMAS-12-73040. The current contract term expires
January 1, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure is $125,000.

Service Solutions Corporation (SSC) to provide custodial services procured through the E&I
purchasing cooperative, contract number CNRO01332. The contract expires August 2, 2022. The
estimated annual expenditure is $3,065,000.

Sherwin-Williams Co. to provide paint supplies, procured through the E&I purchasing
cooperative. The contract expires July 31, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure is $50,000.

Siemens Building Technologies, Inc. to provide fire alarm monitoring and life safety systems,
and fire protection system inspections and supplies procured through the NJPA purchasing
cooperative, contract number 031913-SIE. This is the fourth year of a five year contract. The
current contract term expires April 23, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure is $200,000.

Siemens Building Technologies, Inc. to provide maintenance and energy management systems,
products and services procured through the GSA purchasing cooperative, contract number GS-
07F-8728D. The contract expires December 31, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure is
$200,000.

Suncoast Resources Inc. and O’Rourke Petroleum to provide gasoline and diesel fuel. Fuel
purchases are exempt from competitive sourcing per section 44.031 of the Texas Education
Code. The combined estimated annual expenditure for both vendors is $175,000.

Texan Floor Services, Ltd. to provide Mohawk Carpet Distribution, Inc. flooring supplies and
installation services procured through the NJPA purchasing cooperative, contract number
022712-MCD. The contract expires March 20, 2020. The estimated annual expenditure is
$120,000.

Waste Management to provide waste disposal services procured through RFP #13-01. This is the
fifth year of a possible five year contract. The contract expires September 10, 2017. The
estimated annual expenditure is $100,000.

Yellowstone Landscape (dba Bio Landscape and Maintenance, Inc.) to provide grounds keeping
services procured through the Choice Partners purchasing cooperative, contract number
12/013KJ-01. The current contract term expires April 20, 2017 and is expected to renew for
another term. The estimated annual expenditure is $250,000.

Fiscal Affairs $1,915,526
Claims Administrative Services, Inc. to provide workers’ compensation insurance procured

through an interlocal agreement. The annual fixed cost for one year is $59,382 with a claims
liability not to exceed $306,144.

12 157



Purchase Request #1
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration for Annual Renewals

Daniel J. Snooks Attorney at Law to provide legal services. Legal services are classified as
professional services pursuant to Section 2254 of the Texas Government Code and are exempt
from competitive procurement laws pursuant to Section 44.031(f) of the Texas Education Code.
The estimated annual expenditure is $50,000.

Harris County Appraisal District to provide property appraisal services. The sole source number
is 1115. The estimated annual expenditure is $660,000.

Thompson & Horton LLP to provide legal services. Legal services are classified as professional
services pursuant to Section 2254 of the Texas Government Code and are exempt from
competitive procurement laws pursuant to Section 44.031(f) of the Texas Education Code. The
estimated annual expenditure is $400,000.

Texas Association of School Boards (TASB) Risk Management Fund for unemployment
compensation insurance procured through an interlocal agreement. The estimated annual
expenditure is $150,000.

Touchnet Information Systems, Inc. to provide the software license and annual maintenance for
Touchnet Payment, Bill-Pay Suites, Market Place and Sponsor Point. The sole source number is
1214. The estimated annual expenditure is $290,000.

General Operations $8,040,000

Advanced Technologies Consultants to provide technical training equipment for instructional
programs procured through the ESC Region 5 purchasing cooperative, contract number
20140406. The contract expires May 31, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure is $50,000.

Airgas LLC to provide welding and medical gases procured through the E&I purchasing
cooperative, contract number CNRO1362. The contract expires September 30, 2019. The
estimated annual expenditure is $125,000.

Anson Aviation to provide flight training services procured through RFP #12-09. This is the
fifth year of a possible five year contract. The contract term expires August 31, 2017. The
estimated annual expenditure is $200,000.

B & H Foto and Video to provide photo supplies and equipment procured through multiple
purchasing cooperative contracts: E&I contract number CNRO1341, expires July 31, 2018; and
BuyBoard contract number 482-15, expires April 30, 2018. The estimated annual expenditure is
$120,000.

CDW-G to provide annual software maintenance licenses, computer supplies, and equipment,
procured through multiple cooperative contracts: Choice Partners contract number 13/068DG-
09, expires January 22, 2017; National IPA contract number 130733, expires August 17, 2018;
and DIR contract number DIR-TSO-2661, expires September 19, 2018. The estimated annual
expenditure is $120,000.

13 158



Purchase Request #1
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration for Annual Renewals

CenterPoint Energy Resources to provide natural gas. This is a sole source provider in a
partially regulated market. The estimated annual expenditure is $210,000.

College Board to provide Texas Success Initiative (TSI) Assessment tests. The sole source
number is 1384. The estimated annual expenditure is $150,000.

Constellation to provide electricity services procured through RFP #14-14. This is the third year
of a five year contract and includes five percent green energy. The contract expires December
11,2019. The estimated annual expenditure is $3,400,000.

Elsevier to provide HESI assessment exams to nursing students to measure their progress
throughout the nursing curriculum and predict student success on national examinations. The
sole source number is 1391. The estimated annual expenditure is $200,000.

Fisher Scientific to provide science and lab supplies and equipment procured through the
Provista purchasing cooperative, contract number MR91000-2009. The current contract term
expires October 31, 2016. The estimated annual expenditure is $50,000.

Furniture Marketing Group, Inc. (FMG) to provide furniture and installation services procured
through the U. S. Communities purchasing cooperative, contract number 4400003402. The
current contract term expires December 31, 2016 and is expected to renew for another term. The
estimated annual expenditure is $200,000.

Facility Interiors to provide furniture and installation services procured through the Choice
Partners purchasing cooperative, contract number 15/031CG-08. Contract expires July 20, 2017.
The estimated annual expenditure is $200,000.

Haworth to provide furniture procured through U. S. Communities purchasing cooperative,
contract number 4400003402. The current contract term expires December 31, 2016 and is
expected to renew for another term. The estimated annual expenditure is $600,000.

Konica Minolta to provide leased copiers procured through the DIR purchasing cooperative,
contract number DIR-TSO-3082. The contract expires August 13, 2019. The estimated annual
expenditure is $330,000.

Lab Resources Inc. to provide technical training equipment and supplies for instructional
programs procured through the Choice Partners purchasing cooperative, contract number
13/062DG-29. The current contract term expires November 18, 2016 and is expected to renew
for another term. The sole source number for electronic training systems is 1406. The estimated
annual expenditure is $50,000.

McCorvey Prepared Precision Products, L.P. DBA Flying Tigers to provide flight training

services procured through RFP #12-09. This is the fifth year of a possible five year contract.
The contract term expires August 31, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure is $600,000.

14 159



Purchase Request #1
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration for Annual Renewals

Meador Staffing Services, Inc. to provide temporary personnel agency services procured through
RFP #11-15. This is the fifth year of a possible five year contract and has been extended through
November 30, 2016. The estimated expenditure until the anticipated award of the new contract
in September is $100,000.

Office Max/Office Depot to provide general office supplies procured through the Purchasing
Solutions Alliance (PSA) purchasing cooperative, contract number 13-100. This is the fourth
year of a possible five year contract. The current contract term expires May 18, 2017. The
estimated annual expenditure is $675,000.

Praxair Distribution Inc. dba Acetylene Oxygen Company to provide welding consumables for
instructional programs, procured through the Choice Partners purchasing cooperative, contract
number 13-032DG-01. The contract expires September 16, 2017. The estimated annual
expenditure is $50,000.

Southern Computer Warehouse (SCW) to provide computer supplies and equipment procured
through multiple purchasing cooperatives. The BuyBoard contract number 498-15 expires
December 31, 2018. The estimated annual expenditure is $100,000.

Technical Laboratory Systems Inc. to provide technical training equipment and supplies for
instructional programs procured through the Choice Partners purchasing cooperative contract
number 14/034MP-14 for training system distributor. The current contract term expires
September 16, 2016 and is expected to renew for another term. The sole source number is 1363
for Amatrol equipment purchased from this supplier. The estimated annual expenditure is
$50,000.

Texas Association of Community Colleges (TACC) for annual membership dues and building
and mathways assessment fees. The sole source number is 1116. The estimated annual
expenditure is $100,000.

Verizon Wireless to provide wireless phone service for approximately 250 phone lines procured
through the GSA purchasing cooperative, contract number GS-35F-0119P. The contract expires
December 2, 2018. The estimated annual expenditure is $80,000.

United Flight Systems to provide flight training services procured through RFP #12-09. This is
the fifth year of a possible five year contract. The contract term expires August 31, 2017. The
estimated annual expenditure is $120,000.

United States Postal Services for the campus post offices and mailing services. The sole source
number is 1106. The estimated annual expenditure is $65,000.

VWR International (Ward’s Natural Science & Sargent Welch) establishment to provide science
and lab supplies and equipment procured through the BuyBoard purchasing cooperative, contract
numbers 487-15 and 498-15, and E & I purchasing cooperative, contract number CNR-01163.
The contracts expire October 31, 2018 and June 30, 2018 respectively. The estimated annual
expenditure is $95,000.

15 160



Purchase Request #1
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration for Annual Renewals

ITS $7,060,000

Acquia to provide the College’s hosted Drupal Platform for its website. The sole source number
is 1378. The estimated annual expenditure is $90,000.

AT&T to provide internet access and telephone services procured through DIR purchasing
cooperative, contract number DIR-TSO-3420. The contract expires June 10, 2018. The
estimated annual expenditure is $280,000.

Comcast to provide internet connectivity upgrade services procured through RFP 14-05. This is
the third year of a possible five year contract. The contract term expires September 11, 2017.
Comcast also provides TV and internet services college-wide in a regulated access market as
well as the plan to acquire new circuits in the coming year. The estimated annual expenditure is
$140,000.

Dell Financial Services, LLC to provide computer leasing and equipment procured through the
DIR purchasing cooperative, contract number DIR-SDD-1951. The current contract term
expires January 9, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure is $2,210,000.

Dell Marketing, LP to provide computer supplies and Microsoft license agreements procured
through the DIR purchasing cooperative, contract number DIR-SDD-1951. The contract expires
January 9, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure is $670,000.

Ellucian to provide annual software licenses and maintenance for the Banner software system
procured through the Texas A&M Corpus Christi Texas Connection Consortium inter-agency
agreement. Also included are Banner functional and technical consultation and Banner data
implementation services. The sole source number is 1232. The estimated annual expenditure is
$850,000.

Information Builders to provide software maintenance for the Webfocus programs. The sole
source number is 1269. The estimated annual expenditure is $70,000.

JourneyEd.com Inc. to provide Adobe creative cloud licenses for $88,000 procured through RFP
15-04 and additional $12,000 for miscellaneous purchases. This is the second year of a three

year contract term. The contract expires October 23, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure is
$100,000.

Layer3 Communications, LLC to provide software, hardware, products, services and
maintenance for equipment including telephone and server equipment, network data switch gear
and wireless access points procured through the DIR purchasing cooperative, contract number
DIR-TSO-2679. The contract expires September 19, 2018. The estimated annual expenditure is
$280,000.

16 161



Purchase Request #1
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration for Annual Renewals

Lan Walton to provide information technology consulting services procured as a professional
service. The estimated annual expenditure is $350,000.

Level 3 Communications formerly known as TW Telecom of Texas, LLC to provide internet
access procured through the DIR purchasing cooperative, contract number DIR-TEX-AN-NG-
CTSA-006. The contract expires August 4, 2021. The estimated annual expenditure is
$170,000.

Mythics, Inc. to provide Oracle software licenses and maintenance procured through the DIR
purchasing cooperative, contract DIR-TSO-2548. The contract expires October 16, 2018. The
estimated annual expenditure is $350,000.

Network Cabling Services (NCS) to provide audio video installation and equipment for projects
across all campuses, procured through multiple purchasing cooperatives. TCPN contract number
R5168, expires June 30, 2017 and BuyBoard contract number 482-15, expires April 30, 2018.
The estimated annual expenditure is $60,000.

PCM Gov, Inc. to provide hardware, software, networking equipment, storage, peripherals,
supplies, Citrix subscription licenses and software renewals through multiple purchasing
cooperatives. DIR contract number DIR-TSO-2823, expires May 18, 2017, and BuyBoard
contract number 498-15 expires December 31, 2018. The estimated annual expenditure is
$220,000.

SHI Government Solutions Inc. to provide maintenance, peripherals and supplies through
multiple purchasing cooperatives. DIR contract number DIR-SDD-2067, expires March 28,
2017, TCPN R150704, expires September 30, 2018, and BuyBoard contract number 498-15
expires December 31, 2018. The estimated annual expenditure is $70,000.

Texas A&M University Corpus Christi for maintenance of Banner, DegreeWorks, FlexReg, E-
Learning, Recruiter software modules, and anticipated consulting to support Banner XE and

Pathways procured through an interagency contract. The estimated annual expenditure is
$800,000.

Windstream Corporation to provide Avaya Software Support and Upgrade (SSU) and hardware
maintenance procured through the DIR purchasing cooperative, contract number DIR-TSO-
2649, expires December 29, 2018 and DIR-TSO-2654, expires February 10, 2019. The
estimated annual expenditure is $350,000.

Lease Agreements $703,000
Houston Pilots Association to provide a vessel piloting simulator for the Maritime program. The

lease agreement is a five-year term effective December 31, 2013, with the option to extend for an
additional five-year term. Annual lease payments of $50,000, paid quarterly.

17 162



Purchase Request #1
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration for Annual Renewals

St. Charles Interest, Inc. for a facility located at 3234 East Pasadena Freeway to house the
Applied Trades and Technology Programs offered by CPD. The current term of the lease
extends through June 30, 2019. Leasing of real property does not fall within the requirements for
competitive bidding required in Chapter 44 of the Texas Education Code. The annual cost of the
lease is $98,000.

Apartments are leased to provide housing for student athletes on scholarship. Lease agreements
range from nine to twelve month terms based on availability and requirements specific to each
complex. Leasing of real property does not fall within the requirements for competitive bidding
required in Chapter 44 of the Texas Education Code.

Alta Crossing Apartments, LP $182,000
Beamer Place $210,000
Campus View Houston, LP $ 63,000
CEG San Jacinto LLC $100,000
Library Services $555,000

Amigos Library Services, Thomson/Gale, Infobase Publishing, Online Computer Library Center,
Inc., Oxford University Press, R.R. Bowker, LLC, Springshare, Inc., and various other vendors
to provide access to digital library databases. Library purchases are exempt from competitive
bidding per Sections 44.0311(c) and 130.0101 of the Texas Education Code. The estimated
annual expenditure is $100,000.

Schroeder’s Book Haven, Yankee Book Peddler Inc., Thomson/Gale, West Group, and various
other vendors to provide library books, equipment, and supplies. Library purchases are exempt
from competitive bidding per Sections 44.0311(c) and 130.0101 of the Texas Education Code.
The estimated annual expenditure is $250,000.

EBSCO Subscription Services to provide access to digital library databases. Library purchases
are exempt from competitive bidding per Sections 44.0311(c) and 130.0101 of the Texas
Education Code. The estimated annual expenditures for the databases are $130,000.

Innovative Interfaces to provide hosting and maintenance services of the Sierra Integrated
Library System and subscription services to InnView. The sole source number is 1387. The
estimated annual expenditure is $75,000.

Marketing $1,695,000
Outfront Media (formerly CBS Outdoor) and Howard Fetzer to provide outdoor

advertising/billboards for marketing purposes. The sole source number is 1418. The estimated
annual expenditure is $165,000.

18 163



Purchase Request #1
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration for Annual Renewals

Houston Chronicle to provide advertising services for marketing and legal notices posted by the
College. The sole source number is 1194. The estimated annual expenditure is $530,000.

Steel Digital Studios dba Steel Branding to provide media buying services for the College
procured through RFP 14-15. This is the third year of a possible five year contract. The contract
term expires August 31, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure is $500,000.

Steel Digital Studios dba Steel Branding to provide digital advertising and search engine
optimization for the College procured through RFP 15-19. This is the second year of a possible
five year contract. The contract term expires August 31, 2017. The estimated annual expenditure
is $500,000.

19 164



Purchase Request #2
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval of Purchasing Cooperatives

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve utilization of purchasing
cooperatives on an as-needed basis for authorized expenditures for the fiscal year 2016-2017.

BACKGROUND

The College participates in various purchasing cooperatives, group purchasing organizations,
government purchasing alliances, interagency agreements, bids and contracts both in and out
of the State of Texas. The purpose of the cooperatives is to provide lower prices and better
quality products for educational institutions belonging to the cooperatives and allows the
College to take advantage of leveraged buying through these various agreements. The
contracts awarded through these cooperatives are competitively bid and comply with the
State of Texas competitive bidding requirements.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

The purchase of products and services through competitively bid purchasing cooperatives
allows the College to leverage buying power by pooling the purchasing volume of multiple
governmental and educational institutions in order to obtain the best value for the cooperative
members. Utilizing these competitively bid contracts also saves time and money as these
contracts are readily available for use when a need arises and precludes the requirement to
initiate a formal solicitation process. Buying through the cooperatives meets the
requirements of the State bidding laws and College purchasing policies.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

Items purchased through the cooperatives will be procured utilizing individual departmental
budgets.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
None

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 - List of Interlocal Purchasing Cooperatives
RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Ann Kokx-Templet 281-998-6103 ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu

20 165



Purchase Request #2
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval of Purchasing Cooperatives

Attachment #1 — List of Interlocal Purchasing Cooperatives

City of Houston and Metropolitan Transit Authority
Claims Administrative Services (CAS)

Educational & Institutional Cooperative Purchasing (E&I)
First Choice Cooperative (FCC)

Harris County Department Education (HCDE) - Choice Partners
Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC)

Horizon Resource Group

Managed Healthcare Associates, Inc. (MHA)

National Association of Educational Procurement (NAEP)
National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA)

National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance (IPA)
Provista

Purchasing Solutions Alliance (PSA)

Region 2 Education Service Center (ESC)

Region 4 Education Service Center (ESC)

Region 5 Education Service Center (ESC)

Region 19 Education Service Center (ESC)

State of Texas Cooperative Purchasing Program

Tarrant County Cooperative Purchasing Program

Texas Association of Community Colleges (TACC) - Texas Community College
Cooperative Purchasing Network (TCCCPN)

Texas Association of Public Educators (TAPE)

Texas Association of School Boards (TASB) - BuyBoard
Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR)
Texas Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS/TAPS)

Texas Investment Provider Selection Committee (TIPSC)
Texas Multiple Award Schedule (TXMAS)

Texas Procurement and Support Services (TPASS)
Texas State Management Travel Program (TSTMP)

The Cooperative Purchasing Network (TCPN)

U.S. Communities Government Purchasing Alliance

U.S. General Services Administration (GSA), Schedules 70 and 84
21 166



Purchase Request #3
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval to Purchase Data Networking Equipment

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of data networking
equipment from Layer 3 Communications (Texas) LLC for Information Technology Services
(ITS) Department.

BACKGROUND

Early in 2010, ITS replaced the data networking infrastructure at the College with an
expected life span of seven years. This equipment modernized our data communications and
provided faster and more reliable services with greater access for students and employees.
The College’s data network provides the underlying connectivity for lab and classroom
computers used for instruction and all employee computing.

Layer 3 Communications has a contract through the Department of Information Resources
(DIR) cooperative contracts program to provide data communications and networking
equipment and related services, Contract Numbers DIR-TSO-2641 and DIR-TSO-2679,
which comply with the competitive procurement requirement in Section 44.031 of the Texas
Education Code and is permitted through Section 791.011(g) of the Texas Government Code.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

This purchase will replace aging data networking infrastructure. The new core and edge
network switches delivers higher performance, improved redundancy and better
manageability. Over the last seven years, we have seen a significant and persistent growth in
data usage. This stems from increased dependency on the internet for instructional purposes
as well as our transition to cloud based systems like Office 365. This purchase will support
these needs and continued growth.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The estimated expenditure for this request is $3,100,000. This expenditure is funded the by
2008 Bond program with an allocation from the contingency.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

None

ATTACHMENTS

None

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Rob Stanicic 281-669-4023 Rob.stanicic@sjcd.edu

Allen Bourque 281-922-3494 Allen.bourque@sjcd.edu
Genie Freeman-Scholes 281-998-6349 Genevieve.scholes@sjcd.edu

22 167



Purchase Request #4
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval to Purchase Kongsberg K-SIM Engine Full Mission Trainer

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of the Kongsberg
K-SIM Engine Full Mission Trainer for the Maritime Center.

BACKGROUND

In 2013, the San Jacinto College Maritime Center installed the Kongsberg Polaris Full
Mission Bridge Simulator. The simulator was provided by the Houston Pilots Association,
and the simulator has allowed the College to offer Coast Guard Standards of Training,
Certification and Watchkeeping (STCW) training for working mariners and students enrolled
in the credit AAS maritime program. The Kongsberg K-SIM Engine Room Full Mission
Trainer will be used to teach additional courses for working mariners and will enable credit
programming to expand to include Engine Room training.

For two years, there has been discussion of changes to Coast Guard Standards certification
requirements. When the Maritime Campus was built, the facility was designed to
accommodate the addition of an engine room simulation training if the US Coast Guard
enacted the proposed changes in certification training requirements. The proposed changes
that require engine room certifications for working mariners were approved in June 2016 and
are effective January 2017. The purchase of the K-Sim Full Mission Engine Room Trainer
will allow San Jacinto College to offer the expanded assessments and training to working
mariners beginning in early spring 2017. Faculty will begin development of maritime
engineering courses to augment the maritime program offerings immediately.

The Kongsberg K-SIM Engine Full Mission Trainer is the only approved engine simulator
that interfaces directly into the proprietary Kongsberg Polaris Bridge Simulator, allowing
communication between the bridge and the engine room to occur in real-time as it would
aboard a ship.

Kongsberg is the sole source provider of the K-SIM Engine Full Mission Trainer. The
Kongsberg K-SIM Engine Full Mission Trainer is exempt from competitive bidding per
Section 44.031(j) of the Texas Education. Sole source number 1463 has been assigned.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

The purchase of the Kongsberg K-SIM Engine Full Mission Trainer will accommodate
working mariners needing training to maintain credentials, as well as allow the College to
expand the credit offerings in maritime programs. Until recently, only deck mariners were
required to perform practical assessment, and San Jacinto College has both a full bridge
simulator and two navigation labs to meet those needs. Under the new International
Convention on STCW for Seafarers, the engineering mariner will now be required to conduct
practical assessments. The College will be the first and only maritime training center in the
Gulf Coast to offer this training. Because the US Coast Guard has made a priority for hands-
on assessments, both credit and noncredit mariners will benefit from having a full engine
room simulator. Without the purchase of the engine room simulator, several courses currently

23 168



Purchase Request #4
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval to Purchase Kongsberg K-SIM Engine Full Mission Trainer

being taught will no longer be able to be offered, and there will be a gap in training capacity
to meet industry needs.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The expenditure for this purchase is $697,000 and will be funded by the 2008 bond program.
Approximately $400,000 is available in the original maritime center construction budget and
the remainder will come from the 2008 bond contingency. Gross projected revenues from the
engine simulator courses are estimated at $400,000 annually. The revenue and related
instruction costs will be incorporated into the FY 2017 budget.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

None

ATTACHMENTS

None

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Allatia Harris 281-459-7140 Allatia.Harris@sjcd.edu
Sarah Janes 281-478-3605 Sarah.Janes@sjcd.edu
Wiliam Pickavance 281-459-5486 William.Pickavance@sjcd.edu

24 169



Purchase Request #5
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval to Purchase Graduation Event License
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends the Board of Trustees approve an event license agreement with
SMG/NRG Park, as the venue for the May 2017 graduation ceremony.

BACKGROUND

The College is planning to conduct its 2017 spring commencement ceremony on Saturday,
May 13, 2017 at NRG Stadium in NRG Park. This will be the third college commencement
event held at NRG Stadium and will include graduating students from the spring 2017
semester. The venue will easily accommodate guest seating of 10,000. The attendance at the
spring 2016 event included approximately 9,800 guests, 770 graduation participants, and 280
faculty members.

Leasing of an event venue is exempt from the competitive procurement requirements for
goods and services mandated in Chapter 44 of the Texas Education Code.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

Approval of the licensing agreement will facilitate access to a large facility and allow the
College to conduct one commencement ceremony for all graduates and their guests inclusive
of all programs from all three campuses.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The estimated expenditure for this request is $108,000. This expenditure will be funded by
the Student Services department’s 2016-2017 operating budget.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

None

ATTACHMENTS

None

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Joanna Zimmerman 281-476-1873 Joanna.Zimmermann@sjcd.edu

Kevin McKisson 281-476-1843 Kevin.McKisson@sjcd.edu
Ann Kokx-Templet 281-998-6103 Ann.Kokx-Templet@sjcd.edu

25 170


mailto:Joanna.Zimmermann@sjcd.edu
mailto:Kevin.McKisson@sjcd.edu

Item “A”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Approval of the Minutes for the July 11, 2016
Board Workshop and Regular Board Meeting

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor requests that the Board of Trustees approve the minutes for the
July 11, 2016, Board Workshop and Regular Board Meeting.

171



San Jacinto College District Board Workshop

July 11, 2016
District Administration Building, Suite 201
MINUTES
Board Board Members: Marie Flickinger, Brad Hance, Dan Mims,
Workshop John Moon, Jr., Keith Sinor, Dr. Ruede Wheeler, Larry Wilson
Attendees: Chancellor: Brenda Hellyer
Others: Ann Kokx-Templet, Chet Lewis, Mandi Reiland, Rob
Stanicic, Steve Trncak
Agenda Item: Discussion/Information
. Call the Workshop began at 5:16 p.m.
Meeting to
Order
1. Roll Call of Board Members: Dan Mims, Marie Flickinger, Brad Hance,
Board John Moon, Jr., Keith Sinor, Dr. Ruede Wheeler, Larry Wilson
Members

Adjournment to
closed or
executive
session
pursuant to
Texas
Government
Code Section
551.071,
551.074, &
551.076, of the
Texas Open
Meetings Act

Adjourned to closed session at 5:17 p.m.

a. For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease
or value of real property.

Ann Kokx-Templet, Chet Lewis, Steve Trncak, and Mandi
Reiland were present for Item A of the executive session.

b. For the purpose of considering the appointment,
employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or
dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear
complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.
Chet Lewis, Steve Trncak and Mandi Reiland were present
for Item B of the executive session.

c. To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for
implementation, of security personnel or devices.

Chet Lewis, Rob Stanicic, Steve Trncak, and Mandi Reiland
were present for Item C of the executive session.

Reconvene in
Open Meeting

Reconvened in open meeting at 6:31 p.m.

172



Review of 2015
Junior College
Assessment
Report

Chet Lewis gave overview of the Junior College Assessment
Report (JCAR). He explained that the JCAR is an assessment
tool that all junior colleges use to evaluate the college’s
readiness for disaster situations. The following areas are
assessed:

e Environmental Design

e Police and Security

e Emergency Management
IT Security
Environmental Health and Safety
Facilities
Business Continuity
Policies
Communications
Residential

Chet explained that the JCAR assessment is performed every
three years and after each assessment, a planned improvement
list is prepared and prioritized. The report was submitted in
August 2015. One of the requirements is to review the report
with the governing Board of the organization.

Marie Flickinger asked if the College needs to have emergency
response training for students.

Chet stated that the safety assessment does not go to students
currently, but we can look into that.

Marie asked about question 13 on the handout.

Chet explained the question, “Does your college district provide
residential facilities,” was answered correctly, because the
College does not own any residential facilities. Currently, the
College utilizes rental facilities for athlete housing.

No action was needed from the Board. This report was
informative.

VI.

Update on
Budget
Preparation
and Upcoming
Legislative
Session

Brenda Hellyer explained the letter from the State of Texas. The
letter explains four percent budget cuts will be required when
the 2018-2020 biennium Legislative Appropriations Request is
submitted.

Brenda explained that at a Texas Association of Community

Colleges (TACC) meeting last week, the four percent reduction

was discussed along with TACC'’s legislative funding request.

TACC is still waiting to hear from the Legislative Budget Board

on details regarding the exact calculation and reporting

requirements. The priorities defined at the TACC meeting were:
1. Restore 4% cut,

173



2. Increase core funding $25 million, and
3. Increase funding by 5%.

Brenda explained that the College’s budget process for fiscal
year 2017-2018 will be to employ the principles of zero based
budgeting. Brenda has already asked departments to cut their
budgets by two percent. At the Finance Committee meeting on
August 2, details on the budget will be presented. Documents
will go out to the Board following the meetings on August 2.
The budget will be presented to the Board for the August 15
Board budget workshop and budget hearing.

Dr. Ruede Wheeler asked if we would have our tax assessment
values numbers by the August 2016 meetings.

Brenda explained that estimates will be used in the budget
documents until certified numbers are received in late August.

Marie asked when the four percent budget cuts will be.

Chet explained that the budget cuts will be for fiscal year 2018
(academic year 2017-2018) and 2019 (academic year 2018-
2019).

VII. Complete Conflict of Interest forms from the College’s internal audit
Conflict of department were distributed to the Board members to complete
Interest Forms | and return.
VIIL. General There were no other items discussed.
Discussion of
Meeting Items
IX. Calendar Brenda reviewed the Board calendar.
X. Adjournment Workshop adjourned at 6:48 p.m.

174



San Jacinto College District
Board Meeting Minutes

July 11, 2016

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District met at 7:00 p.m.,
Monday, July 11, 2016, in Room 104 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, for the Regular Board Meeting.

Board of
Trustees:

Marie Flickinger
Brad Hance
Dan Mims, Chair

John Moon, Jr., Secretary

Keith Sinor, Assistant Secretary

Dr. Ruede Wheeler

Larry Wilson, Vice Chair

Chancellor: Brenda Hellyer

Others Present: Tom Arrington
Joshua Banks
Dean Barnes
Marsha Bowden
James Braswell
Michelle Callaway
Janet Cowey

Bill Dowell
Kenneth English
Amanda Fenwick
George Gonzélez
Justin Goodman
Allatia Harris
Clare Iannelli
Sallie Kay Janes
Brenda Jones
Michael Kane
Jerusha Kasch
Tami Kelly

Ann Kokx-Templet
Chet Lewis

Larry Logsdon
Jim McDaniell

Kevin McKisson
Alexander Okwonna
Jeff Parks

Bill Raffetto

Shelley Rinehart
Shawn Silman
Kelly Simons
Danny Snooks
Janice Sullivan
Steve Trncak

Van Wigginton
Joanna Zimmermann

175



Call the Meeting
to order:

Roll Call of Board
Members:

Invocation and
Pledges to the
Flags:

Special
Announcements,
Recognitions, and
Presentations:

Student Success
Presentations:

Communications
to the Board:

Hearing of Such
Citizens or
Groups of
Citizens Desiring
to be Heard
Before the Board:

Informative
Reports:

Motion 9720
Consideration of
Approval of
Amendment to
the 2015-2016
Budget for
Restricted
Revenue and
Expenses Relating
to Federal and
State Grants

Chair Dan Mims called the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees to
order at 7:03 p.m.

Marie Flickinger
Brad Hance

John Moon, Jr.
Keith Sinor

Dr. Ruede Wheeler
Larry Wilson

The invocation was given by Dr. Allatia Harris. The pledges to the
American flag and the Texas flag were led by Dr. Ruede Wheeler.

1. Dr. Allatia Harris introduced Coach Tom Arrington. Coach Arrington
gave a presentation on the baseball team and their successful season.
The Gators placed second at the 2016 National Junior College Athletic
Association JUCO World Series.

1. George Gonzalez gave an update on the Texas Higher Education
Coordinating Board Almanac.

1. A thank you was sent to the Board from Bethany Stansell, for the plant
sent in memory of her grandmother.

There were no citizens desiring to be heard before the Board.

Dan Mims indicated such reports were in the board documents.

Motion was made by Marie Flickinger, seconded by Larry Wilson, for
Approval of Amendment to the 2015-2016 Budget for Restricted Revenue
and Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants.

Motion Carried.

Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wilson, Wheeler
Nays: None

2 176



Motion 9721
Consideration of
Policy IV-C-16:
Extra Service
Agreements —
Second Reading

Motion 9722
Consideration of
Purchasing
Requests

Motion was made by John Moon, Jr., seconded by Marie Flickinger, for
Approval of Policy IV-C-16: Extra Service Agreements — Second Reading.

Motion Carried.

Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wilson, Wheeler

Nays: None

Motion was made by Dr. Ruede Wheeler, seconded by John Moon, Jr., for

approval of the purchasing requests.

CSP #16-11
Renovation of the North Campus Central Plant

RFQ #16-12
Architectural Programming Services

RFQ #16-14
2015 Bond Program Manager

RFP #16-22
Student Athletic Accident Insurance

RFP #16-23
Supplemental Insurance

Purchase Request #1 -
Additional Funds for Traditional and Digital Media Buy

Purchase Request #2 -

Renew Agent for Contract and Policies for
Flood Insurance

Purchase Request #3 -
Marketing Consulting Services

Purchase Request #4 -

Additional Funds for Purchase of IT Equipment and
Equipment and Supplies

TOTAL OF PURCHASE REQUESTS

Motion Carried.

$1,576,000

122,277

250,000

183,996

83,569

75,000

$2,290,842

177



Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wilson, Wheeler
Nays: None

Motion 9723 Motion was made by Larry Wilson, seconded by Keith Sinor, to approve
Consent Agenda  the consent agenda.

Motion Carried.

Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wilson, Wheeler
Nays: None

Adjournment: Meeting Adjourned at 7:36 p.m.

4 178



Item “B”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Approval of the Minutes for the July 14,2016
Special Board Meeting

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor requests that the Board of Trustees approve the minutes for the
July 14, 2016, Special Board Meeting.

179



San Jacinto College District
Special Board Meeting Minutes

July 14, 2016

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District met at 5:15 p.m.,
Thursday, July 14, 2016, in Room 104 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, for a Special Board Meeting.

Board of Trustees:

Chancellor:

Others Present:

Call the Meeting to
order:

Roll Call of Board
Members:

Motion 9724
Consideration of
Acceptance of Offer
on Approximately
21.15 Acres in Clear
Lake Area and
Adoption of
Resolution for Sale

Adjournment:

Marie Flickinger

Brad Hance

Dan Mims, Chair

John Moon, Jr., Secretary
Keith Sinor, Assistant Secretary
Dr. Ruede Wheeler

Larry Wilson, Vice Chair

Brenda Hellyer

Bo Hopper

Ann Kokx-Templet
Chet Lewis
Lorenzo Najera
Mandi Reiland

Chair Dan Mims called the special meeting of the Board of Trustees to
order at 5:19 p.m.

Marie Flickinger

Brad Hance via conference call

John Moon, Jr.

Keith Sinor via conference call

Dr. Ruede Wheeler via conference call
Larry Wilson

Motion was made by Larry Wilson, seconded by John Moon, Jr.,
Acceptance of Offer on Approximately 21.15 Acres in Clear Lake Area
and Adoption of Resolution for Sale.

Motion Carried.

Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson
Nays: None

Meeting Adjourned at 5:20 p.m.

180



Item “C”
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Consideration of Approval of Budget Transfers

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve budget transfers for 2015-
2016 which have been made in accordance with State accounting procedures.

BACKGROUND

Adoption of the budget by the Board of Trustees in August of each year serves as the
authorization to expend funds for the next fiscal year. The budget is adopted by functional
classification (or cost elements: Instruction, Academic Support, Student Services,
Institutional Support, and Operation and Maintenance of Plant) as defined by the National
Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO). Realizing that the
budget is a viable document that reflects the evolving needs of the College in terms of
meeting goals and objectives, occasional movement of budgeted funds between cost elements
is desirable and warranted. The budget transfers under consideration represent previously
authorized expenditures that are requested to be reclassified from one cost element to another
cost element.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

Approval of the budget transfers will allow the College to more effectively utilize existing
resources in fulfilling its instructional objectives.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)
This request is a reclassification of existing authorizations.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

None

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 — Budget Transfers

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Chet Lewis 281-998-6306 chet.lewis@sjcd.edu
Mini Izaguirre 281-998-6347 mini.izaguirre@sjcd.edu

181


mailto:mini.izaguirre@sjcd.edu

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT

ELEMENT OF COST

Budget Transfers For The August 15, 2016 Board Meeting
Budget Transfers Related to Fiscal Year 2015 - 16

DEBIT CREDIT

DISTRICT

CENTRAL

NORTH

SOUTH

INSTRUCTION

PUBLIC SERVICE
ACADEMIC SUPPORT
STUDENT SERVICES
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT
PHYSICAL PLANT
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES

INSTRUCTION

PUBLIC SERVICE
ACADEMIC SUPPORT
STUDENT SERVICES
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT
PHYSICAL PLANT
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES

INSTRUCTION

PUBLIC SERVICE
ACADEMIC SUPPORT
STUDENT SERVICES
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT
PHYSICAL PLANT
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES

INSTRUCTION

PUBLIC SERVICE
ACADEMIC SUPPORT
STUDENT SERVICES
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT

PHYSICAL PLANT
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES

850 -
2,275 9,386
845 39,266

13,557 -

54,180 16,861

12,940 36,635
1,700 -
- 850

8,420 225

1,207 59
1,668 -

35,650 346

1,954 32,467
850 -

136,095 $ 136,095

182



RECOMMENDATION

Item “E”

Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016

Approval of the Affiliation Agreements

Recommend Board approval of the following Affiliation Agreements:

Central Campus

Department
Associate Degree Nursing Program

Associate Degree Nursing Program

Eye Care Technology Program
Eye Care Technology Program
South Campus

Department
Physical Therapy Assistant Program

Nursing Program

North Campus

Department
Health Information Management

Health Information Management
Health Information Management
Health Information Management
Health Information Management
Health Information Management

Health Information Management

Affiliation Entity
The University of Memphis

Grand Canyon Education Inc. d/b/a
Grand Canyon University

Majestic Optical

Greater Houston Eye Consultants
Affiliation Entity

Memorial Hermann-Texas Medical

Center and Children’s Memorial
Hermann Hospital

South University, LLC, dba South
University Savannah

Affiliation Entity
Philip Waller, M.D.

Fast and Urgent Care
Occupational Healthcare
Clearlake Dermatology

Clear lake Medical Center ENT
BSA Health Systems of Amarillo
The University of Texas MD

Anderson Cancer Center, Department
of Leukemia

183



Item “E”
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Approval of the Affiliation Agreements
RATIONALE
The Affiliation Agreements were reviewed by the College’s external legal counsel.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS TO THE COLLEGE
N/A
CONTACT PERSONNEL

Daniel J. Snooks, Attorney
Laurel Williamson 281-998-6184 laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu

184


mailto:laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu

Item “F”
Regular Board Meeting August 15, 2016
Approval of the Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting

RECOMMENDATION

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees will be Monday,
September 12, 2016.

185



	01 Cover Sheet 8-15-16
	02 Board Workshop Agenda 8-15-16
	03 Budget Agenda 08-15-16
	04 Board Meeting Agenda 8-15-16
	05 Financials August 2016 agenda
	06 Foundation Financials June 30 2016
	07 June CIP reports
	Construction Summary Report  06 30 16 Final
	Bond Summary Report 06 30 16
	2015 San Jac Tomorrow 06.30.16Final
	Master Schedule 01142016

	08.1 FINALBuilding Committee minutes 2016-08-02
	SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT
	Building Committee Meeting
	August 2, 2016

	08.2 Finance Committee Minutes 080216
	San Jacinto College District
	Finance Committee Meeting
	Minutes
	August 2, 2016

	09 BOARD AGENDA ITEMS FISCAL AFFAIRS AUG 15
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	09.1 Attachment 1- Budget Amendments-08-15-16
	Sheet1

	09.2 Attachment 2-Grant Detail-08-15-16
	10 Annual Priorities action item
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	10.0 The College Strategic Goals 8-4-16 - clean
	10.1 College Strategic Goals - Track Changes
	10.2 One College Vision Board Approved
	10.3 Underlying Assumptions 7-29-16
	10.4 Strategic Plan 7-21-16 - clean
	10.5 College Strategic Plan - Track Changes
	10.6 2016 - 2017 Annual Priorities - 8-1-16 - clean
	10.7 ap 2
	11 Agenda Action Item.Lamar University.07 26 16
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	11.1 TRANSFER AND ARTICULATION AGREEMENT1 (6).Working agreement.07 25 16
	12 Action Item GPISD SJCCD MOU Board Agenda Item August 2016
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	12.1 SJCD GPISD MOU
	13 Clear Horizons ECHS MOU Board Agenda Item August 2016
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	13.1 Final Clear Horizons MOU - Execution Copy
	14 Action Item HCDE SJCCD MOU Board Agenda Item August 2016
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	14.1 Revised MOU 842157
	15 PECHS MOU Board Agenda Item 15 August 2016
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	15.1 Pasadena MOU for current and future ECHSs final
	16 Board Agenda item - Budget Adoption FY 2017 (2)
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	17 Action Item - Board Dates
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	17.1 Draft 2017 Board Meeting Dates
	18 Board Recommendation - Salary Schedules august 2016
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)

	18.1 2016-2017 Administration & Staff Salary Schedule final
	Administration & Staff

	18.2 2016-2017 Faculty Salary Schedule final
	Faculty

	18.3 2016-2017 PT Hourly Salary Schedule 2
	PT Hourly Rates

	18.4 2016-2017 Stipends and Market Premiums 2
	Stipends-Mkt Prem

	19 140707 Agenda Item Investment Policy Review
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	None
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL


	19.1 Investment Policy 080216 final
	20 Purchasing Package 8-15-16
	00 Bid Recap Rev2
	Sheet1

	01 IFB 16-16 Welding Machine Trainers AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	02 IFB 16-16 Attachment 1 AKT
	Board Book

	03 RFP 16-27 Advanced Mfg Trng Svcs AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	04 RFP 16-27 Attachment
	Board Book

	05 RFP 16-24 Moving Services AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	06 RFP 16-24 Attachment AKT
	Board Book

	07 PR 1 Annual Renewals Rev.1
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT
	Auxiliary Services $4,450,000
	Continuing and Professional Development (CPD) $2,140,000
	Educational Technology $1,650,000
	Facilities and Construction $6,985,000
	Fiscal Affairs $1,915,526
	General Operations $8,040,000
	ITS $7,060,000
	Lease Agreements $703,000
	Library Services $555,000
	Marketing $1,695,000


	08 PR 2 Purchasing Cooperatives AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	Items purchased through the cooperatives will be procured utilizing individual departmental budgets.
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL


	09 PR 3 - Data Networking Equip AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	10 PR 4 Kongsberg simulator (CL recommended edits)
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	11 PR 5 - Graduation Event License AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL


	21 Item A
	21.1 Board Workshop minutes 7-11-16
	21.2 Board Meeting Minutes 7-11-16
	22 Item B
	22.1 Special Board Meeting Minutes 1-19-16
	23 160815 Considersation of Approval of Budget Transfers
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	23 Budget Transfers for August 2016
	Elements of Cost

	25 Agenda Cover 2016-08-15
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	25.1 Attachment 1 - Personnel Recommendations 2016-08-15 v5
	25.2 Attachment 2 - 2016-2017 Professional Contract Recommendations
	FY 16-17

	26 Item E
	RECOMMENDATION
	FISCAL IMPLICATIONS TO THE COLLEGE
	CONTACT PERSONNEL

	27 Item F
	RECOMMENDATION




